Public Document Pack

Tendring

District Council

IAN DAVIDSON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, ESSEX, CO15 1SE. TELEPHONE (01255) 686868

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DATE: Wednesday, 3 August 2022
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Committee Room - Town Hall,
Station Road, Clacton-on-Sea, CO15
1SE
MEMBERSHIP:
Councillor Land (Chairman) Councillor J Henderson
Councillor Steady (Vice-Chairman) Councillor Placey
Councillor Casey Councillor Skeels
Councillor V Guglielmi

Chief Executive www.tendringdc.gov.uk
lan Davidson Minicom: 01255 475566

VANIOV


http://www.tendringdc.gov.uk/

Most Council meetings are open to the public and press. The space for
the public and press will be made available on a first come first served
basis. Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the
meeting date and the Council aims to publish Minutes within five working
days of the meeting. Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large
print, in Braille, or on disc, tape, or in other languages.

This meeting will be filmed by the Council for live and/or subsequent
broadcast on the Council’s website. The whole of the meeting will be
filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt items, and the
footage will be on the website for up to 24 months (the Council retains
one full year of recordings and the relevant proportion of the current
Municipal Year). The Council will seek to avoid/minimise footage of
members of the public in attendance at, or participating in, the meeting.
In addition, the Council is obliged by law to allow members of the public
to take photographs, film, audio record and report on the proceedings at
public meetings. The Council will only seek to prevent this should it be
undertaken in a disruptive or otherwise inappropriate manner.

If you have any queries regarding webcasting or the recording of
meetings by the public, please contact Debbie Bunce Email:
dbunce@tendringdc.gov.uk or Telephone on 01255 686573.

DATE OF PUBLICATION: Tuesday, 26 July 2022




AGENDA

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

The Committee is asked to note any apologies for absence and substitutions received
from Members.

Minutes of the Last Meeting (Pages 1 - 12)

To confirm and sign as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of the Standards
Committee, held on Wednesday 6 April 2022.

Declarations of Interest

Councillors are invited to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Personal
Interest, and the nature of it, in relation to any item on the agenda.

Questions on Notice pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 38

Subject to providing two working days’ notice, a Member of the Committee may ask the
Chairman of the Committee a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has
powers or duties which affect the Tendring District and which falls within the terms of
reference of the Committee.

Report of the Monitoring Officer - A.1 - Local Government Association Model
Members' Code of Conduct - Exploration of the differences between declaring
Interests (Pages 13 - 94)

To continue the review of the elected Members’ Model Code of Conduct (the Model
Code) as authored by the Local Government Association (LGA), in comparison to
Tendring District Council's Members’ Code of Conduct (the TDC Code), for eventual
determination as to whether to recommend the Model Code to Full Council for adoption.

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer - A.2 - Independent
Remuneration Panel and Independent Persons Recruitment (Pages 95 - 98)

To enable the Committee to comment on the Independent Remuneration Panel’'s and
Independent Persons’ term of office, exploring alternative options and future recruitment,
with consideration to recommendations to full Council.

Report of the Head of Democratic Services & Elections - A.3 - Town & Parish
Councils' Standards Sub-Committee: Appointment of Tendring District Council
Members (Pages 99 - 100)

To enable the Committee to appoint Tendring District Council’s members to serve on the
Town and Parish Councils’ Standards Sub-Committee for the 2022/2023 Municipal Year.

Quarterly Complaints Update and other General Matters (Pages 101 - 102)

The Committee will receive the Monitoring Officer's quarterly update regarding standards
complaints together with an update on other pertinent matters.



Date of the Next Scheduled Meeting

The next scheduled meeting of the Standards Committee is to be held in the Committee
Room - Town Hall, Station Road, Clacton-on-Sea, CO15 1SE at 10.00 am on
Wednesday, 26 October 2022.

Information for Visitors

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE

There is no alarm test scheduled for this meeting. In the event of an alarm sounding, please
calmly make your way out of any of the fire exits in the room and follow the exit signs out of the
building.

Please heed the instructions given by any member of staff and they will assist you in leaving the
building and direct you to the assembly point.

Please do not re-enter the building until you are advised it is safe to do so by the relevant member
of staff.

Your calmness and assistance is greatly appreciated.




Agenda Item 2

Standards Committee 6 April 2022

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE,
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 6TH APRIL, 2022 AT 2.05 PM
IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM, AT THE TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-
ON-SEA, CO15 1SE

Present: Councillors Land (Chairman), Steady (Vice-Chairman), Alexander,
Fowler, Turner and Wiggins

In Attendance: | Lisa Hastings (Deputy Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer), Linda
Trembath (Senior Solicitor (Litigation and Governance) & Deputy
Monitoring Officer), lan Ford (Committee Services Manager), Karen
Townshend (Executive Projects Manager (Governance)), Debbie
Bunce (Legal and Governance Administration Officer) and Matt
Cattermole (Communications Assistant)

Also in | The following Independent Persons: Sue Gallone (except items 31
Attendance: (part — 33), David Irvine and Jane Watts

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor V E Guglielmi (with
Councillor Alexander substituting), Councillor J Henderson (with no substitute) and
Clarissa Gosling (one of the Council’s four Independent Persons).

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

It was moved by Councillor Turner, seconded by Councillor Wiggins and:-

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 2 February 2022
be approved as a correct record and be signed by the Chairman, subject to the deletion
from the text of Minute 20 of the following paragraph:-

“This Committee are asked to re-visit Appendix A at its meeting to be held on 6 April
2022, and to reflect upon the above training when doing so.”

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no Declarations of Interest made by Members at this time.

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 38

No Questions on Notice had been submitted by Members pursuant to Council
Procedure Rule 38 on this occasion.

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER - A.1 - ADOPTION OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION'S MODEL MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT

Further to Minute 24 (2.2.22), the Committee reviewed part of the elected Members’
Model Code of Conduct, as authored by the Local Government Association (LGA), in
comparison to Tendring District Council’s (TDC) Members’ Code of Conduct (the Code),
for eventual determination as to whether to recommend the Model Code to Full Council
for adoption.

Page 1




Standards Committee 6 April 2022

Members recalled that, in 2018, following a recommendation made by the Standards
Committee, the Full Council had adopted the Members’ Code of Conduct (the Code) as
detailed within Part 6 of the Council’'s Constitution and as attached as Appendix A to the
Monitoring Officer’s report. The Code set out the standards, values and rules of conduct
that elected Members were expected to abide by.

It was reported that, in May 2021, a final version of the Members’ Model Code of
Conduct (the Model Code) had been authored and released by the LGA (after two
amended versions had previously being issued). The aim of the Model Code was to
provide consistency for Members across Parish, Town, District and County Councils,
especially for those Members representing two or more electorates (also known as ‘dual
hatters’ or ‘triple hatters’).

As part of its work programme, the Standards Committee was requested to review
TDC’s Code in comparison with the Model Code, together with associated guidance,
and recommend to Full Council as to whether the Model Code should be adopted or
whether to review and keep the TDC Code. Should the Committee wish to recommend
that the Model Code be adopted, it had previously been proposed that implementation
would not take effect until the new municipal period following the 2023 District Council
elections.

Members were informed that the LGA planned to undertake an annual review of the
Model Code to ensure it continued to be fit for-purpose, incorporating advances in
technology, social media and changes in legislation. Therefore this Authority would be
required to review its Code, if adopted, to ensure consistency.

In addition to the publication of the Model Code, the LGA, in consultation with
Monitoring Officers and associated Officers nationally, was compiling a training package
for Members and Officers which could be utilised following elections, or for refresher
training. The training package, which was currently in draft form, could be either
completed in a single session or broken down into multiple sessions focussing on
specific areas, whichever catered to Members’ needs at that time, allowing for questions
throughout. The training package could be conducted in person or online and there was
supporting material available for Members’ reference.

The training was broken down into ’bite size’ sections following the Model Code with
relevant scenarios and case studies. Due to the training package still being in draft form
at this stage, a further report would be presented for discussion to the Committee at its
next meeting.

The Model Code was attached as Appendix B to the Monitoring Officer’s report.

The Committee was reminded that theTDC Code covered three main areas as follows:-

Part 1 set out some general obligations regarding the behaviour of elected and co-opted
Members (“Rules of Conduct”);

Part 2 explained how Members should behave if they had a personal/code interest in an
item of Council business (“Members’ Interests”); and

Part 3 set out rules requiring registration of interests for public inspection (“Register of
Members’ Interests”)

Page 2



Standards Committee 6 April 2022

Members were reminded that the Code covered the following areas:-

Duties and Responsibilities

Information

Conduct

Use of the Position

Registration of Interests

Sensitive Information

Decision Making

Compliance with the Law and the Authority’s Rules and Policies
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Declaration of Members’ Interests

Declaration of Personal Interests generally

Effect of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests on participation
Effect of Personal Interests on participation

The Committee was informed that the LGA Model Code had been written in the first
person, in order to make it more personal to individual Councillors and that it covered
the following areas:

General Conduct

Respect

Bullying, harassment and discrimination
Impartiality of officers of the council
Confidentiality and access to information
Disrepute

Use of position

Use of local authority resources and facilities
Complying with the Code of Conduct
Interests

Gifts and Hospitality

Members were advised that, although the Code and Model Code stated slightly differing
titles for the areas covered within them, the content was extremely similar within each
document and the Model Code covered each area in more detail giving some
explanatory text. The main differences between the Code and Model Code were as
detailed hereunder:-

The Code - 3.4 Conduct

“Members must:

(a) not conduct themselves in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as
bringing their office or Authority into disrepute;

(b) not make vexatious, malicious or frivolous complaints against other Members or
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the Authority.

(c) comply with any request of the Authority’s Monitoring Officer or Section 151 Officer,
in connection with an investigation conducted on accordance with their respective
statutory powers.”

The Model Code - 8 Complying with the Code of Conduct

Page 3



Standards Committee 6 April 2022

“8.1 | undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority.

8.2 | cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or determination

8.3 | do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be involved
with the administration of any investigation or proceedings.

8.4 | comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that | have breached
the Code of Conduct.

It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you
to have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the
local authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned about the
local authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with your
Monitoring Officer.”

The Model Code also included a definition of bullying, something which the TDC Code
did not have. The Committee on Standards in Public Life had recommended that local
authorities included such a definition within their code.

The Code - 3.7 Decision Making

“Members must:

(a) when participating in meetings or reaching decisions regarding the business of the
Authority, do so on the basis of the merits of the circumstances involved and in the
public interest having regard to any relevant advice provided by the Authority’s
officers, in particular by —

(i) the Authority’s Head of Paid Service
(i) the Authority’s s.151 Officer / Chief Financial Officer
(iii) the Authority’s Monitoring Officer / Chief Legal Officer

(b) give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory requirements and
any reasonable additional requirements imposed by the Authority.

Decision making in this form was not referred to in the Model Code, however Article 13
within the Council’'s Constitution, set out the responsibilities and principles for decision
making in detail, including reference to the Statutory Officers, therefore in the view of the
Monitoring Officer, this would be sufficient were the Model Code to be adopted.

The Code - 3.6 Registration of Interests

In accordance with and subject to Part 2 of the Code, Members were required to register
details of their Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and their Personal Interests within 28
days of becoming a Member (or being re-elected or reappointed) or a change in those
details, in the Authority’s Register of Interests.

The Model Code - 9.1 | register and disclose my interests

“Section 29 of The Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and
maintain a register of interest of members of the authority.

You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and
fellow councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest.

Page 4



Standards Committee 6 April 2022

The register is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue
arises. The register also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a
willingness to be held accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether
or not you should disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know
early on if others think that a potential conflict might arise. It is also important that the
public know about any interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other
councillors when making or taking part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by
the public as open and honest. This helps to ensure that public confidence in the
integrity of local governance is maintained.”

The Committee was made aware that, should the Model Code be adopted then
particular attention would need to be given to training for Members in this area. Further
research into the differences between the Interests sections would be conducted by
Officers, with a report compiled, to be presented in further detail for discussion by the
Committee at its next meeting.

Members were further informed that, from initial conversations between Monitoring
Officers across the County, there did appear to be an eagerness for the majority of the
authorities to consider and then subsequently adopt the Model Code, subject to
approval from their respective Full Councils. Indeed, both Essex County Council and
Southend-on-Sea City Council had received reports recommending adopting the Model
Code. If all Essex Authorities adopted the Model Code, this would achieve the aim of
bringing consistency across the county.

The Committee then duly considered and discussed this matter. That discussion
included the following:-

(i) the advantages and disadvantages of the two Codes;

(ii) the possibility of the Monitoring Officer providing Members with a visual comparison
of the two Codes on a “side-by-side” basis;

(iii) the complexity of the language used within the two Codes;

(iv) the potential to incorporate the definitions and explanatory text contained within the
Model Code as part of TDC’s Code, possibly as appendices; and

(v) the desirability generally of whether to adopt the Model Code, or amend the TDC
Code with elements of the Model Code, or keep the TDC Code without any
alterations being made.

It was moved by Councillor Turner, seconded by Councillor Fowler and:-

RESOLVED that the Standards Committee:

(a) notes the contents of the Monitoring Officer’s report and its Appendices;

(b) confirms its satisfaction of the comparison of the Tendring District Council’s
Members’ Code of Conduct and the LGA Model Code of Conduct; and

Page 5



Standards Committee 6 April 2022

31.

(c) requests the Monitoring Officer to present in more detail the implications of the

differences in Declarations and Registration of Interests, for the Committee to
consider prior to agreeing its recommendations to Full Council.

CASE REVIEW PRESENTATION AND GUIDANCE UPDATE ON DECISIONS AND

ACTIONS TAKEN NATIONALLY

Th
an

Th

e Monitoring Officer presented a guidance update on conduct complaint decisions
d actions taken nationally.

e Monitoring Officer’s external case review covered the following:-

Case 1 — Maldon District Councillor

6 complaints of bullying by the Councillor and his deliberately attempting to
undermine the process had been upheld by the standards committee;

that Councillor had then deliberately disrupted a subsequent full Council meeting
which had necessitated the Police to be called and the meeting abandoned. The
Councillor had shown no remorse for his actions despite the impact of his behaviour
on a number of staff and Councillors; and

that Member had subsequently been convicted earlier this year of breaching a non-
molestation order in 2019. He had been given an eight month prison sentence
(suspended) which had automatically disqualified him from the office of Councillor
(Section 80 Local Government Act 1972). Therefore, he had lost his office due to an
incident in his private life.

Case 2 — Financial Costs of Investigating Handforth Parish Council (Jackie Weaver)

main problem was differing interpretations of Section 85 Local Government Act
1972 (disqualification of Councillor due to non-attendance at meetings);

arguments at online parish council meeting had gone ‘viral’ and had attracted huge
media attention which had exacerbated existing problem and had increased the
number of conduct complaints;

resulting report to Cheshire East Council’s Audit & Governance Committee had had
external costs of £85,000 due to threats of a Judicial Review and need for
independent advice;

other aggravating factors had included:-

i. three separate investigation reports involved six different councillors;
ii. reports had appendices in excess of 1,000 pages;
iii. breaches of Code had been found resulting in multiple recommendations;
iv. prolonged and repeated delay in the process;
v. Councillors had resigned;
vi. Monitoring Officer’s offer of help had merely generated more complaints;
vii. allegations of financial impropriety had necessitated involvement of the Police
and auditors;
viii. external organisations employed to carry out the investigations had had to
implement protocols for the protection of their staff;
ix. complaints continued to be submitted;
x. Information Commissioner’s Office was now also involved.

Case 3 — Borough Council forced to revise its Complaints Procedure

Page 6



Standards Committee 6 April 2022

a Borough Council had had the practice of referring all complaints (unless obviously
vexatious, frivolous or politically motivated) to a Member Assessment Panel even if
the Monitoring Officer was intending to take no further action;

this had resulted in delays in the process and a detrimental impact on that Council’s
limited resources;

that Council had now implemented revised arrangements; and

lesson to be learnt was the need to ensure that robust frameworks were in place
and that Councillors should be regularly informed on how the Monitoring Officer
delegated powers were being exercised.

Case 4 — Breach of Code of Conduct by a Member of a Council in Wales

Councillor in question had applied for planning permission to open a café but then
proceeded to operate that café before the planning application had been
determined;

Councillor had relied on defence of “limited and confused knowledge of planning
matters” despite his being a member of the Planning Committee and having
undertaken the necessary training;

Ombudsman had decided that the Councillor had brought both his office and the
Council into disrepute;

Standards Committee then proceeded to suspend the Councillor for one month for
this “Serious breach”; and

it was important to note that Wales had a different standards regime to England.

Case 5 — Deputy Monitoring Officer’'s Decision quashed by the High Court

a Parish Council had accused one of its Members (Clir R) of breaching its code of
conduct (grounds were “not behaving during a meeting in a respectful way and
acting in a way that could bring the Council into disrepute);

a second complaint relating to the Chairman of that same meeting (Clir C) was also
processed;

External solicitor had made an assessment of the two complaints and submitted thir
recommendations;

the Deputy Monitoring Officer (DMO) had concluded that Clir R had breached the
Code but decided not to refer the complaint for further investigation. The DMO had
further concluded that ClIr C’s actions had not breached the Code;

Clir R had challenged the DMQO’s decision in Court on the following grounds:-

Ground A — the DMO had failed to make any clear findings on what Clir R had
actually said in the meeting;

Grounds B & C — the DMO had not considered Article 10 of the European
Convention on Human Rights (right to freedom of expression); and

Ground D - the DMO had taken different approaches to dealing with the two
complaints.

Mrs Justice Lang had upheld the challenge in the High Court and had quashed the
DMO'’s decision. In her judgement she had highlighted the following:-

Page 7



Standards Committee 6 April 2022

32.

Ground A — the DMO had failed significantly in her assessment and decision
making process by not testing the inconsistencies that had been shown up in that
assessment process;

Grounds B & C — the DMO’s interpretation and/or application of Article 10 of the
European Convention on Human Rights (right to freedom of expression) had been
flawed and she had failed to give effect to the enhanced right of political expression.
Mrs Justice Lang had found:-

“In re-making the decision under Article 10(2), | conclude that the interference did
not fulfil a pressing social need, and nor was it proportionate to the aim of protecting
the reputation of the other councillors. As an elected councillor, taking part in a
public meeting called by the parish council to discuss the Green Belt, the Claimant
was entitled to the enhanced protection afforded to the expression of political
opinions on matters of public interest, and the benefits of freedom of expression in a
political context outweighed the need to protect the reputation of the other
councillors against public criticism, notwithstanding that the criticism was found to
be a misrepresentation, untruthful, and offensive.”

Ground D — Mrs Justice Lang had accepted that the two complaints could have had
a different outcome due to their factual differences but that the DMO should have
undertaken the same approach to both and that by failing to do so Clir C had been
more favourably treated than Clir R.

The Monitoring Officer also reported that the Government, on 18 March 2022, had finally
responded to the 26 recommendations made by the Committee on Standards in Public
Life’s (CSPL) in its January 2019 report following its review of ethical standards in local
government. She gave Members a brief precis of the Government’s response to the
LGA and its Model Code and the issue of intimidation in public life and informed the
Committee that she would be submitting a detailed report on this matter to its next
meeting.

The Monitoring Officer also made Members aware that the CSPL would be undertaking
a review of “Leadership” in looking to embed the Seven Principles of Public Life in public
sector organisations.

The Committee thanked the Monitoring Officer for her presentation and duly noted the
foregoing.

DRAFT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN FOR 2022/2023

The Committee considered the following draft Work Plan for 2022/2023:-

27" July 2022

e Review of Tendring District Council’s Code of Conduct and Local Government
Association Model Code of Conduct

¢ Review of the Independent Person Protocol and recruitment preparations for 2023

e Regular Complaints update by Monitoring Officer

Page 8



Standards Committee 6 April 2022

33.

26t October 2022

¢ Review of the Monitoring Officer Protocol

o Case review and guidance update for the Committee on decisions and actions
taken nationally

¢ Regular Complaints update by Monitoring Officer

1st February 2023

o Update on Mandatory Training
¢ Annual Report on declarations of interest (meetings, gifts and hospitality)
¢ Regular Complaints update by Monitoring Officer

15t March 2023

e Work Programme 2023/24
e New Member Induction Programme for 2023/24
¢ Regular Complaints update by Monitoring Officer

Members were aware that the above meeting dates were provisional pending ratification
at the Annual Meeting of the Council on 26 April 2022 and that, in addition, individual
matters might be referred to those meetings by the Monitoring Officer, in accordance
with the Committee’s Terms of Reference as necessary, for example, an appeal against
a dispensation decision or a Code of Conduct hearing.

In response to a request made by Councillor Alexander, the Monitoring Officer (Lisa
Hastings) undertook to refer the issue of whether a member of the Planning Committee
should be enabled to appoint their substitute from a different political group to their own
to the Review of the Constitution Portfolio Holder Working Party for its consideration.
Having duly considered and discussed the contents of the draft work plan:-

It was moved by Councillor Steady, seconded by Councillor Wiggins and:-

RESOLVED that the Work Plan for the Standards Committee for 2022/2023 be
approved and adopted.

QUARTERLY COMPLAINTS UPDATE AND OTHER GENERAL MATTERS

The Committee had before it the Monitoring Officer's quarterly schedule, which updated
it on existing and new conduct complaint cases, along with other matters.

Conduct Complaints Update

TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL MONITORING OFFICER UPDATE APRIL 2022

Page 9




Standards Committee 6 April 2022

Council Complainant Current Final outcome | Comments

status

Existing Cases from last update:

TOWN PUBLIC ONGOING Informal Matter related to
2 x TOWN resolution claims of bullying.
COUNCILLORS Informal

resolution and
training with an
external company
conducted. All
Members  within
Town Council
engaged to
positive working
arrangements

going forward.

DISTRICT PUBLIC CLOSED No further Matter relates to

action conduct in
proceedings
external to the
Council.
Inconsistent
information
provided by
Complainant
related to a
separate dispute.

PARISH PUBLIC CLOSED No further Complaint mainly

action related to the
dissatisfaction of
the Council’s lack
of action in a
particular matter.

New Cases since last update:

Council Complainant Current Final outcome | Comments

status

PARISH PUBLIC ONGOING Response from | Matter relates to

Councillor conduct in a

identified in public  meeting.

complaint only Second

recently complaint of this

received. nature
Independent
Person will be
consulted prior to
any MO decision.

TOWN PUBLIC ONGOING Response from | Matter relates to

Page 10




Standards Committee 6 April 2022

Councillor various areas
identified in which need to be
complaint only identified  more
recently clearly.

received. Independent

Person will be
consulted prior to
any MO decision.

General Notes — 2021/22 Summary:

11 new cases had been received in 2021/22, however, 5 complaint forms had been
sent relating to correspondence received for District/Parish/Town Councillors conduct
but had not been returned.

1 Town Council matter was still on-going from March 2021 but it includes all members
and stakeholders as part of the process.

1 District Councillor complaint from 2020/21 had been considered by the Standards
Committee at a Hearing and a breach of the Code of Conduct had been found.

1 District Councillor complaint had resulted in No Further Action.

2 Parish Councillor complaints had resulted in No Further Action.

1 Parish Councillor complaint had resulted in Informal Resolution including training.

2 cases were pending.

Training had been conducted at 1 Parish Council, with a recent request for training

received from another Parish Council. A separate training session had been conducted
for Clerks.

Requests for Dispensations:

6 separate requests had been received of which 5 had related to the same matter being
discussed recently at several meetings. The TDC Website needed to be updated with
that information.

The Committee noted the foregoing.

The meeting was declared closed at 3.28 pm

Chairman

Page 11




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
3 AUGUST 2022
REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
A1 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION MODEL MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT -

EXPLORATION OF THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN DECLARING INTERESTS
(Report prepared by Karen Townshend and Lisa Hastings)

PART 1 — KEY INFORMATION

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

For the Standards Committee to continue their review of the elected Members’ Model
Code of Conduct (the Model Code) as authored by the Local Government Association
(LGA), in comparison to Tendring District Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct (the TDC
Code), for eventual determination as to whether to recommend the Model Code to Full
Council for adoption.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In 2018 the Standards Committee recommended to full Council that the Council adopted
the Members’ Code of Conduct as detailed within Part 6 of the Constitution and attached
as Appendix A. The Code sets out the standards, values and rules of conduct that elected
Members are expected to abide by.

In May 2021, a final version of the Members’ Model Code of Conduct was authored and
released by the LGA. The aim of the Model Code is to provide consistency for Members
across Parish, Town, District and County Councils, especially for those Members
representing two or more electorates (also known as ‘dual or triple hatters’).

As part of its work programme, the Standards Committee is requested to review the TDC
Code in comparison with the Model Code, together with associated guidance, and
recommend to Full Council as to whether the Model Code should be adopted, to review
and retain the existing TDC Code or amend it. Should the Committee wish to recommend
that the Model Code be adopted, it has previously been proposed that implementation
would not take effect until the new municipal period following the 2023 elections.

The Model Code is attached at Appendix B.

At the Committee’s last meeting in April 2022, Members were appraised of the differences
between the Rules of Conduct within the TDC Code compared with the Model Code. The
provisions relating to interests would be considered separately and are the purpose of this
report. The TDC Code has two types of Members’ Interests (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests (DPI) and Personal Interests. The Model Code refers to these as Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests, Other Registrable Interests and Non-Registerable Interests. It may
appear from first glance that the Model Code either covers interests in more detail or an
additional type; however in essence they are broadly similar as the TDC Code, albeit
condensed under its two headings.

Under both the TDC Code and the Model Code, it remains the responsibility of the

Page 13



individual Member to keep their registration of interests complete, up to date and accurate.

The TDC Code states that Members are required to register details of their Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests and their Personal Interests (that a Member is aware of at the time)
within 28 days of becoming a Member (or being re-elected or reappointed) or a change in
those details, in the Authority’s Register of Interests. The Model Code requires DPIs and
only those personal interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2, defined as
Other Registerable Interests, to be registered.

Although the Committee at its last meeting suggested receiving a visual comparison of the
two Codes on a “side-by-side” basis, due to the way the two Codes have been produced,
attempts on this approach were confusing, therefore the Monitoring Officer has
endeavoured to explain below (within current position), the differences between the
interest provisions within the Codes. Upon review, the main difference to highlight is the
impact of Paragraph 9 within the TDC Code being withdrawn from all types of Personal
Interests although, a test is still applied to those Non-Registerable Interests within the
Model Code which ‘affects’ the interest.

Current Position

The current TDC Code was adopted in 2018 and has served well to uphold and promote
the high standards of conduct in public life for all elected Members, voting co-opted
Members and appointed members. Trust and confidence in public office holders and
institutions are important for the functioning of local authorities and it is each Members’
responsibility to comply with the provisions of the Code.

Should the Model Code be adopted then training will be required for all Members which
may be delivered by Officers throughout dedicated sessions. Guidance issued by the LGA
on the Model Code is attached at Appendix C.

From further conversations between Monitoring Officers across the County, there is still an
appetite to adopt the Model Code subject to approval from Full Council. At the time of
writing, the following authorities have either recommended the adoption of the Model Code
or have adopted the Model Code; Essex County Council, Southend-on-Sea City Council,
Basildon Council, Maldon District Council, Castle Point Borough Council, Chelmsford City
Council and Rochford District Council.

When the current TDC Code was adopted in 2018, the majority of Town and Parish
Councils adopted the revised Code, to align with its District Council. A number of Town
and Parish Councils are adopting or considering adopting the LGA Model Code, and are
therefore seeking advice and guidance from this authority on its position.
THE MODEL CODE
“Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority

9. Interests

As a councillor:

9.1 I register and disclose my interests.

Page 14




“Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and
maintain a register of interests of members of the authority.

You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and fellow
councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. The register
is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The register
also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to be held
accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should
disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others
think that a potential conflict might arise. It is also important that the public know about any
interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other councillors when making or taking
part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. This
helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained

You should note that failure to register or disclose a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest as set
out in Table 1, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011.

A detailed table setting out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in
the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 and is
attached at Appendix B.”

Appendix B Registering Interests

Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you
must register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set
out in Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012”.

“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are
aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below.

"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as
husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners.

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of
becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the
Monitoring Officer.

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a
person connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation.

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the
reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will
withhold the interest from the public register.

Non participation in case of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have
been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the
nature of the interest, just that you have an interest. Dispensation may be granted in limited

Page 15




circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a
disclosable pecuniary interest.

5. Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on a matter to be considered or is
being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you
must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further
steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it.

Insert the beginning part of Appendix B — registering from the Model Code

The TDC Code

Part 2 of The TDC Code focuses on Members’ Interests. Paragraph 4 of The TDC Code
detailed below refers to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:

4.1 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) are defined by The Relevant Authorities
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 (attached as Appendix C for the
purposes of this report). It is important that Members understand what amounts to a
DPI, that they identify clearly all DPIs relevant to them and that they take the
necessary action required by law. Breach of the requirements related to DPIs is a
criminal offence and are referred to the Police.

4.2 A Member will have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of their Authority
if it is of a description set out in Appendix B (of the TDC Code) and is either:
a) their own interest,
or that of a Relevant Person being:
b) an interest of their spouse,
c) and interest of their civil partner, or
d) aninterest of a person with whom they are living with as a spouse or civil
partner,

and in the case of paragraphs 4.2(b)-(d) the Member is aware that the Relevant
Person has the interest.

The Effect of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests on participation are set out in paragraph 8 of
the TDC Code but not repeated within the body of this Report.

Comparison Summary of the differences between the DPI provisions within each Code:

Whilst the Codes are worded and formatted differently, the requirements are based on the
Localism Act 2011 and the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
Regulations 2012 therefore, the Monitoring Officer considers the Model Code does provide
additional guidance and if adopted would not change the requirements of the TDC Code.

PERSONAL INTERESTS DETAILED WITHIN THE TDC CODE ARE DEFINED AS
FOLLOWS:
5. Personal Interests

5.1 A Member will have a Personal Interest in any item of business of the Authority where it
relates to or is likely to affect —

Page 16




a) any person or body who employs or has appointed them;

b) any existing contract for good, services or works, which has not been fully
discharged or has expired within the last 2 years, and made between the Authority
and

i) the Member,

i) a Related Person;

iii) a body in which the Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest; or

iv) a person or body of the description specified in paragraphs 5.1 (c)-(d) below;

P

¢) any body of which the Councillor is a member or in which they hold a position of
general control or management and to which they are appointed or nominated by the
Authority;

d) any other body of which the Councillor is a member or in which they hold a position
of general control or management —

i) exercising functions of a public nature; or

ii) directed to charitable purposes; or

iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy
including any political party or trade union);

P

e) the interests of any person from whom the Member has received a gift or hospitality
with an estimated value of at least £50

f) a decision in relation to that business which might reasonably be regarded as
affecting the financial position or wellbeing of:

(i) the Member or
(i) a Related Person (if the Member is aware of its existence)

to a greater extent that then majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or
inhabitants of the electoral division or ward, affected by the decision;

5.2 Related Person is defined as:
- a member of the Councillor’s family; or
- any person with whom the Councillor has a close business or personal association.

In the case of a Related Person, a Councillor is only required to declare those interests
which they are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the existence.

THE MODEL CODE - APPENDIX B — REGISTERING INTERESTS:

You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall within the
categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests)

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely
to affect:

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are
nominated or appointed by your authority
b) any body

Page 17




(i) exercising functions of a public nature

(i) any body directed to charitable purposes or

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or
policy (including any political party or trade union)

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other
Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You may
speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting
but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not
remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive
interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

Comparison Summary

These Other Registerable Interests within the Model Code are almost identical to TDC’s
definition of Personal Interests in paragraph 5 (c) and (d) as set out above however, the
TDC Code gives further flexibility to speak on an item subject to the assessment of the
Public Interest test as set out in Paragraph 9, without seeking a dispensation from the
Monitoring Officer. The Model Code prohibits within its paragraph 6, a Member possessing
an Other Registerable Interest from speaking at the meeting unless the public are
permitted to speak at the meeting and if a dispensation has been granted. The Monitoring
Officer foresees that this will have an impact for those Members who are appointed to
outside bodies by the Council.

MODEL CODE - Disclosure of ‘Non-Registerable Interests’

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or
well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial
interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest.

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at
the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. Ifitis a
‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects —
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or
c. a body included in those you need to disclose under Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
as set out in Table 1

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the
meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied.

9. Where a matter affects your financial interest or well-being:
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of
the ward affected by the decision and;
b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would
affect your view of the wider public interest

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at

Page 18




the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

10. Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you have
made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must make sure that any
written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of your interest.

Summary Comparison of Model Code Non-Registerable Interests and TDC Personal
Interests:

Paragraphs 7-9 of the Model Code are again very similar to Paragraph 5(f) of the TDC
Code, but make very slight distinctions between ‘directly relating to’ and ‘affecting’, and it is
important to highlight the impact of Paragraph 9 within the TDC Code compared with the
Model Code:

The TDC Code: 9. Effect of Personal Interests on participation

9.1 If a Member has a personal interest (not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) in any
business of the Authority which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant
facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Members’
judgement of the public interest and they are present at a meeting of the Authority at which
such business is to be considered or is being considered the Member must:-

(a) Declare the existence and nature of the interest in accordance with paragraph 7.1
(but subject to paragraph 12)

(b) Withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting considering the business is
being held, immediately after making representations or in any other case when the
business is under consideration, unless they have obtained a dispensation from the
Authority’s Monitoring Officer.

Therefore, under the Model Code, if adopted, a Member possessing a Non-Registerable
Interest as defined in Paragraph 7, which directly relates to their financial interest or well-
being or a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, a member can
ONLY speak on the matter IF members of the public are also allowed to speak at the
meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
not remain in the room unless a dispensation has been granted.

If the Member possesses a Non-Registrable Interest which affects the financial interest or
well-beng etc. a similar test in TDC Paragraph 9 is applied.

THE MODEL CODE - GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY
As a councillor:

10.1 I do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which could give
rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable suspicion of influence on my
part to show favour from persons seeking to acquire, develop or do business with the
local authority or from persons who may apply to the local authority for any
permission, licence or other significant advantage.

Page 19




10.2 | register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an estimated value of
at least £50 within 28 days of its receipt.

10.3 | register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or hospitality that | have been
offered but have refused to accept.

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should
exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably
believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption should always
be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a
refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could accept it but must
ensure it is publicly registered. However, you do not need to register gifts and hospitality
which are not related to your role as a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends
and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and
hospitality associated with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your
Monitoring Officer for guidance.

TDC Code - Gifts and Hospitality & Comparison

These are set out in paragraph 5 (e) referred to above, and the value of the gift or
hospitality is the same. However, the Model Code does provide further text and guidance
which is similar to the TDC Guidance Note, and has been issued separately, therefore
bringing both of these together could be considered helpful for Members, rather than
looking at two different documents.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

That the Standards Committee:
(a) notes the contents of this report and its Appendices;
(b) confirms its satisfaction of the comparison of the Tendring District Council’s
Members’ Code of Conduct and the LGA Model Code of Conduct or whether
there are any further matters for concern; and

(c) subject to (b), considers whether to recommend the adoption of the LGA
Model Code to Full Council for its approval.

PART 2 — IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION

BACKGROUND INFORMATION, CODE OF CONDUCT and LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

In January 2019, the Committee on Standards in Public Life published a report which
recommended that the Local Government Association (LGA) in consultation with
representative bodies of councillors and officers of all tiers of local government, should
produce a new Model Code of Conduct for Councillors.

This Model Councillor Code of Conduct (“‘the Model Code”) was approved by the LGA on 3
December 2020 and then a final version was approved in May 2021 and made available to

Page 20




all Local Authorities shortly thereafter.

On 18" March 2022 Letter from Minister for Equalities and Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities responded to the Report. In respect of the first Recommendation relating to
the LGA & Model Code — the government stated is for individual councils to set their own
local code, in line with the Act. Recognises the work of the LGA to establish a consistent
benchmark that local authorities can amend or add to as they see fit to reflect local
circumstances. Remains a local decision on whether this model code is adopted.

Responding to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities response to
the Committee for Standards in Public Life report into Local Government ethical standards
recommendations, Clir James Jamieson , LGA Chairman, said:

“We are pleased that the Government’s response to the Committee for Standards in Public
Life report acknowledges the work the LGA has undertaken to address the issues outlined
in the report through the development of a Model Councillor Code of Conduct and
supportive guidance in consultation with the sector.

We agree that there is still more to do to, but that a locally-led standards and conduct
system, supported by guidance, training and good practice is the best approach. In
addition, it is positive to see that the Government agrees with the principle of safeguarding
elected representatives in relation to the disclosure and publishing of councillors’ home
addresses.

We look forward to working with government and councils to determine the best
mechanisms to support improvement in areas of continued focus outlined in the response
and to ensure the continuation of high standards of conduct and appropriate protections
for councillors and councils in the future.”

Should the Model Code be adopted then training will be required for all Members which
may be delivered by Officers throughout dedicated sessions. Guidance issued by the LGA
on the Model Code is attached at Appendix C.

From further conversations between Monitoring Officers across the County, there is still an
appetite to adopt the Model Code subject to approval from Full Council. At the time of
writing, the following authorities have either recommended the adoption of the Model Code
or have adopted the Model Code; Essex County Council, Southend-on-Sea City Council,
Basildon Council, Maldon District Council and Castle Point Borough Council.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

The Localism Act 2011 requires the Authority to have a code of conduct which is
consistent with The Nolan Principles determined by the Committee on Standards in Public
Life. These principles are set out within the Code. Both The Code and The Model Code
are consistent with The Nolan Principles but any breach of the principles is not by itself a
breach of either code. Members of Tendring District Council along with Town and Parish
Councils shall have regard to the Seven Principles of Public Life as it is these principles
which underpin the Rules of Conduct.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Consideration has been given to the implications of the proposed decision in respect of the
following and any significant issues are set out below.

Page 21




Crime and Disorder/Equality and Diversity/Health Inequalities/Area or Ward
affected/Consultation/Public Engagement.

The Model Code and supporting Guidance emphasises the importance of Councillor
responsibility to ensure those with protected characteristics are protected from
discrimination

Prior to the Model Code being produced by the LGA, extensive consultation was
undertaken nationally, to which the District Council via consideration by the Standards
Committee responded to. The first version of the LGA Model Code, was amended
following feedback and a third version was produced in response to concerns around the
Members’ interests section. Prior to the third version being issued, Essex Monitoring
Officers were not comfortable recommending the LGA Model Code for adoption, these
concerns have now been reduced. However, it is worth noting that the LGA Model Code is
not being recommended for adoption until the new municipal year in 2023, and the
Standards Committee may wish to undertake more local consultation in this regard.

Risk — There is no particular risk to the Authority in terms of the conduct and standards of
Members whether this Committee decided to recommend the adoption of the LGA Model
Code or to retain and update the current Code. There is the potential of an element of
reputational risk if the LGA Model Code is not adopted; more of a question as to why it
was not adopted when many authorities across the county, along with Town and Parish
Councils, have adopted or are considering doing so. The streamlining of authorities would
not be in place with differing codes being applicable to individual authorities, which could
lead to some confusion; however these risks are minimal and would not affect the day to
day practice of this authority.

Wards Affected: All

APPENDICES

Appendix A: Tendring District Council Members’ Code of Conduct (The Code)
Appendix B: The LGA Model Code of Conduct (The Model Code)

Appendix C: Guidance on Local Government Association Model Councillor Code
of Conduct

Page 22




11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL
MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT
APRIL 2018

INTRODUCTION TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Trust and confidence in public office-holders and institutions are important for
the functioning of local authorities. This is particularly true in the case of
elected office-holders. The Council has therefore adopted this Code of
Conduct for elected Members (also referred to as “Councillors”) to promote
and maintain high standards of conduct in public life. It is each Member’'s
responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code.

The Code of Conduct applies to all elected Members, voting co-opted
Members and appointed Members.

The Code covers three main areas:

e Part 1 sets out some general obligations regarding the behaviour of
elected and co-opted Members (“Rules of Conduct”)

e Part 2 explains how Members should behave if they have a personal/code
interest in an item of Council business (“Members’ Interests”)

e Part 3 sets out rules requiring registration of interests for public inspection
(“Register of Members’ Interests”)

The Principles of Public Life are set out in the Appendix.
Interpretation of when the Code of Conduct applies?

In this Code “meeting” means any meeting of

(a) Tendring District Council (“the Authority”);

(b) the Cabinet (also known as the Executive) of the Authority

(c) any of the Authority’s or Cabinet’'s committees, sub committees joint
committees, joint sub-committees, or area committees (including working
parties and panels); or

(d) informal meetings with other Members and/or Officers relating to the
discharge of the Authority’s functions.

The Code of Conduct applies—
(a) whenever a Member conducts the business, or are present at a
meeting, of the Authority; or
(b) whenever a Member acts, claims to act or gives the impression
they are acting in the role of Member to which they were elected or

Page 23



2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

appointed; or

(c) whenever a Member acts, claims to act or give the impression they
are acting as a representative of the Authority (including
representation on outside bodies); or

(d) at all times and in any capacity, in respect of conduct identified in
paragraphs 3.4(a) and 3.5; or

(e) in respect of any criminal offence for which they have been
convicted during their term of office.

Where a Member is elected, appointed or nominated by the Authority to serve
on any other authority or body they must, when acting for that other authority or
body, comply with the code of conduct of that other authority or body.

Where a Member is elected, appointed or nominated by the Authority to
serve on any other body which does not have a code relating to the
conduct of its members, they must, when acting for that other body,
comply with this Code of Conduct, unless it conflicts with any other lawful
obligations to which that other body may be subject.

Principles of Public Life

The Localism Act 2011 requires the Authority to have a code of conduct which
is consistent with the ‘Nolan Principles’ determined by the Committee on
Standards in Public Life. These Principles are set out in the Appendix A to
this Code. The Code is consistent with the Nolan Principles but any breach of
the principles is not by itself a breach of the Code.

Members of Tendring District Council shall have regard to the Seven
Principles of Public Life as it is these principles which underpin the Rules of
Conduct set out below.

PART 1
RULES OF CONDUCT

In fulfilling Duties and Responsibilities
Members must not:

(a) breach their duties and responsibilities with due regard to the
principle that there should be equality of opportunity for all
people, regardless of their gender, race, disability, sexual
orientation, age or religion;

(b) disrespect others;

(c) bully or harass any person; or

(d) do anything which compromises, or which is likely to
compromise, the impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf
of, the Authority.

Page 24



3.3 Information

Members must not:

(a) disclose confidential information or information which should
reasonably be regarded as being of a confidential nature, without
the express consent of a person authorised to give such consent,
or unless required by law to do so;

(b) prevent any person from gaining access to information to which
that person is entitled by law.

3.4 Conduct
Members must:

(a) not conduct them self in a manner which could reasonably be
regarded as bringing their office or the Authority into disrepute;

(b) not make vexatious, malicious or frivolous complaints against other
Members or anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the Authority.

(c) comply with any request of the Authority’'s Monitoring Officer or
Section 151 Officer, in connection with an investigation conducted
in accordance with their respective statutory powers.

35 Use of the Position
Members must not:

(a) in their official capacity or otherwise, use or attempt to use their
position improperly to confer on or secure for them self, or any
other person, an advantage or create or avoid for them self, or
any other person, a disadvantage,;

(b) use, or authorise others to use, the resources of the Authority—

(i) imprudently;

(ii) in breach of the Authority's requirements;

(iii) unlawfully;

(iv) other than in a manner which is calculated to facilitate, or
to be conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the
Authority or of the office to which they have been elected
or appointed;

(v) improperly for political purposes; or

(vi)improperly for private purposes.

3.6  Registration of Interests

In accordance with and subject to Part 2 of the Code, Members are required
to register details of their Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and their Personal
Interests within 28 days of becoming a Member (or being re-elected or

Page 25



reappointed) or a change in those details, in the Authority’s Register of
Interests.

3.7 Decision Making

Members must:

(a) when participating in meetings or reaching decisions regarding
the business of the Authority, do so on the basis of the merits of
the circumstances involved and in the public interest having
regard to any relevant advice provided by the Authority's officers,
in particular by—

(1) the Authority's Head of Paid Service;
(i) the Authority's s.151 Officer/ Chief Finance Officer;
(i)  the Authority's Monitoring Officer/ Chief Legal Officer;

(b) give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory
requirements and any reasonable additional requirements
imposed by the Authority.

3.8 Compliance with the Law and the Authority’s Rules and Policies
Members must:

(a) observe the law and the Authority's rules governing the claiming
of expenses and allowances in connection with their duties as a
Member;

(b) comply with the Local Authority Code of Publicity made under the
Local Government Act 1986 and any relevant guidance issued;

(c) comply with the provisions of the Bribery Act 2010 or similar;

(d) comply with the Authority’s Gifts and Hospitality Policy;

(e) comply with any other policy (or part of policy) which sets out required
conduct from Members, for example the Member/Officer Working
Protocol and Planning Code for Members, or similar.

Page 26



PART 2
MEMBERS'’ INTERESTS

Holding the position of a District Councillor is NOT an interest which is
required to be declared at any Council, Committee, Sub-Committee or Cabinet
meetings, unless the Member is involved in the decision making affecting the
ward they were elected to.

4, Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

4.1 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) are defined by The Relevant
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 and are
set out in Appendix B to this Code. It is important that Members understand
what amounts to a DPI, that they identify carefully all DPIs relevant to them
and that they take the necessary action required by law. Breach of the
requirements related to DPIs is a criminal offence and are referred to the
Police.

4.2 A Member will have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of their

Authority if it is of a description set out in Appendix B and is either:

(@) their own interest,
or that of a Relevant Person being:

(b) an interest of their spouse,

(c) an interest of their civil partner, or

(d) an interest of a person with whom they are living with as a spouse or
civil partner,

and in the case of paragraphs 4.2(b) — (d) the Member is aware that the
Relevant Person has the interest.

5. Personal Interests

5.1 A Member will have a Personal Interest in any item of business of the
Authority where it relates to or is likely to affect —

(@) any person or body who employs or has appointed them;

(b)  any existing contract for goods, services or works, which has not been
fully discharged or has expired within the last 2 years, and made
between the Authority and

(1) the Member,

(i) a Related Person;

(i)  a body in which the Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary
Interest; or

(iv)  aperson or body of the description specified in paragraphs 5.1
(c)-(d) below;

Page 27



5.2

6.1

6.2

(©)

(d)

()

(f)

any body of which the Councillor is a member or in which they hold a
position of general control or management and to which they are
appointed or nominated by the Authority;

any other body of which the Councillor is a member and in which they

hold a position of general control or management —

(1) exercising functions of a public nature; or

(i) directed to charitable purposes; or

(i)  one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union);

the interests of any person from whom the Member has received a gift
or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £50;

a decision in relation to that business which might reasonably be
regarded as affecting the financial position or wellbeing of:

0] the Member or
(i) a Related Person (if the Member is aware of its existence)

to a greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers,
ratepayers or inhabitants of the electoral division or ward, affected by
the decision;

Related Person is defined as:

a member of the Councillor’'s family; or
any person with whom the Councillor has a close business or personal
association.

In the case of a Related Person, a Councillor is only required to declare those
interests which they are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the
existence.

Declaration of Members’ Interests

Subject to sub-paragraphs 6.2 to 6.3, where a Member has a Disclosable
Pecuniary or Personal Interest in any business of the Authority and they are
present at a meeting of the Authority at which the business is considered, they
must declare to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest whether
or not such interest is registered on their Register of Interests or for which
they have made a pending notification.

Sub-paragraph 6.1 only applies where a Member is aware or ought
reasonably to be aware of the existence of the Relevant Person’s (as defined

Page 28



6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

in 4.2 above) Interest or the Related Person’s (as defined in 5.2 above)
Interest.

Where a Member has an interest in any business of the Authority which would
be declarable by virtue of paragraph 6.1 but by virtue of paragraph 11
(Sensitive Information) details of the interest are not registered in the
Authority’s published Register of Members’ Interests and the interest is a
Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interest they do not need to declare the
nature of the interest to the meeting.

Where a Member has an interest in any business of the Authority which would
be declarable by virtue of paragraph 6.1 and they are acting as a Cabinet
Member, making an executive decision in relation to that business they must
ensure that any written statement of that decision records the existence and
nature of that interest. In this paragraph “executive decision” is to be
construed in accordance with any regulations made by the Secretary of State
under section 22 of the Local Government Act 2000.

Declaration of Personal Interests generally

Subject to sub-paragraphs 7.2 & 7.3 below, a Member has a duty to declare
any Personal Interest, as set out in paragraph 5 above, in considering any
business of the Authority, where that interest is one which a Member of the
public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so
significant that it is likely to prejudice their judgement of the public interest.

Holding the position of a District Councillor is NOT an interest which is
required to be declared at any Council, Committee, Sub-Committee or
Cabinet meetings, unless the Member is involved in the decision making
affecting the ward they were elected to.

A Member does not have a declarable interest in any business of the
Authority where that business relates to the functions of the Authority in
respect of:

I. housing, where the Member is a tenant of the Authority provided
that those functions do not relate particularly to their tenancy or
lease;

il. school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where
the Member is a parent or guardian of a child in full time
education, or are a parent governor of a school, unless it relates
particularly to the school which the child attends;

iii. statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security
Contributions and Benefits Act 1992, where the Member is in
receipt of, or are entitled to the receipt of, such pay;

iv. an allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members;
V. any ceremonial honour given to Members; and
Vi. setting Council Tax or a Precept under the Local Government

Finance Act 1992

Page 29



8.

9.1

Effect of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests on participation

(@)

(b)

(€)

If a Member is present at a meeting of the Authority or of any
committee, sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of
the Authority and they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any
matter to be considered, or being considered, at the meeting and they
are aware of that Interest:

(i) the Member must not participate, or participate further, in any
discussion of the matter at the meeting, or participate in any
vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting.

(i) the Member must withdraw from the room or chamber where
the meeting considering the business is being held unless they
have received a dispensation from the Authority’s Monitoring
Officer.

If a Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of
the Authority they must not:
(i) exercise executive functions in relation to that business; and

(i) seek improperly to influence a decision about that business

If a function of the Authority may be discharged by a Member acting
alone and they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to
be dealt with or being dealt with in the course of discharging that
function they may not take any steps or any further steps in relation to
the matter (except for the purpose of enable the matter to be dealt with
otherwise than by them self).

Effect of Personal Interests on participation

If a Member has a Personal interest (not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) in
any business of the Authority which a Member of the public with knowledge of
the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to
prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest and they are present
at a meeting of the Authority at which such business is to be considered or is
being considered the Member must:-

(@)
(b)

Declare the existence and nature of the interest in accordance with
paragraph 7.1 (but subject to paragraph 12)

Withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting considering the
business is being held, immediately after making representations or in
any other case when the business is under consideration, unless they
have obtained a dispensation from the Authority’s Monitoring Officer.

Page 30



10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

PART 3

REGISTER OF MEMBERS’ INTERESTS
Registration of Members’ Interests

Subject to paragraph 11, Members must, within 28 days of—

a. this Code being adopted by or applied to the Authority; or

b. their election, re-election or appointment or re-appointment to office
(where that is later), or co-option onto the Authority,

register in the Authority’s Register of Members’ Interests (maintained by the
Monitoring Officer under Section 29(1) of the Localism Act 2011) details of
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as referred to in paragraph 4, and defined in
Appendix B, that they, their spouse, civil partner or person with whom they live
as if they were their spouse or civil partner in so far as they are aware of their
interests at that time.

Subject to paragraph 11, Members must, within 28 days of becoming aware of
any new or amended Disclosable Pecuniary Interest as referred to in
paragraph 4, and defined in Appendix B, that they, their spouse, civil partner
or person with whom they live as if they were their spouse or civil partner or
change to any interest registered under paragraph 4 above by providing
written notification to the Authority’s Monitoring Officer.

Subject to paragraphs 10.5 and 11, Members must, within 28 days of—

a. this Code being adopted by or applied to the Authority; or

b. their election, re-election or appointment or re-appointment to office
(where that is later), or co-option onto the Authority,

register in the Authority’s Register of Members’ Personal Interests details of
Personal Interests as referred to in paragraph 5, that the Member is aware of
at that time.

Subject to paragraphs 10.5 and 11, Members must, within 28 days of
becoming aware of any new or amended Personal Interest as referred to in
paragraph 5 or change to any interest registered under paragraph 5 above by
providing written notification to the Authority’s Monitoring Officer.

The provisions of paragraphs 10.3 and 10.4 above, do not apply to any
Personal Interest which concerns a Related Person, as these interests are not
required to be registered in advance and only declared at a meeting of the
Authority at which the business is considered and the Member is present.

Page 31



11. Sensitive Information

11.1 Where a Member has an interest referred to in paragraphs 4 or 5, and the
nature of the interest is such that the Member and the Authority’s Monitoring
Officer consider that disclosure of details of the interest could lead to the
Member or a person connected with them being subject to violence or
intimidation if the interest is entered in the Authority’s register then copies of
the register available for inspection and any published version of the register
should not include details of the interest but may state that the Member has
an interest details of which are withheld under s32(2) of the Localism Act
2011 and/or this paragraph.

11.2 Members must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any change of
circumstances which means that information excluded under paragraph 11.1
is no longer sensitive information, notify the Authority’s Monitoring Officer.

11.3 In this Code “sensitive information” means information whose availability for
inspection by the public creates, or is likely to create, a serious risk that the
Member or a person who lives with them may be subject to violence or
intimidation.

Page 32



APPENDIX A

The Principles of Public Life apply to anyone who works as a public office-holder.
This includes all those who are elected or appointed to public office, nationally and
locally, and all people appointed to work in the civil service, local government, the
police, courts and probation services, non-departmental public bodies, and in the
health, education, social and care services. All public office-holders are both
servants of the public and stewards of public resources. The principles also have
application to all those in other sectors delivering public services.

The Nolan Principles

Selflessness Holders of public office should act solely in terms of
the public interest.

Integrity Holders of public office must avoid placing
themselves under any obligation to people or
organisations that might try inappropriately to
influence them in their work. They should not act or
take decisions in order to gain financial or other
material benefits for themselves, their family, or their
friends. They must declare and resolve any interests
and relationships.

Objectivity Holders of public office must act and take decisions
impartially, fairly and on merit, using the best
evidence and without discrimination or bias.

Accountability  Holders of public office are accountable to the public
for their decisions and actions and must submit
themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.

Openness Holders of public office should act and take
decisions in an open and transparent manner.
Information should not be withheld from the public
unless there are clear and lawful reasons for so

doing.
Honesty Holders of public office should be truthful.
Leadership Holders of public office should exhibit these

principles in their own behaviour. They should
actively promote and robustly support the principles
and be willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever
it occurs.

Page 33



APPENDIX B

“Disclosable Pecuniary Interests” are defined by The Relevant Authorities
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 and are:-

Employment, office, trade, profession or vacation
Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or
gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the
relevant Authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of
any expenses incurred by the Member in carrying out duties as a Member, or
towards the election expenses of the Member. This includes any payment or
financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and
Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which

the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant Authority—

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land
Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant
Authority.

Licences
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the
relevant Authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to the Member’'s knowledge)—

(a) the landlord is the relevant Authority; and

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of business or land in
the area of the relevant Authority; and

(b) either—
0] the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(i) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the

total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth
of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page 34



Local L8

Government

Association
Local Government Association

Model Councillor Code of Conduct 2020

Joint statement

The role of councillor across all tiers of local government is a vital part of our country’s
system of democracy. It is important that as councillors we can be held accountable and all
adopt the behaviors and responsibilities associated with the role. Our conduct as an
individual councillor affects the reputation of all councillors. We want the role of councillor to
be one that people aspire to. We also want individuals from a range of backgrounds and
circumstances to be putting themselves forward to become councillors.

As councillors, we represent local residents, work to develop better services and deliver
local change. The public have high expectations of us and entrust us to represent our local
area; taking decisions fairly, openly, and transparently. We have both an individual and
collective responsibility to meet these expectations by maintaining high standards and
demonstrating good conduct, and by challenging behaviour which falls below expectations.

Importantly, we should be able to undertake our role as a councillor without being
intimidated, abused, bullied or threatened by anyone, including the general public.

This Code has been designed to protect our democratic role, encourage good conduct and
safeguard the public’s trust in local government.

23.12.2020 Page 1 of 17

age 35



Introduction

The Local Government Association (LGA) has developed this Model Councillor Code of
Conduct, in association with key partners and after extensive consultation with the sector,
as part of its work on supporting all tiers of local government to continue to aspire to high
standards of leadership and performance. It is a template for councils to adopt in whole
and/or with local amendments.

All councils are required to have a local Councillor Code of Conduct.

The LGA will undertake an annual review of this Code to ensure it continues to be fit- for-
purpose, incorporating advances in technology, social media and changes in legislation. The
LGA can also offer support, training and mediation to councils and councillors on the
application of the Code and the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) and the
county associations of local councils can offer advice and support to town and parish
councils.

Definitions

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a “councillor” means a member or co-opted
member of a local authority or a directly elected mayor. A “co-opted member” is defined in
the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as “a person who is not a member of the authority but
who

a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or;
b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint sub-
committee of the authority;

and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that
committee or sub-committee”.

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, “local authority” includes county councils, district
councils, London borough councils, parish councils, town councils, fire and rescue
authorities, police authorities, joint authorities, economic prosperity boards, combined
authorities and National Park authorities.

Purpose of the Code of Conduct

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a councillor, in modelling the
behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set out
the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is also to protect
you, the public, fellow councillors, local authority officers and the reputation of local
government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of all councillors and your
specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct. The LGA encourages the use of
support, training and mediation prior to action being taken using the Code. The
fundamental aim of the Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of
councillor and local government.

23.12.2020 Page 2 of 17

Page 36



General principles of councillor conduct

Everyone in public office at all levels; all who serve the public or deliver public services,
including ministers, civil servants, councillors and local authority officers; should uphold
the Seven Principles of Public Life, also known as the Nolan Principles.

Building on these principles, the following general principles have been developed
specifically for the role of councillor.

In accordance with the public trust placed in me, on all occasions:

e | act with integrity and honesty
e | act lawfully
e | treat all personsfairly and with respect; and

e | lead by example and act in a way that secures public confidence in the role of
councillor.

In undertaking my role:

e | impartially exercise my responsibilities in the interests of the local community

e | do not improperly seek to confer an advantage, or disadvantage, on any
person

e | avoid conflicts of interest
e | exercise reasonable care and diligence; and

e | ensure that public resources are used prudently in accordance with my local
authority’s requirements and in the public interest.

Application of the Code of Conduct

This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of acceptance of
the office of councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted member and continues to
apply to you until you cease to be a councillor.

This Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacity as a councillor
which may include when:

e yOu misuse your position as a councillor

e Your actions would give the impression to a reasonable member of the public with
knowledge of all the facts that you are acting as a councillor;

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including:

23.12.2020 Page 3 of 17

age 37


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2

e at face-to-face meetings

e at online or telephone meetings
e in written communication

e in verbal communication

e in non-verbal communication

e in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and
comments.

You are also expected to uphold high standards of conduct and show leadership at all times
when acting as a councillor.

Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the Code of
Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from your Monitoring Officer on any
matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct. Town and parish councillors are
encouraged to seek advice from their Clerk, who may refer matters to the Monitoring
Officer.

Standards of councillor conduct

This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct required
of you as a councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a complaint may
be made against you, which may result in action being taken.

Guidance is included to help explain the reasons for the obligations and how they should be
followed.

General Conduct
1. Respect
As a councillor:

1.1 I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect.

1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of partner
organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with respect and
respect the role they play.

Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word.
Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a councillor, you
can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions and policies in a
robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject individuals, groups of people or
organisations to personal attack.

23.12.2020 Page 4 of 17

Page 38



In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude and
offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in councillors.

In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members of the
public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop any
conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the local authority, the
relevant social media provider or the police. This also applies to fellow councillors, where
action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct, and local authority
employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local authority’s councillor-
officer protocol.

2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination
As a councillor:

2.1 1do not bully any person.
2.2 1 do not harass any person.

2.3 | promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any
person.

The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as
offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power
through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying might be
a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on social media, in
emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social events and may not always
be obvious or noticed by others.

The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that causes
alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such conduct on at least
two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted communications and
contact upon a person in a manner that could be expected to cause distress or fear in any
reasonable person.

Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected
characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's

identity defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment,
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and
sexual orientation.

The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a central
role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's performance
and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment to equality
across public services.

23.12.2020 Page 5 of 17

age 39



3. Impartiality of officers of the council

As a councillor:

3.1 1do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority.

Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (unless they
are political assistants). They should not be coerced or persuaded to actin a way that would
undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to understand, for example,
their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they
have written. However, you must not try and force them to act differently, change their
advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their professional

integrity.
4. Confidentiality and access to information

As a councillor:

4.1 | do not disclose information:
a. givento mein confidence by anyone
b. acquired by me which | believe, or ought reasonably to be
aware, is of a confidential nature, unless
i. lhavereceived the consent of a person authorised to give it;

ii. lam required by law to do so;

iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of
obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third
party agrees not to disclose the information to any other
person; or

iv. the disclosure is:

1. reasonable and in the public interest; and

2. made in good faith and in compliance with the
reasonable requirements of the local authority; and

3. | have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its
release.

4.2 | do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role as a
councillor for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family members,
my employer or my business interests.

4.3 1 do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by
law.

Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and printed
materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined circumstances. You should
work on this basis, but there will be times when itis required by law that discussions,
documents and other information relating to or held by the local authority must be treated in
a confidential manner. Examples include personal data relating to individuals or information
relating to ongoing negotiations.

23.12.2020 Page 6 of 17

Page 40



5. Disrepute

As a councillor:

5.1 1do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute.

As a Councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and your
actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary members of the
public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact on you, other
councillors and/or your local authority and may lower the public’s confidence in your or your
local authority’s ability to discharge your/it's functions. For example, behaviour that is
considered dishonest and/or deceitful can bring your local authority into disrepute.

You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able to
constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes undertaken by
the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of Conduct.

6. Use of position
As a councillor:

6.1 | do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage or
disadvantage of myself or anyone else.

Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain opportunities,
responsibilities and privileges, and you make choices all the time that will impact others.
However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to further your own or
others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly.

7. Use of local authority resources and facilities

As a councillor:

7.1 1do not misuse council resources.

7.2 1 will, when using the resources of the local or authorising their use by

others:
a. act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; and
b. ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes unless

that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or be
conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the local authority or of
the office to which I have been elected or appointed.

You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you in
carrying out your duties as a councillor.

Examples include:

e office support

e stationery

e equipment such as phones, and computers

e transport

e access and use of local authority buildings and rooms.

23.12.2020 Page 7 of 17

age 41



These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively and
are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in accordance with
the purpose for which they have been provided and the local authority’s own policies
regarding their use.

8. Complying with the Code of Conduct
As a Councillor:

8.1 | undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority.

8.2 | cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or
determination.

8.3 I do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be
involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings.

8.4 | comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that | have
breached the Code of Conduct.

It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you to
have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the local
authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned about the local
authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with your Monitoring
Officer.

Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority
9. Interests
As a councillor:

9.1 | register and disclose my interests.

Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and
maintain a register of interests of members of the authority .

You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and fellow
councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. The register
is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The register
also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to be held
accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should
disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others think
that a potential conflict might arise. It is also important that the public know about any
interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other councillors when making or taking
part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. This
helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.

You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set
out in Table 1, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011.

Appendix B sets out the detailed provisions on registering and disclosing interests. If in
doubt, you should always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer.

23.12.2020 Page 8 of 17

Page 42



10. Gifts and hospitality
As a councillor:

10.1 1do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which
could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable
suspicion of influence on my part to show favour from persons seeking to
acquire, develop or do business with the local authority or from persons
who may apply to the local authority for any permission, licence or other
significant advantage.

10.2 Iregister with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an
estimated value of at least £50 within 28 days of its receipt.

10.3 Iregister with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or
hospitality that | have been offered but have refused to accept.

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should
exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably
believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption should always
be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a
refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could accept it but must
ensure it is publicly registered. However, you do not need to register gifts and hospitality
which are not related to your role as a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends
and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and
hospitality associated with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your
Monitoring Officer for guidance.

23.12.2020 Page 9 of 17

age 43



Appendices

Appendix A — The Seven Principles of Public Life

The principles are:

Selflessness

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.
Integrity

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not
act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends. They must disclose and resolve any interests and relationships.

Objectivity

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using
the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.

Openness

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner.
Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful
reasons for so doing.

Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.
Leadership

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should
actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor
behaviour wherever it occurs.

23.12.2020 Page 10 of 17

Page 44



Appendix B Registering
interests

Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must
register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in
Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register
details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2
(Other Registerable Interests).

“Disclosable pecuniary interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are
aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below.

"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband
or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners.

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28
days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered
interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the
councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to violence
or intimidation.

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with
the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer
agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register.

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not
participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room
unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not
have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest.
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate
and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is
being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function,
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or
further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other
Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at
the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter
and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it

23.12.2020 Page 11 of 17

age 45



is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest
or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a
financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed
to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote
on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of
the interest.

8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects —
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or
C. abody included in those you need to disclose under
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the
meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied

9. Where a matter affects your financial interest or well-being:
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
b. areasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it
would affect your view of the wider public interest

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to
speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on
the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation.

If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.
10.Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you have

made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must make sure that any
written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of your interest.

23.12.2020 Page 12 of 17

Page 46



Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the
Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Requlations 2012.

Subject Description
Employment, office, trade, Any employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation profession or vocation carried on for

profit or gain.
[Any unpaid directorship.]

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other
financial benefit (other than from the
council) made to the councillor during the
previous 12-month period for expenses
incurred by him/her in carrying out
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards
his/her election expenses.

This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract made between the
councillor or his/her spouse or civil
partner or the person with whom the

23.12.2020 Page 13 of 17

age 47


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made

councillor is living as if they were
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which
such person is a partner, or an incorporated
body of which such person is a director* or
a body that such person has a beneficial
interest in the securities of*) and the council
(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land and Property

Any beneficial interest in land which is
within the area of the council.

‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude,
interest or right in or over land which does
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were spouses/
civil partners (alone or jointly with another)
a right to occupy or to receive income.

Licenses

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to
occupy land in the area of the council for a
month or longer

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to the councillor's
knowledge)—

(a) the landlord is the council; and

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor,
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is living as
if they were spouses/ civil partners is a
partner of or a director* of or has a
beneficial interest in the securities* of.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a
body where—

(a) that body (to the councillor’'s
knowledge) has a place of business or

land in the area of the council; and

(b) either—

(i) ) the total nominal value of the
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share

capital of that body; or

(i) if the share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were

23.12.2020

Page 14 of 17

Page 48




spouses/civil partners has a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and
provident society.

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building
society.

Table 2: Other Registerable Interests

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is
likely to affect:

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you
are nominated or appointed by your authority

b) any body
(i) exercising functions of a public nature
(if) any body directed to charitable purposes or
(iif) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or trade union)

23.12.2020 Page 15 of 17

age 49



Appendix C —the Committee on Standards in Public Life

The LGA has undertaken this review whilst the Government continues to consider the
recommendations made by the Committee on Standards in Public Life in their report on
Local Government Ethical Standards. If the Government chooses to implement any of the
recommendations, this could require a change to this Code.

The recommendations cover:

e Recommendations for changes to the Localism Act 2011 to clarify in law when the
Code of Conduct applies

e The introduction of sanctions
e An appeals process through the Local Government Ombudsman

e Changes to the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
Regulations 2012

e Updates to the Local Government Transparency Code
e Changes to the role and responsibilities of the Independent Person

e That the criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011 relating to Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests should be abolished

The Local Government Ethical Standards report also includes Best Practice
recommendations. These are:

Best practice 1: Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and harassment in
codes of conduct. These should include a definition of bullying and harassment,
supplemented with a list of examples of the sort of behaviour covered by such a definition.

Best practice 2: Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct requiring
councillors to comply with any formal standards investigation and prohibiting trivial or
malicious allegations by councillors.

Best practice 3: Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each year and
regularly seek, where possible, the views of the public, community organisations and
neighbouring authorities.

Best practice 4: An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both councillors and
the public, in a prominent position on a council’s website and available in council premises.

Best practice 5: Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality register at least
once per quarter, and publish it in an accessible format, such as CSV.

Best practice 6: Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public interest test
against which allegations are filtered.

Best practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two Independent
Persons.

Best practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to undertake a
formal investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to

23.12.2020 Page 16 of 17

Page 50


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report

review and comment on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to dismiss
as being without merit, vexatious, or trivial.

Best practice 9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of misconduct
following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be published as soon as possible
on its website, including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of the code engaged by
the allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker,
and any sanction applied.

Best practice 10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible guidance
on its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the process for
handling complaints, and estimated timescales for investigations and outcomes.

Best practice 11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish councillor
towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by the parish council, rather than the clerk in
all but exceptional circumstances.

Best practice 12: Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice, support and
management of investigations and adjudications on alleged breaches to parish councils
within the remit of the principal authority. They should be provided with adequate training,
corporate support and resources to undertake this work.

Best practice 13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address any
conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps should
include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake the
investigation.

Best practice 14: Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up or which
they own as part of their annual governance statement and give a full picture of their
relationship with those bodies. Separate bodies created by local authorities should abide by
the Nolan principle of openness and publish their board agendas and minutes and annual
reports in an accessible place.

Best practice 15: Senior officers should meet regularly with political group leaders or group
whips to discuss standards issues.

The LGA has committed to reviewing the Code on an annual basis to ensure it is still
fit for purpose.

23.12.2020 Page 17 of 17

age 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Mome i/l > Publications nublications)

Guidance on Local Government Association Model
Councilior Code of Conduct

We are pleased to publish this supporting guidance which is aimed to help
understanding and consistency of approach towards the code. The code, together
with the guidance, has been designed to protect our democratic role, encourage
good conduct, and safequard the public's trust and confidence in the role of
councillor in local government,

08 Jup 2021

Part 1 - Introduction

In Decernber 2020, the Local Governmend Association (LGA) developed and published a2 Model Councillor Code of Conduct
[htipswewlocalgovukipublications/locsl-uovernment-association-model-counsilior-code-oonduct-20201 in association
with key pariners and following extensive consuitation with the secior. This was in response o the recommendation of the
Committee of Standards in Public life Local Government Ethical Standards 2019, The code was parl of our work on supporting alf
tiers of locat government to continue to aspire to high standards of leadership and performance, and cur civility in public iife
programmae.

The code is a template for Local Authorities to adopt in whole and or with amendments to take into account local dreumstances.

Cur airm was o make the code relatively short and easy {o read rather than an overly-complex legal document as it needed to be
accessible to councillors, officers, and the public alike. The consultation response also asked for supporting guidance to help
undsrstand some of the key provisions in greater depth with examples and case illustralions.

We are therefore pleased to publish this supporting guidance which is aimed to help understanding and consistency of appreach
towards the code.

The code together with the guidance have been designed to protect our democratic role, encourage good conduct, and safeguard
the public's trust and confidence In the role of coundillor in local government. While i sels out the minimum standards of behaviour
axpected, together with the guidance, it is designed {o encourage councillors to model the high standards expecied of counciliors,
io be mutually respectiul even If they have personal or political differences, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set cut
the tvpe of conduct that could lead io complaints being made of behaviour falling below the standards expected of councillors and
i braach of the code. it is also to protect counciliors, the publiic, local authority officers and the reputation of local government.

This guidance embeds the provisions of the code and is structured to enable each chapter to be direcily accessed. We have also
produced & standalone decument without the embedded code intended to provide easy access to the guidance.

The LGA will undertake an annual review of this guidance and the cade 1o ensure i continues o be it for purpose, incorporating
advances in technology, social media, case law and changes in legislation.

For the purposes of this guidance, we have adopled the definitions used in the Code of Conduct, for *counciilor” and “local
autharity”.

Any comments on the use of the guidance or suggestions for improvement wauld be weicomed and should be sent 0
ModelCode@incal govuk Imailio: ModelCode®ineal aov uk]

General principles of Councillor conduct

The Seven Principies of Public Life {also known as the Nolan Principles) outline the ethical standards those working in the public
seclor are expected to adhere to. The principles apply to ail ? ic offi z:eiérhgaders at el levels including ministers, civil servants,
councillors, and local authorily officers, as well as privale an risations delivering services paid for By pulc fq(sdisgp



The principles are sel out in Appendix 2 Thitos flwew. locel ooy ulifpublicatisns/ouldance-innalgovernmenl-assoatation.

3=

model-councilor-code.conduciannendivZaensralsrincinias ! helow,

These principles underpin the standards that counciliors should uphold and form the basis for the Code of Conduct, where the
principles hava been translated Into a series of clear rufes. While fundamental to the Coda of Condust, the principlas are nof part of
the rules of the code and should be used for guidance and interpretation only.

Application of the Model Counciliors’ Cods of Conduct

When does the Code apply?

527(2} of the Localism Act 2011 says that a [ocal authority must adept ‘a2 code dealing with the conduct that is expected of
members and co-opted members of the authority when they are acting in that capacity.’

The ferm ‘capacity’ is not further defined in the Act. However, the Model Code states that
The Cede of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacily as a councilior which may include when:

« you misuse your position as a councilior
= your actions would give the Impression 1o a reasonable member of the public with knowladge of all the facts that you are acting
as a councilior,

This means it applies when you are carrying out your official diuties, for example whan you are considering or discussing iocal
authority business, either as a councillor or representing the local authority on an outside body.

There is ne formal description of what the role of 2 councillor is. but aside from formal local authority business it would inciude
promoting and representing the local authority in the jocal community and acling as a bridge between the community and the local
authority, The LGA's Guidance

ihttesHwww loeal govultfsifes/defauitfles/documenis/11,168%20Councillors®200uide ™, 207049 08 0 ndfl for new
councillors is a helpful reference point.

The code does not, therefore, apply solely when you are in local authorily meetings or on incat authorily premises.

The code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including:

at face-to-face maetings

at online or telephons meetings
in written communication

in verbal communication

in non-verbal communications

in electronic and social media communication, posls, statements, and comments,

This includes inferactions with the public as well as with feliow councillors and local authority officers.

Acting as a private individusl

Faor something to fall within the cods there must be a ciear link to a local suthority function or your roie as a councillor. For exampie,
an argumert with a neighbour which does not relate to local authority business would nat engage the code, even if your neighbour
happens o know you are a councillor and therefore complains to the local authorily about being treated disrespectiuily,

Example

A councillor and an officer had a personal relationship, The councllior sent and encouraged the officer fo send inappropriate
social media messages, including messages of a sexual nature, during office hours. The pane! rejected arguments that the
councilior had been acting in an entirely personal capacity. it found that the councilior could not divorce himself from his role
as the officer’s guasi-employer and that, when sendin@zﬁ@{:&urgg&g the officer io send the messages during working

hours, he was acting in his officlal capacity. 2 Print A Top



it iz not always immediately apparent in which capacity you are acting, thersfors in situations where there may be amblguity it may
be helpful i you can make clear o people in which capacity vou are engaging with them,

White the Code does not apply o your non-counciflor roles, what you do as a councifior could impact on vour posiiion in those
ather roles.

Fuolitical party or group rufes may also require you as a counciilor to demonstrate certain behaviours as a private individua! and
failure (o do so can result in sanctions from political groups,

Under the Local Govaernment Act 1972 councillors can be disqualified from being a councilior due to matters in their privats fife,
such as being subject to a bankruptey order or receiving a custodial sentence of three months or langer (whether or not
suspended),

In what circumstances might | give the Impression to a reasonable member of the public that | was engaged on focal
authority business?

When you usg or attermpt to use your posilion as a councillor to seek to gailn an advantage for vourself or someone close (o you or
to digsadvantage someone this is an attempt 1o misuse your position and therefore falls within the scope of the Code of Conduct,

A number of factors will need (o be taken inlo accaunt to determine whether or not you had used or atiempted to use your position
as a cauncillor.

For example:

wriling 0 somaone on local authority headed paper or using a local authority emall address may lead someone
i0 assume you were writing in your capacity as a councillor

handing out a business card where you descaribe vourself as a councillor may also lead to that assumption

wearing official local authority regalia,

Examples

Attempting lo misuse your position as a souncillor would Include If you threaten o use your position improperly o block’s
someone’s planning, Heence or grant application. In effect yvou would be dolng something that only a councillor could do
avan if as a matter of fact, you did not have the power to do so. That may include an assumption, for example, that vou
would put inappropriate prassure on officers or fellow counciliors or lobby behind the scenes for a particular oulcome,
should not be up fo a member of the public to have fo work out whether you are in fact on a planning commities.

Another example would be disclesing confidential information improperly vou had received because of your role as a
counciifor,

A councillor returning from & party gotinto an argument with a taxi driver. Whan he arrived home, he refused 1o pay the fare
and when he spoke to the manager of the faxi company, he said thal he was a councillor and would make sure that the taxi
driver's ficence was withdrawn by the councll, Whils he was entitled to dispute the payment if he was dissatisfied with the
service he had received he was found (o have breached the code by invoking his office and seeking fo misuse hs position
to intimidate the manager and driver and lo seek to gain an advantage for himsel, notwithstanding the fact that he did notin
reality have the ability to carry out his threat,

Social media postings

Simply desoribing yourself 85 a councillor in & social media posting or at the top of your page or in your usermame or profile, for
axample, does not of Hself mean that every posting you make is coverad by the Code. Thare must be a link within the individual
posting or thread o your role as g councilior or to local authorily business. However, even if you do not describe yourseif as a
councilor you may fall within the scope of the code if vou are discussing local authority business,

Page 55

= Print & Top



For example, a posting which is simply discussing a recent football match is not covered by the code even if you have described
yourself as a counciflor. However, if you maks a posting threatening a feliow councifior or officer that would fall within the code even
if you have not described yourself as a councilior as it relates 1o local authority business or vour role as a councillor.

Each malter would need to be looked al on a case-by-case basis (gee guidance on ‘disrespect, bullving and harassment in
Part 2 for further information [hilns fwww lecsbosvukinublications/ouidancedoralboovernment-associationamodsl.
saunciliorepde-conductfinart-d-aeneral-obligations -underdhs-code-of-conducil b,

You should be very careful when describing yourself as a councilior as seeing the word "councilior” may lead o assumptions
amongst the community that you are acting as a councilor,

To help avoid seme of these issues, some councillors have found it helpful to have separate social media profiles for personal and
focal authority use, though even the strictest privacy seitings are no guarantee that posts or actions will remain private. As a rule of
thumb, never post anything online you would not be comfortable saying or sharing in a public meeting. If vour local authority has
guidance on the effective use of social medis this can help.

The LGA has published guidanee on counciliors [Blips/llocalaovukicounciiors.and-socialanadial and social media,

Examples

Foliowing a heavy snowstorm which meant @ local street market could not go ahead a councillor posted on the local
community Facebook page that & certain local authority officer should be sacked for falling o put adequate arrangements in
piace to clear the snow. Even though it was not posted on a local authority page and he did not explicilly describe himself
as a councilior in the post he was found (o have breached the code by treating an officer with disrespect and seeking to put
yridue pressure on officers.

A councitior who described himself as such in his Twitter profile made insulting and offensive comments about the Prime
Mindster which led to complaints being made 1o his local authority. He was found not to have breached the code as the
comments did nof directly refate {o his role as a councillor or local authority business but wers seen as wider polifical
comments.

What does acting as a representative of my local authority mean?

You are acting as a represeniative of the local authority when you are sitting on an cutside body to which you have been appoinied
by the local authority, for example.

You would also be considered a representative of the local authority where you were atlending an external function or conference
on behalf of the local authority or as the local authority's nominated delegate.

You would ot be considered as a representative of the local authority where you were atiending an avent in 2 pariy-political role,
for example at a political party’s annual conference. In that situation you would be subjact lo any relevant party rules,

Matters in party groun meetings would also normally not be covered by the code as they are more matters for a parly to regulate.
However, i you are clearly irying to improperly influence fellow councillors or put undue pressure on them in relation o local
authority business for example then relevant provisions of the code wouid apply. The same would apply 1o social medis groups you
may be a member of, such as & WhatsApp group set up for your focal authority group.

What i | sit on more than one local authority?

I you sit on mofe than one local authority, you are subject to the code and associated procedures of the local authority you are
representing at any one time, As such, i you are on g district councll and 2 parish council, you would be bound by the district code
when attending district councl meelings or speaking to district council officers: and bound by the parish council code when
attending parish councll meelings or speaking to parish councit officers.

Whers your local authorities have the same code, the same rules would apply and, for sxample, your complated register of
nterests should be the same on both tiers,
What is a co-opted member?

Tha code also appliss o co-opled members under ihe Localism Act. A co-opled member under the Act is somecne who is entilled
o vole on any malier o be decided at a local authority commities or sub-commitias.

Page 56

& Brint o Top



A parish councilior who has been co-opled to fil a casual vacancy where an election has not been beld 13 aise covered by the
Code of Conduct in the same way as if they had been slected.

i does not, therefore include co-opled members who do not have voling rights, nor does # cover, for example, an Independent
Harson appoinied under 528 of the Localism Act to support the local authorily on standards matiers.

Howaver, it would be good praclice to ask such councillors (o agree to abide by the code of conduct and to inform the monitoring
officer of any interests they might have. While they would not formally fall within the statutory framewark for complaint handling,
they can be remaved from their role by the local authorily should they be found fo have commitied a serious breach of the code so
it is important that they are also aware of the expected standards of behaviour,

Part 2 - General obligations under the Code of Conduct

Hespect

As a councillor:

1. | treat other councillors and members of the public with respect.
2. Hireat local autherity employees, employees and representatives of partner organisations and those volunteering for
the local authority with respect and respect the role they play.

Showing respect to others is fundamental to 3 oivil society. As an slected or appointed reprasentative of the public it is important to
treat others with respect and o act in 2 respectful way. Respect means politeness, courtesy and civility in behaviour, speach, and
ir the written word. 11 also relates to all forms of communications counciliors undertake, not just in meetings. Rude, offensive, and
disrespectful behaviour lowers the public's expectations and confidance in its elected representatives,

Respect

The key roles and responsibilities of councillors; representing and serving your communities and {aking decisions on their behalf,
require councitlors to interact and communicale effectively with others. Examples of councilior interaction and communication
include talking to constituents, altending local authority meetings, representing the local authority on ocutsids bodies, and
participating in community meetings and events. In turn this means that as & councilior you are required to interact with many
differant people, often from diverse backgrounds and with different or conflicting needs and points of view

You will engage in robust debate af imes and are expected {o express, challenge, criticise and disagres with views, ideas,
opinfons, and policies. Doing these things in a respectful way will help vou {o build and maintain healthy worling relationships with
fellow counciliors, officers, and members of the public, it encourages others to reat you with raspect and helps to aveid conflict and
siress. Respectful and healthy working relationships and a culture of mutual respect can encourage positive debate and meaningful
communication which i turn can increase the exchange of ideas, understanding and knowledge.

Examples of ways in which you can show respect are by baing polite and courtecus, lisiening and paying attention io others,
having consideration for ather people’s feslings, following protocals and rules, showing appreciation and thanks and being kind. In
a local government context this can mean using appropriale language in mestings and written communications, allowing othars
tme to speak without interruption during debates, focusing any criticism or challenge on ideas and policies rather than personalities
or personal aftnbutes and recognising the contribution of others to projecis.

Disrespectful behaviour

Failure to treal others with respect will occur when unreasonabie or demeaning behaviour s direcied by one person against or
about another. The clreumstances in which the behaviour ocours are relevant in assessing whether the behaviour is disrespectful,
The circumstances inchede the place whers the behaviour ocours, who observes the behaviour, the character and relationship of
the people involved and the behaviour of anyone whe prompts the alleged disrespect.

Disrespectful behaviour can take many different forms ranging from overt acts of abuse and disruptive or bad behaviour to
insidious actions such as bullying and the demeaning treatment of others. |t is subjective and difficulf io define. However, itis
important to remember that any behaviour thal 2 reasonable person would think would influence the willingness of feliow
councillors, officers or mambers of the public 1o speak up or interact with you because they expect the encounter will be unpleasant
or highly uncomioriable fits the definition of disrespactiul behavicur.

Examples of disrespect in a local government contexd might Include rude or angry cuthursts in meslings, use of inappropriste
lanquage in meetings or wrillen communications such as sweﬁmg sgngd someone whao is aliempling (o contribute to a

discussion, attempls to shame or humiliate others In public, n t» fauli-finding, the use of inappropriate SRS in ~ Top



communications and the sharing of malicious gossip or rumours.

Disrespectiul behaviour can be harmiul to both you and to others. it can lower the public’s expeciations and confidence in you and
vour local authority and councilicrs and politicians more generally, |t influences the willingness of fellow counciliors, officers, and the
public to speak up or interact with you becauss they expact the encounter will be unpleasant or uncomfortable, Ongoing
disrespectiul behaviour can undermine willingness of officers to give frank advice, damage morale at a local authority, and
ultimately create a foxic culiure and has been associaled with inslances of govemance failure.

Freedom of expression

The requirement to freat others wilh respect must be balanced with the right to Freedom of expression. Article 10 of the Europsan
Convantion on Hurnan Rights protecis your right to hold your own opinions and o express them freely without government
interference. This includes the right to express your views aloud or in writing, such as in published articles or leaflets or an the
internet and social media. Protection under Article 10 exiends to the expression of views that may shack, disturb, or offend the
deaply-held beliefs of others.,

Howsver, Article 10 18 not an absolute but a qualified right which means that the rights of the individual must be balanced sgainst
the interests of society. Whether a restriction on freedom of expression is justified is ikely to depend on a number of {actors,
including the identity of the speaker. ihe context of the speech and iis purpose, as well as the actual words spaken or written,
Demogracy depends on people being fres o express, debate and criticise opposing viewpoinis. The courts have generaily held
that the right to free expression should not be curtailed simply because other people may find it offensive or insulling. A balance
rriust sl be struck between the right of individuals to express points of view which others may find offensive or insulting, and the
rights of others to be protecied from hatred and discrimination.

Freedom of expression is protected more strongly in some contexds than others, in particular, a wide degree of tolerance s
accorded (o political speech, and this enhanced protection applies {o ali levels of politics, including local government. Aricle 10
protects the right to make incorrect but honestly made statements in a political context but it does not protect statemenis which the
publisher knows to be false. Polilical expression is a broad concept and is not timited to expressions of or criticism of political views
but extends ta all matters of public administration including comments about the performance of public duties by others. However,
gratuitous personal commenis do not fall within the dafinition of political expression,

Fublic servants such as local government officers are subject to wider levels of sccepiable criticism than other members of the
public when matters of public concern are being discussed. Howsver, the limits are not as wide as they are for elected politicians
such as counciliors. Officers do not necessarily have the same right of reply 1o such comments as eouncillors do and councillors
shouid take care not to abuse or exploit this imbalance.

Recent case law has confirmed thal incal authority officers should be protected from unwarranied comments thal may have an
adverse sffect on good administration and stafes that it is in the public interest that officers are not subject to offensive, abusive
attacks and unwarranted comments that prevents thern from carrying out their dulies or undermine public confidence in the
adminigtration. That said, officers who are in more senior positions, for example chief executives or heads of services, will also be
expected (e have g greater degree of robustness,

is the Respect provision of the code 3 gag on councillors?

This provision of the Code (Paragraph 1} is not intended to stand in the way of lively dehate in local authorities, Such discussion is
& cruckal part of the democratic process, Differences of opinion and the defence of those opinions through councillors’ arguments
and public debate are an essential part of the cut and thrust of politicat iife. Counciliors should be able io express their opinions and
concerns in forceful terms. Direct language can sometimes be appropriate to ensure that matters are deait with properly. The code
Is not intended o siifie the expressions of passicn and frustration that ofien accompany discussions about local authority business.

Can councillors criticise officers?

Yes. in some cases, officers have been known to reject ressonable cniticism approprintely made and describe it as disrespectiul or
bullying. The Code of Conduct is not infended to consirain counciiors” involvament in local governance, including the role of
counciliars to challenge performance. Councillors can question and probe poor officer performance provided i is done in an
appropriate way. In the everyday running of a local authority, it is inavilable that counciliors may have disagreements with officers
from time o time.

Tris paragraph of the code does not mean that counciilors cannot express disagreement with officers. This disagreement might, in
the appropriate context, manifest isel in criticism of the way in which an officer or officers handled particufar mattsrs.

i is impartant that counciflors ralse Issues about poor performance in the correct way and at the appropriate forum in accordance
with your local authorily’s processes and procedures, and not in a public meeting or through a published attack in the media.

Page 58

& Print A Top



Alt locat authorities should have clearly defined policies, procedures, and oocasions where such issues can be properly raised. it is
only where councillors’ caonduct is unfalr, unreasonable, or demeaning that the code will be relfevant. If 3 councillor's criticism is
abusive or offensive itis lkely to breach the code.

What kinds of conduct are nof covered?

A very clear line must be drawn belween the Code of Conduct's requiremeant of respect for athers, including counciliors with
oppusing views, and the freedom lo disagres with the views and opinions of others, In 8 democracy, members of public bodies
shouid be able o express disagreement publicly with each ather,

What if a member of the public is being unnscessarily disrespectfil to me?

Counzillors are allowed to respond to criticlsm, and where that criticism is robust, then they can be robust in response. Howsaver,
councillors shouid always seek o ry 1o be civil and demonsirate leadership in their communication. Even where counciliors have
been wrongly sccused, responding in an anary, defensive way can oftan ascalate the situstion,

There has been a growing tendency for membaers of the public to use social media channels to unfairly criticise lacal councillors,
For this reason, many local authorities now offer social media guidance to counciliors in addition to the civility in public iife
resources available on the LGA's website [hitps /fwww local sov uliour-supnortioyidance-andoresourcesioivility-publicifel

Examples

The complaint alleged that the councillor posted on their blog a highly oritical commaent and an offensive caption about 3
former councitior, who had passed away and whose funeral had taken place the previous day. The councifior was found fo
have breached the provisions of his local authority's Code of Conduct relating to counciliors freating others with respect; as
well s conducting themselves in a mannar which could reasonably be regarded as bringing their role or thelr authority into
disrepute,

The compiaint alleged that a councilior commented under a pssudonym on a local authority biog referring to possible
nepotism in the awarding of a contract 1o a local firm by the local authority. The standards committee found thal the
councilior had breached the Code of Conduct in making the posts because he had failed to treat others with respect and, in
doirtg so, he had condusted himself in a manner which brought his role and his local autherity into disrepute,

The complaint alleged that a counciller had made remarks of an abusive, insulting and personal nature fo the complainant,
a police officer, and also made a number of unfounded allegations about him during fwo telephone calis io a police station
made in his capacity as a ward councifior. it was found that the comments amountad t© an unacceptable personal attack on
the compiainant and that the councillor had breached the respect provisions in his local authorily's Code of Conduct.

Bullying

As a councillor:
4

1.1, I do not bully any person.

Bullying, harassment, discrmination, and victimisation {either directly or indirectly) are unacceptable and should not be wilerated. |t
is important to recognise the impact such behaviour can have on any individual experiencing it, as well as on the wider organisation
in terms of morale and operational effectiveness.

Bullying may be characterised as offansive, intimidating, malicious, insuliing, or humnitiating behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power
that can make 2 person feel vuinerable, upset, undermined, humiliated, denigrated or threatenad, Power does not always mean
being in a position of authority and can include both personal strength and the power to coerce through fear or intimidation. Bullving
may be obvious or be hidden or insidious. Such conduct is usually part of & pattern of behaviour which attempts o undermine an
individuat or a group of individuals, is delrimantal to thelr confidence and capability, and may adversely affect their health,

Bullying can take the form of physieal, verbal, and non-verbat conduct but doss not need to be related to protected characieristics.
Bullying behaviour may be In person, by telephone or in writing, including emails, texts, or online communications such as soclal
media. The standards of behaviour sxpected are the same, whether you are expressing yourself verbally or in writing.

Page 59

= Print o~ Top



Hullying can aflect anyone, In any career, at any time, at any level and within any workplace. Such behaviour can take the form of
easlly noliced, physically threatening or intimidatory conduct with immiediate impact, or i can take place behind closed doors, or be
much more sublls or camouflaged and difficull to identify, at least al first. it can start, for example, with what appear {0 be minor
instances, such as routine 'nil-picking’ or fault-finding, bul which become cumulative or davelop into more serous behaviour over
time, enabling the perpetrator to isolate and control the person.

Some bullies iack insight inte thelr behaviour and are unaware of how others perceive 1, Others know exactly what they ars doing
and will continue to bully if they feel they are unlikely to be challenged, Bullying can somelimes be overlooked, a8 a result of
commaon euphemisms being used by way of explanation or justification, referring to someaone as having a “poor leadership style” or
& "bad attitude,” for example, or o the problem being due o 3 "personality clash’™.

You should always be mindiul of the overall potential impact of the behaviour on others. First and foremost, bullying can have a
significant impact on the recipient’s well-being and heaith. Bullyving can have an impact on a local authority's effective use of
resources and provision of services, Officers who are subject lo bullying are frequently away from their posts, sometimes for
extendad periods, on sickness or stress-related leave. Bullyving can impact on a councilior's ability to represent their residents
sffectively. It can also discourage candidates from standing in local elections, making iocal authorities less represeniative of their
communities, and impacting local democracy.

Like digraspectiul behaviour, bullying can be difficult to define. When allegations of bullying are considersd i¥'s (ikely that the person
handling the complaint will consider both the perspective of the alleged victim, and whether the councilior intended their actions o
be bullying. Thay will also consider whether the individual was reasonably entitled to halieve they wers being bullied.

Conduct is unkkely to be considered as buliying when it is an isolated incident of a minor nature, where it is targeted at issues,
rather than at an individual's conduct ar behaviour, or when the behaviour by both the complalnant and councillor coniributed
gqually to the breakdown in relations, However, the cumulative impact of repested ‘minos incidents should not be underestimated.

Examples of bullying include bul are not limited 1o

« verbal abuse, such as shouting, swearing, threats, insulls, sarcasm, ridiculing or demeaning others, inappropriate nicknames, or
humiliating language

= physical or psychological threats or actions towards an individual or their personal property

« practical jokes

= overbearing or intimidating levels of supervision, including preventing someone from underiaking their role or following agreed
poficies and procedures

« inappropriate commants about someong’s performance

- abuse of authority or power, such as placing unreasonable expeciations on someone in relation (o their job, responsibiliies, or
hours of work, or cogrcing semeone to meet such expeciations

« ostracising or excluding someans from meelings, communications, work events or socials

« serding, distributing, or posting detrimental material about other peonle, including images, in any medium

= smear campaigns.

Fresdom of expression 'Respect’ guldance Part 2 [hitns/Jwww localopvukipyblicationsfouidancetneab-oovernment-
asspcintipnnedelcounailior-code conductrasnectful-bohaviour.

Boes this mean that councillors cannot raise concerns about officers or feliow counciliors?

Bullying behaviour shoutd be contrasted with the legitimate chalienges which a councifior can maks in challenging policy or
scrutinising performance. An example of this would be debates in the chamber about policy or asking officers to explain the
rationale for the professional opinfons they have put forward. You are entitied to challenge feilow councitiors and officers as (o why
they hold thelr views. However, i your criticlsm is a personal threat or abusive or offensive in nature, you are likely o cross the fine
of what is acceplable behaviour,

Preventing bullying conduct from developing

ideally, a culture of honest and clear communication should be sought, with respect for the individuat and for the confidentiality
reguired when managing individual performance-related issuss. The bullying of officers might be reduced by esiablishing a specific
protoooi, which addresses issues such as councilfor-officer work relations and appropriaie behaviour,

The protocol for parish and town councils can include such simple but imporiant malters as acceptable Umes to contact the clerk by
telephone at homs or call at the clerk’s homes on coundlt business,

Local authority officers and parish clerks also need to be mindful that councillors can come from a wide range of backgrounds and
may have been part of workplaces where the culture and expected standards are very different from what the derk or officers

expect; as a resull. the councitlor simply may not be awaaPﬁ@@m@@thai their communioations have had on the olark ne officsr
& Print o~ Top



Early discussion about emerging issues is important o help avold matters escalating and help establish mors effective working
arrangaments for the fulure.

Bullying and harassment and the law

frr some cases, acts of buliying or harassment can be oivil offencas, which can be brought (o an employment inbunal or a county
court,

in some cases, conduct that amounis to buliving and harassment may also amount o oriminal offences, which can be ed inthe
eriminal courts, There i3 not an exhaustive list of acts of bullying or harassment that may constitule a criminal offence, Examples
may include, but are not imited to:

« physical assaull

« making threats of viclence or death thrests
« stalking

« hate crimes

« sexual harassment

intimidation of counciliors

Councillors can face behaviours which could amount to bullying and intimidation when carrving out their role.

The LA and the Welsh Local Government Association recognise the growing need among councillors for support relaled to
intimidation and have jointly developed a "Councillors’ guide to handiing intimidation. Fractical steps that you and your local
authority can undertake to protect vourself as a person in a public position”

thittos iwww local sovuldsitesidefault fles/documents Full% 20word% 20english ™2 0version® 2 0aulde %20 r% 2 B ounailiors’
. The guide covers fopics such as how to handie abuse, both face-lo-face, lellers or online, guidance on personal safely, lone
waorking and onling abuse and the legal and practical remediss, including the nature of the criminal offences involved. It will be
cortinuously updated with the latest advice and information svailable.

Harassment

As a councillor:

1.
1.1, i do not harass any person.

The Protection from Marassment Act 1997 slates that harassment includes behaviour which alarms 2 persan or CBUSES & person
distress or puls peaple in fear of viclence and must involve such conduct on al least two accasions. I can include repeated
atternpts o impose unwanted communications and contact upon a victis in a manner that could be expected o cause distress or
fear in any reasonable person. Harassment of any kind whether direct or indirect is in no-one's interest and should not be olerated.
i is important io recognise the impact such behaviour can have on any individual experiencing i, as well as on the wider
arganisation in lerms of morale and operational effectiveness.

Like bullying, harassment can take the form of physical, verbal, and non-verbal conduct but doss not need o be relaled o
predected characteristics. Harassment may be in person, by telephong or inowrlting, including emails, texts, or onling
communications such as social media, It may manifest chviously or be hidden or insidicus.

The factors likely o be considered when assassing allegations of harassment are whather the councillor knows or cught to know
that their actions constitute harassment, whether a reazonable person would consider the actions to be harassmen and the impact
of the behaviour/conduct on victim.,

Examples of harassment include but ars nof limited io;

= sending unwelcame smails

- unnecessarily repetitive, intrusive questioning

» unwelcomes physical contact such as touching or invading persona! space’

=« haranguing

+ intimidation

= nappropriate ramarks or guestioning such as comments aboul someone’s appearance, lewd comments, and offensive jokes

« overhaaring or intimidating levels of supervision, including preventing somsane from underiaking their role or following agreed
policies and procedures

= inappropriate comments about someone's parformances

Page 61

£ Print & Top



« placing unreasonable expeciations on someones in relalion to their job, responsibilities, or hours of work, of corging somaons io
mest such expeciations
= sexual harassment

What does the law sav about harassment?
httns dwww local dov uksites/default/filos/documentsFuli% word % 2ienalis % 20version®% 2 0ouide Y 3080 20councillors'

in some cases, acts of harassment can be civil offences, which can be brought 1o an employment tribunal or county court,

In some cases, conduct that amounts to harassment may alse amount to criminal offences, which can be tried in the criminal
courts. Thers is nol an exhaustive st of acts of harassment that may constitute a criminal offence. Examples may includs, but are
aot limited to physical assaull

= making violent or death threais
« stalking

= hale crimes

= saxual harassment

Example

The complaind alleged that 2 councilior had behaved in a disrespectful and harassing mannar towards two fellow fermale
councillors and officers. ft was established that the councillor had made unwarranted and inagpropriaie physical contact
with the councillors and officers at an official event and had also made remarks towards the officers which were patronising
and demeaning. The councillor was found to bean in breach of the Code of Conduct.

Discrimination

As a councillor:

2.3 I promote equalities and do not discriminate uniawfully against any person.

Counciliors have a ceniral role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral o the local authority's performance and strategic
aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment to eguality across public sarvices.

The Enuality Act 2010 imposes positive duties on local authoritiss to promote equality and to sliminate unlawful discrimination and
harassment. Under the Act your authority may be Hable for any discriminalory acts which vou cormwnit, This will apply when vou do

something in your official capacity in a discriminatory manner, You must be careful not to act in a way which may amount fo any of

the prohibited forms of discrimination, or to do anything which hinders your authority's fulfilment of iis positive duties under the Act.
Such conduct may cause your authority to break the law, and you may find yourself subject to a complaint that vou have breached
this paragraph of the Code of Conduct, If you are unsure about the particular nature of the duties of your authority yvou should seek
advice from the monitoring officer ar parish clerk.

Urdawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected characteristic, Protecled characteristics are
spacific aspects of a parson's identity defined by the Eguality Act 2010, They are:

e HOE
» disability

« gender reassignment

« marriags and civil partnership
s pregnancy and maternity

s FaLe

« refigion or belief

« sax and sexual orentation

Theare are four main forms of discrimination:

Birect discrimination: trealing people differently because of their ags, disability, gender reassignment, marriage or civil
partnership, pregnancy or maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, or sexual crientation,

Page 62

& Print & Top



indirect discrimination: treatment which does not appear o differentisie befween people because of their age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage or oivil parinership, pragnancy or matermnity, race, religion or belief, sex, or sexual orientation but which
disproportionately disadvantages them,

Harassment: engaging in unwanted conduct on the grounds of age, disabilily, gender reassignment, marriage or civil partnership,
pregnancy or malernity, race, religion or belief, sex, or sexus!| orentation, which viclates another person's dignity or creatas a
hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment,

Victimisation: frealing & person less favourably because they have complainad of discrimination, brought proceedings for
discrimination, or been involved in complaining about or bringing proceedings for discrimination.

Examples of discriminatory behaviour include but are not imited to

« exclusion or viclimisation based on the Profected Characteristics

= frealing someons less favourably or limiting thelr opporiunities based on any of the Protected Characiaristics

« comments, shirs, jokes, statements, guestions, or gestures that are derogatory or offensive o an individual's or group’s
characteristics

= promoting negative stersotypes relating to individual's or group’s characteristics

« racial or ethnic slurs, insults, or jokes

« intolerance toward religious customs

= mimicking, mocking, or belittling a person’s disability

« homophobic, biphabic or transphobic comments or shirs

« discriminating against pregnant people or molhers

« declaring {fouting’) someone's religion or sexuality or threatening to do so against their will

« deliperats, unwarranied application of an authoity's practics, policy or rule in 8 way that may constitute indirect diserimination

« instructing, causing, inducing, or knowingly helping someone to commit an act of unlawhi discrimination under the Equality Act
2014,

A counciliors personality and life experiences will naturally incline them to think and act in certain ways. They may form views
about others based on those experiences, such as having an affinity with someone because they have a simiar approach to life or
thinking less of someone because they are from a different generation. This is known a8 "uneonscious bias” and i can lead people
to make decisions based on biases or {alse assumptions. Councillors need to be aler! (o the polential of unconscious bias and
ensure they make decisions based on evidence, and not on assumptions they have made based on biases.

Questions
How can councillors cause their authority to be in breach of the Equality Act?

The Code of Conduct is not infended to stifle demaecratic debate. Councillors should always remember that Article 10 of the
European Convention on Muman Rights gives a high level of protection to comments that are genuinely mads during political
debate, even if most people would find them offansive.

Some councillors have particular roles which may give a higher risk for the potentia! for discrimination; for example, if you are on an
appointrment pane!l for a posiiion in the local authority, or you are able to award local granis in your ward and will need to decide
which organisations {o support.

Merely arguing, or even voling, against 2 proposal which is aimed at complying with & positive andi-diseriminatory duty would nof be
enough by tself to risk breaking this part of the code. Simply having a party-polifical or personal position on an issue is unlikely to
amouni to 2 breach of this provision because it does not, of itself, involve the locel authority doing anything,

Under the Equality Act 2010, an authority is made liable for any discriminatory acts which a councillor commits. This will apply
whare they say or do something in their official capacity In a disciminatory mannar,

Examples

The complaint alleged thal a councillor 'Bked” sevaral racially discriminatory comments on social media and one commend
advocating violencs against Travellers. The panel found that 'Liking of the offensive cormments did amount to a fallure o
treat those who wers the sublect of such comments with respect and a failure to promote aqualities in breach of the Code of
Canduat.

A councilior was a member of the local authority's recruitment panel 1o appoint a new chief execulive. Five applicants were
shorilisted. After ane candidate had finished his presentation and left the room the councilior sald, “good candidate, shams
he's black™. The pansl found that the Code of Conduct habtﬁazéf%rged.

& Print A~ Ton



impartiality of officers

As a councillor:

3.1 do not compromise, or altampt to compromise, the Impartiallty of anvone who works for, or on behalf of, the local
suthority.

(Hiicers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral {unless they are political assistanis). They should not
be coerced or persuaded o act in 8 way that would undermine thelr nsutrality. You can gueston officers in order to understand, for
example, their reasons for proposing to act in 2 particular way, or the content of 2 report that they have written, However, vou must
not iry and force them o act differenily, change thelr advice, or alter the content of that report, I doing so would prejudics their
profassional integrity,

Both councillars and officers are servanis of the public and are indispensable to ons another. Togsther, they bring the critical skills,
experience and knowledge required o manage an effective local authorily,

At the heart of this relationship, is the importance of mutual respect. Councilior-officer relationships should be conducled in a
posiiive and constructive way. Therefore, it is imporiant that any dealings between councillors and officers should observe
reasonable standards of courtesy, should show mutual appreciation of the importance of their respeclive roles and that neither
party should seek {o iake unfair advaniage of thelr position or seel to exert undus influence on the other party.

Councillors provide a democratic mandate o the local suthonity and are responsible (o the electorate whom they represant. Thay
set thelr local autharity's policy framework, ensure thal services and policies are delivered and scrutinizs focal authority services.

Councillors of the executive, chairs and vice chairs of committess have additional responsibiliies. These responsibiiiies will result
inincreased expectations and relationships with officers that are more complex. Such counciliors must stilf respect the impartiality
of officers and must not ask them to underiake work of a party-political nature or compromise their position with other councillors or
ather officars.

Officers provide the professionat advice and managerial expertise and information needed for decision making by councifiors and
ta deliver the policy framework agreed by counclilors. They are responsible for implementing decisions of counciliors and the day-
to-day administration of the local autharity.

The roles ara very different bul need o work in 2 complementary way.

# iz important for both sides lo respect these diferences and enswre that they work in harmony. Getting that relationship right is an
important skill, That is why the code requires counciilors o respecdt an officer’s impartiality and professional experiise. In turn
officers should respect a councilior's dermocratic mandate as the pecple accouniable o the public for the work of the local authorily.
His also imporiant for g local authority to have a councillor-officer protocol which sets out how this relationship works and what bath
councillors and officers can expect in terms of mutual respect and good working relationships,

Officers may sometimes give you advice thal you do not want 1o hear or does not sult your political views, They must be allowed o
de this without fear of recriminalions (o allow for good decisinn-making looking at gl relevant options,

That means in your dealing with officers vou must nol seek o influence them improperty or put undue pressure on them, For
example, vou should not get officers o kelp you prepare party political material, or {0 help you with matters relating to your private
business. You should not provide or offer any incentive or reward in return for acting In a particular way or reaching a particular
decision.

Other than political assistants, officers are requirsd 1o remain politically neutral and not demonsirate their suppart for specific
parties or candidates.

The fundarmentally held principle is that “the local government system of the UK has long resided on & bond of frust between
elected members and a permanent corps of local government officer. . that relationship of trust stems from the right of council
members 1o expect thal they are being assislad in their funclions by officers who are politically neutral and whose lovalty I8 i the
council as a wholel1l g fni11 "

Examples

Page 64

S Print A Top



& councillor became involved in 8 social care case on beha!f of 2 constifuent during which time he Inappropriately soughi i
influgnce operations! declsion-making and sent discourleous and disrespectiul comrespondence to the officers. In doing so,
ha lost sight of his overall responsibility to the local authority o allow s officers o petform their statutory funclions. He was
found to have breachad the Code of Conducl

A councilior who, over a perod of six months, persistenily sought to influence the decisions of officers dealing with &
camplaint by his son and daughter-in-law against thelr local authority tenant neighbour was found, through his actions, o
have compromised the impartialily of the officers and (o have used his position improperly to promote the interast of his
family and to have brought the role of councillor info disrepute In breach of the Code of Conduct,

What does working on behalf of the authority mean?

Local Authorities deliver services in g range of ways. Oflen services will have been cantracied out {o outside bodies, For example,
{ you are in a highway authorily, road repair services may be carried out by oulside contractors. Their amplovess defivering that
contract are doing so on behalfl of the local authorlty and you should not use your position o interfers improperly in delivery of that
SEIVICE.

What if | disagree with the views of an officer?

You are perfectly entitled to disagree with officars. They are there to give you impartial professional advice and you do not nesd to
accapt their advice without guestion. When vou do question them however, you should treat them with respect and recognise that
they are professionals,

if you feel dissatisfied with the advice you are given you should raise through appropriate managsment channels In ling with your
local authority's councillor-officer protoco! (where you have one)see guidance on respect, bullying and harassment in Part 2,
ihttos:Hwerwlocal govukipublications/guldance-gcal-novernment.association-medel-councilor-code-conductibullving

Where you have a dectarable interest In 2 matier you are discussing with an officer you should make that clear o the officer - see
guidance on declarations of interest in Part 3. [Bilps:ffwwwlocaslogovubinublinationsfouldancedocabgovernment.
asgoiatiore-modebesuneillnecode-conducifideciarationsofintersat] Where it is an interast which would stop you from taking
part in & meeting you should not discuss those matters with officers except whare you are sesking professional advice in the same
way as any member of the public could — for example, assistance with making an application — and the officer should make a note
that an interest has been declared. f you need (o speak (o an officer about the matter, you should arrange a meeting as a member
of the public and not seek to use your position o gain preferential or quicker access.

(1] Ahmed v United Kingdom {20007 29 EHRR 1

HMaving regard {o Officer advice

Counciliors take decisions every day that affect the lives of those who live and work within vour community. it s therefore important
that those decisions are made having regard to all available evidence and welghing up all sides of the argument

Decisions can be challenged if they are unreasonable, and the {ooal authority could find Hself facing an expensive legal bl iF it
takes a decision which is unlawiul. When considering any decision, vou must have regard o any professional advice you have
been offered, for example from planning or licensing officers. Both the monitoring officer and the chisf finance officer have a
statutory duty to report formally 1o the local authority where they belisve 8 local avthorily action or expenditure is, ar may ba,
unfawiul. Similarly, whean it comes to elections, you will need {o have regard o any advice given 1o you by the refurning officer who
rray well be @ senior officer but in that capacity is entirely independent of and separate from the local authority and is reguired to be
politically neutral.

You must alse give reasons for all decisions in accordance with statutory reguirements and any reasonable requirements imposed

by your local authority, Giving reasons for decisions is particudarly important in relation to regulatory decisions and decisions where
people’s rihis are affacted. Where counciliors disagree with officer recommendations in making z decision, councillors will nead 1o
take parficular care in giving clear reasons for the decision,

if vou seek advice as an individual counclifor, or advice is ofered to vou, for exampls, on whether or not vou should register or
declare an inlerest, you must have regard to this advice before vou maks your mind up. Fallure o do so may lead (o a breach of
the Code of Conduct.

if in any doubt — be safe and always seek advice from vour monitoring officer before taking any action.

Local authorities have protocols for councilior-officer reéaiisn%a@ec&%ﬁticm which are accessible on thelr wabsiles,
& Print ~ Top



The LGA published ©

ihttns fwwrwocaloovukisites/defauitfiiss/documeniall1 1, 1419 20A % 20 ounnillor¥ 2 7% 20wnrkbook Y 2 ton %2 Deoungilior »
A councillor's workbook on effective councillorofficer relationships 20618

Ihttos eww iocal gov allsies/defouitfles/documents[11, 14 1% 204% 20 counclilor 27s% Mhworkbook ™2 0on% 2Gcoungilior »

3%

intips:fwww looel goveldsites/default/files/docyments/1 1141 % 20A% 20counciller% 27s%20workbook % 20en % 20aouneitior »
. This workbook has been designed as a distance isarning aid for local counciliors. # forms part of the suile of LGA resources
intended fo provide councillors with insight and assistance into Key skills and knowledge. # is designed o provide a foundation for
effective working as you progress in your counciilor caraer, from the ward level o holding a leading counciilor position. The

workbook has been updated fo contaln information and examples obialned from the LGA's work on the ground in focal authorities
and through the Corporate Peer Challenge programme Intins Hweew lossloovuliour-sunnortneer-chatisnoesineer.
ghalleneesaws-offer] | and to reflgct the changing nalure of the counciilor and officer relationship.

Confidentiality and access fo information

As g councillor:

4.1 | do not disclose information:

a. given to me in confidence by anyone
b. acquired by me which | believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a confidential nature, unless

» | have received the consent of a person authorised to give i,

« {am required by law to do so;

= the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third
party agrees not {o disclose the information to any other person; or

= the disclosure is:

1. reasonable and in the public interest; and
Z. made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the local authority; and
3. t have consulted the monitoring officer prior to ils release,

4.2 | do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role as a councilior for the advancement of myself,
my friends, my family members, my employer, or my business interests.

4.3 | do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by law.

Local authorities must work openly and transparently. Thelr proceedings and printed materials are open o the public, except in
certain legally defined circumstances. You should work on this basis, but there will ba times when it is required by law that
discussions, documents, and other information relating o or held by the local authority must be treated in 8 confidential manner.
Examples include personal data relating to individuals or information relfating to ongoing negotiations.

Confidential information

While local authority business is by law generaliy open and local authorltiss should always operale as bransparently as possibie,
there will be times - for example, when discussing a namead individual, confidential HR matlers or commaercialiy sensitive
information — when it s appropriate for local authority business (o be kept confidential or treated as exempt information.

In those clroumstances, you must not disciose confidential information, or information which vou belleve io be of a confidential
nature, unless:

@

you have the consent of the person authorised to give i

= you gre required by law to do so

the disclosure s made to g third party for the purpeses of oblaining professional ardvice (for example, your lawyer or other
professional adviser) provided that parson agrees not (o disclose the information to any other person

the disclosure is in the public interest

@

&

{lisclosure in the public interest

Disclosure 'in the public inferest’ is only justified in imited circumstances, when all the following four requirements are met’

« the disclosure must be reasonable

- the disclosure must be in the public interest Page 66
& Print o~ Top



= the disclosure must be made in good faith
= the disclosure must be made in compliance with any reasonable requirements of your authorily

in refation to the disclosure of confidential information in the public interest, the four requirements are outlined in more detall below.

1. The first requirement, that the disclosure must be reasonable, requires vou 1o consider matlers such as:

Whether you belleve that the information disciosed, and any allegation contained in i, |5 substantially true. i
vou do not believe this, the disclosure is unlikely 1o be reasonable.

Whether vou make the disclosurs for personal gain, if vou are paid to disclose the information, the disclosure is
undikely to be regsonable.

The identity of the person to whom the disclosure is made. It may be reasonable to disclose information fo the
police or lo an appropriate regulator, s less likely 1o be reasonable for yvou to disclose the information {o the
world at farge through the madia,

The extent of the information disciosed. The inclusion of unnecessary detall, and in particular, private matiers
such as addrasses or telephone numbers, is likely {0 render the disclosure unreasonable.

The sericusness of the matier, The more serfous the maller disclosed, the more Hkely it is that the disclosure
will be reasonable.

The timing of the disclosure. If the matier to which the disclosure relates has already oocurred, and is unlikely
sy poour again, the disclosure may be less likely to be reasonable than if the maller is continuing or is Bkely o
reooourn.

Whether the disclosure involves your authority failing in a duty of confidence owed lo anocther person,

2. The second requirement, that the disclosure must be in the public interest, needs (o involve one or more of the following matters
or something of comparable seriousness, that has either happened in the past, is currently happening, or is likely o happen in the
future:

= a criminal offence s commitied.

yvour local authonity or some ather person falls o comply with any legal obligation fo which they are subiscl,
a miscarriage of justice ooours.

the health or salety of any Individual is in danger,

= the environment is Bkely to be damaged.

= that information tending o show any matter falling within the above is deliberately concealad.

L3

&

3

3. The third reguirement, that the diselosure is made in good faith, will not be met if vou act with an ulterior motive, for exampls, to
achieve g parly-political advaniage or lo selile a score with a political opponent.

4. The fourth requirement, that you comply with the reasonable reguiremenis of yvour local authority, means that before making the
disclosure you must comply with vour local authority’s policles or protocols on matters such as whistle-blowing and confidential
information. You must first raise vour concarmns through the appropriate channels set out in such policies or protocals.

in summary. o decide whether the disclosure is reasanable and in the public inlerest, you maey need 1o conduct a balancing
exercise weighing up the public interest in mainiaining confidentiaiity agsinst any courdervailing public interest favouring disclosure.
This will requiire a careful focus on how confidential the information is, on any potentially harmful consequences of its disclosure,
and on any faclors, which may justify its disclosure despite these potential consequences. I in doubt vou should always ssek
advice from the maonitoring officer. Always keep a note of the reason for your decision.

in some situations, it s extremely unlikely that a disclosure can be [ustified In the public intersst. These will include where the
disclosure amounis to a oriminal offence, or where the information disclosed s proteciad by legal professional privilege.

Circumstances in which a local authority can treat information as confidential

The presumption undsr local governmaeant law s that iocal authority business is open unless # falls within a specific category of
confidential or exempt information a5 set oul in legisialion. These categories are;

1, information given o the local authority by a Gﬁvemmeﬁtpﬁg@%?@ terms which forbid its public disclosure or
2. information the disclosure of which (o the public is prohibited By or under another Act or by Court Order, &5 Print o~ Top



Generally personal information which identifies an individual, must not be disclosed under the data protection and human righis

rules.
Exempt information means information falling within the following categories {subject (o any condition):

1. relating 1o any individual,
2. which is likely to revesl the identily of an individual.
3. relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person {including the authority holding that information,
4. relating to any consullations or negotiations, or conlemplated consuitations or negelistions, in connection with any labour
relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and emplovees of, or officer-holders under the authority.
5. in respect of which a claim {0 legal professional privilege could be maintained in legsl proceadings,
5, which raveals that the authority proposes:
6.1. fo give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on 8 person; or
8.2, to make an order or direction under any enactment
7. relating to any action taken or © be taken in connection with the prevendion, investigation, or prosecution of orime,

Where nformalion is legally classified as ‘confidential’ under the above categories the public must be excluded from mestings
whenever it is likely in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the naturs of the proceedings that confidential
information would be disclosed. Likewise, public access to reports, background papers, and minutas will also be exciuded,

Where an officer recommends that a report {o a decision-making commitiee should be reated as exempt information under the
above categories the committee must stil agree that the matler should be heard in a closed session. The committes may disagree
with any recommendation and decide that those legal tests have not been mel, or they may agree thal those lesis have been met
but nevertheless it iz in the public interest that the matler be considered in an open session. Again, you should keep a record of the
raticnale for the decision.

Once the local authorify has agreed that the matler be treated as exempt, public access o relevant reports, background papers
and minutes will also be excluded and an individual counciflor must abide by that collective decision or risk breaching the code i
they disclose that information {papers and content of discussion) withow! lawful excuse.

Does confidentiality under the code apply only to information which is classified as confidential or exempt by
faw?

No. The cade goes wider than matters simply considered in a formal local authority sefling. Information is a broad term. i includes
facts, advice, and opindons. it covers written material, including tapes, videos, COs, DVDs, and other electronic media. it covers
material in unwritien form, including intellectual property. Information can only be confidential if alf the following apply:-

« # has the necassary ‘qualily of confidence’ aboul it {rivial information will not be confidential but information that vou would
expect people o want to be private wauld bel;

« it was divulged in circumstances importing an obligation of confidence {information properly in the public domain will not ba
confidential);

= disclosure of i would be detrimental {o the party wishing to keep it confidential,

For example, yvou may be lold confidential information by a constituent in the course of your duties. That is why the code is wrilien
broadly o cover information classed as confidential which vou may come across in your duties,

You should use your judament when you are given information. An individual does not have o explicity say that information is
confidential if they tell you something which & reasonable person would regard as sensitive. You may, however, wish to claeify if
somebody tells you something whether they want vou {o freat it as confidential.

Examples

A councilior wais assisting a resident in an adoplion process, which the resident decided to subsequently withdraw from.
The resident's estranged parent contacted the councilior for information as o what was happening with the case and the
councillor inadvertently shared confidential information as she had not realised that father and son wers estranged. This
was found {0 be & breach of the code.

A councilior circtdated information about an officer’s medical condition 1o other councillors and 2 local headieacher with
whom he was acquainted. He was found to have disclosed information which should ressonably be regarded as being of 8
confidential nalure and without the officer’s consent in breach of the Code of Conduct,

Page 68

& Print A Top



What does consent by the person authorised to give it mean?

if somebody, for example a constifuent, has told vou something in confidence - for example in the ling of casework - you may later
want to put that in the public domain as part of pursuing that case. You should slways checlowith the individual before you discloze
something you belleve is confidential to ensure thal they are comfortable with that information being disclosed. You shouid also be
clear with tham as (o how you may uss the Information, they give vou to help resolve thalr issue.

In what circumstances am [ reguired to disclose confidential information by law?

This would be where a law enforcament or reguiatory agency or the courts required disclosure of information.

in what way could | use Information | have obiained to advance myself or others?

As a councilior you will ofien receive commercially sensitive or other confidential information. You must not use thal information to
your own advantage. For example, i vou know the local authority &s considering the purchase of a plece of iand, you should not
use that information in your private dealings {0 seek to purchase the land.

How does this relate to the Data Protection Act?

Az part of thelr role councillors will recelve personal information. They should seek o ensure they are familiar wath how the Data
Frotection Act applies o their role in handling such information through training, and if they are not sure o sesk advice from an
appropriate officer in fhe council.

Although councillors are not reguired to register as a data controller, they will receive personal information from residents in their
area. They should only use # for the purpose for which it has been given and must ensure this information Is held securely and only
share with others that are entifled to L

in contrast, the local authority is responsible for information they provide (o counciliors and ensuring they know how it can be used.

Access to information

Transparency is 8 very important principle underpinning local democracy and public decision-making. The public are antitied to ses
information about the way decisions are made uniess there are specific reasons why that information is confidential. Your locat
autharity should have a publication scheme sstling oul what information is accessible to the public and you as an individual
councilior must not prevent any person from accessing information which they are entitled to by law. This includes information
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or those copies of minutes, agendas, reports, and other documents of your local
authority which they have a right {0 access.

if in doubt seek advice from the relevant local authority officers.

The ‘need to know’

Az a councilior, you are nol autormatically enditled to sccess all information the local authority holds, For example, the jocal authority
mmay deal with highly confidential and sensitive information about employees or about residents involved in complex cases.

in addition o rights sel out in law or conferred by your loeal authority constilution, you have a right to inspect documents i you can
demonstrate a “need o know”. This ist't a right to a roving commission but must be linked o yvour performance of your duties and
functions as & councillor. For example, the need could more gasily be demonsirated by membarship of a relevant committes, such
as a staffing commitiee than simply because vou are interestad in seeing the information. Local suthorities have more lustification
for denying free access to particularly sensitive papers such as childeare or staffing records. You should not seel to get infarmation
if you have a declarable inferest in it

dost local authorities will have a nominated officer you can seek advice from if yvou feel you are not being given access to
information you seek.

You can also exercise the need to know™ in respect of atlending mestings. Access to Information Rules set oul an Overview and
Scrutiny Cormpittee’s rights of access to documents and additional rights of access to documents for counciliors o carry out their
functions,

Where you are given access to documents which are not available to members of the public, you should ensure that any
epnfidential information is used and protecied in an appropriale and secure manner and shared with authaorised persons only.

Can | use local authority information for matters outside the local authority?

A councilor is entitied to access information hald by the local authority for the performance of thelr dutles as a councllior. Ha
councillor wishas 1o use local authority information for any purpose other than iIn connection with thelr duties as & councillor, and
that information is not v 2 publicly available documant, however, then that councillor should submit a freedom of information

reguest so that it can be given to them to uss frasly. Page 69
= Print A Top



The genergl rule is that any information held by the local authority and given directly to a councillor may only ever be usad for the
purpose for which it was provided. That purpose may add particular restriclions, for example where i relates to an individual
constituent or sensitive matter, The purpose should not be for anvthing other than use In connection with the proper performance of
the councllior's duties as a councillor. The exceptions to (his are whare the informalion has already been published, it has been
given as a resull of a recuest under Freedom of Information or Environmental Information Regulations or it s in the public interest
{'whistleblowing’} for which provisions are made In the Code of Conduct as explained above.

Ploase see the 00 website Ihitps/ico. grg. bkl for helpful guidance on data protection and freedom of information.

Disrepute

As a councillor:
5.1 | do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute.

As a councillor, you are trusted o make declsions on behalf of your communily and vour actions and behaviour are subject o
greater scrutiny than that of ordinary members of the public, Aricle 10 of the Europaan Convention on Human Rights protects your
right to freedom of expression, and polilical speech as a councillor is given enhanced protection but this right is not urvestricted.
You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact on your rode, other councillors and/or your local authorily and
may lower the public's confidence In vour ability to discharge your functions as a councilior or your local authority's ability o
discharge s functions,

In general terms, disrepule can be defined as & lack of good reputation orf respectabifity. In the context of the Code of Conduct, a2
councilor's behaviour in office will bring their rele Into disreputs if the conduct could reasonably be regarded as either

1. reducing the public’s confidence in them belng able to fulllt their role; or
2. adversely affecting the reputation of your authority’s counciliors, in heing abile to fulfif their role.

Conduct by a councillor which could reasonably be regarded as reducing public confidence in thelr local authorily being able to fulfil
its functions and duties will bring the authority into disrepule,

For example, circulating highly inappropriate, vexatious or malicious e-malls o constituents, making demonstrably dishones! posis
about your authorily on social media or using abusive and threatening behaviour might well bring the role of councillor into
disrepute. Making grossly unfair or patently untrue or unreasonable criticism of your authority in a public arena might well be
regarded as bringing vour local authority inlo disrepute.

Guestions

What distinguishes disrepute {o “your role or local authority” from disrepute to you as a person?

The misconduct will need to be sufficient o damage the reputation of the councilior's role or local authorily, as opposed simply to
damaging the reputation of the individual concerned.

Certain kinds of conduct may damage the reputation of an individual bul will rarely be capable of damaging the reputation of the
rofe of councilior or the reputation of the awtharity,

Here are some of the situations that might tp the balance in favour of disreple to the role of councilior or to the authority in
particular cases:

1. Situations wherse councillors have pul thelr private interasts above the public interest, which they are expected to promole as
counciliors, and therefore reduced the standing of thelr role. For example, souncilfors using theilr position o secure & ssorst
persanal profi.

2. Similarly, situations where 8 councilior defies important and welb-established rules of the authority for private gain.

3, Where a councillor engages in conduct which directly and significantly undermines the suthority’s reputation as & good
amplayer or responsible service providar,

Exampiles

& councilior posted a tweet reading “Clir Blogs why don't vou just throw in the lowel, just go beforg vou cause any morg
damage to the reputation of the councll. You and some members of your cabinet have falled. | hope that the SFO is brougit
in o Investigate your conduct. #alledieadership.” The complainant siated that she found the tweet 'very offensive’ and
bullving and also considered that the twesl would reasonably bring the counciilor's office and the authorily inlo disrepute.

The councillor was found to have brought his aﬁthaﬁf:@ag@&#@ by reducing public confidence in the coungit
& Brint A Top



A councillor brought his role and authority infe disreputs by tsking advantags of a8 locs! authorily mistaks and falling lo
prevent local authordty-emploved contractors from working on his privately-owned home. The local authority mistakenly sent
decorators o the home, an ex-local authority property, The councillor only told the local authority about the mistaks after the
work had bsen completed and then said he could not be charged for the work.

The chair of a locat authority made a deeply inappropriale remark al a local sulhorily meeting that was reported in the local
media and was accused of bringing his role and authority into disrepute. | was clear in both the meeting and the local
media reporting that other councillors expressed concemns about his commaents and found them ingppropriate. | was found
that he had not brought his authority inte disrepute but that he had brought his role into disrepule.

Misuse of position

As a councitlor:

6.1 1 do not use, or attempt o use, my position improperly to the advantage or disadvantage of myssif or anvone else.

Your position as a councillor provides you with certain opportunities, responsibilities, and privileges, and you make cholces all fhe
time that will impact others. However, you should not teke advantage of these opportunities to further your own or others' private
interests or io disadvantage anyone uniaitdy.

You should not use, or attempt to use, yvour public office cither for vour or anybody else’s personal gain or loss, For example, your
hehaviour would be improper if you sought to further vour own private interests through your position as a counciliorn,

Irvolving yoursell in a decision in which you have an inferest, 1o seek to benefit vourself or another would be a breach of this
paragraph of the code. For guidance on how to conduct yourself when you have an interest and how o balance your rights as an
individual and your responsibilities as a public decision maker see the chapler on registration of interasts,

Councillors who own land, or whose relatives or close associates own land, need o be particularly cautious where planning
matiers are concermned. This applies equally to parish councillors when your local authority iz consulted on planning matlers.
Similarly, while it is reasonable to expect councilfors to help constituents apply 1o the local authority, for example, for housing, itis
quite improper to seek to influence the decision 0 be taken by the officers and would also be in breach of paragraph 3 of the code.

What kinds of attemptis to advantage or disadvantage would be improper?

There are circumstances where it will be proper for a councllior 1o sesk to confer an advantags or disadvantage and other
circumstances where # will not.

Being a councillor can invelve making hard cholces and balancing a range of interests. Most decisions will inevitably benefit sume
people and will be o the detriment of others. W's imporiant when you make those decisions to make them in what you think is the
public interest and not be influenced by privale interesis,

For example, there can be no chisction to councifiors voicing thelr opposition o the closure of 2 local public ibrary. This conduct is
clearly intended to secure an advantage for the users of the library, What is cruzial is that counciliors’ attempts o secure this
advaniage are clearly part and parcel of their duties as a local representative, Therefore, these aclivities are not improper.

The term ‘improperly’ is not defined in the Code of Conduct, This ensures that the scope of the provision is not unnecassarily
iimited, The underlying principle is that councliiors are efected or appointed to public office lo serve the public interest,

A councilor's conduct would be improper If they were 1o use their public posilion to further private inleresis of thamselves or
associates, or lo ssttle old scores with enemies, o the detriment of the public interest. Any conduct that unfairly uses a councilior's
oublic position (o promots private interests over the public interest will be improper.

What If the attempt to confer an advantage or disadvantage fails?

The wording of the Code of Conduct makes it clear that the use of position provision (paragraph 8] covers failled attempts as wall
as situations where an advaniage or disadvantage has actually been achisved.

For example, if you have iried 10 influence fellow counciliors to vole In a particular way which would be fo your personal advantage
and/or that of vour family/close associates you would have breached this provision of the code aven i they did not in fact vole that
way.

Examples Page 71

Ly Print A Top



Most alleged improper uses of position are in conneclion with mallers in which the counciilors have interests,

A counciffor who was a joint co-ordinator’ of a community group gid not notify the local authority of her position in this group. She
took part in the considerations and voled on the decision to negoliale a new lease in respect of a workshop used by this community
group. & slandards committes found that she had used her position improperly as the decision on which she voted benefiled a
group in which she clearly had an interest which she had not disclosed to the local authority,

Alocat authority leader falled to declare a conflict of interest relating to land he owned. The court found that he used his position a8
a councillor and instructed a planning officer o alier the road roule o benefl his own land's value 1o a considarable exient. He was
found guilty of misconduct in public life for trying o Influence the routa of 8 new by-pass to enclose his land in a new development
belt, which would have significantly increased its value. He received an 18-month cuslodial sentence.

A parish councillor was found to have improperly used his position and secured an advaniage for 2 member of the public by asking
the parish clerk to make a payment which had not bean approved by the Parish Councit in breach of the Code of Conduct. The
payment was for repairs 1o 5 private road used by the councillor to get fo his allotiment.

Misuse of resources and facilities

As a councillor:

7.1 1 do not misuse local authority resources.
7.2 | will, when using the resources of the local authority or authorising their use by others:

1, act in accordance with the Jocal authority’s requirements; and
1.1. ensure that such resources are nof used for political purposeas unless
1.1.14. that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or
1.1.2. be conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the local authorlty or of the office to which | have been
elected or appointed.

You may be provided with resources and faciliies by vour local authorily to assist you in carrving out your duties as a councillor,
Examples include:

= office suppert

« stationsry

« eguipment such as phones, and compulars

= fransport

- zcoess and use of ooal authority bulldings and rooms

These are given (o vou o help vou carry out yvour role as a councillor more effectively and are not to be used for business or
personal gain. They should be used in accordance with the purpese for which they have been provided and the ocal authority's
own policies regarding thelr use.

You must make sure you use the authority's resources for proper purposes only, It is not appropriate to use, or authorise others (o
use, the resources for political purposss, including party political purposes, When using the authority’s rescurces, you must have
regard, if applicable, o any Local Authority Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1888,

The recommended code of practice for local authority publicity

fhitns Ywww ooy uklooyernmeninublisations/recommeanded.cnda.ofpracticadordocalbauthoritvepublicity] published by
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government provides guidance on the content, style, distribution, and cost of local
authority publicity.

You must be familiar with the rules applving io the use of resources made avallable to you by yvour local authority, Failure {o comply
with the local authority's rules s likely 1o amount to a breach of the code.

i you authorise someone (for example a member of yvour family} o use vour iocal authority's resources, vou must iske care o
gnsure that this is aliowed by the local authorily's rules,

You should never use local authority resources for purely political purpeses, including designing and distribating party political
material produced for publicity purposes.

Page 72

& Print A Top



Howsvar, your authority may authorise you 1o use s resources and facilitfes for lsgilimale political purposes in connection with
your authority's business. For example, holding surgeries m your ward and dealing with correspondence from your constituents. In
this case, you must be aware of the limitations placed upon such use for these purposes, Using your authority's resources culside
of these limitations is kely {o amount (o 8 breach of the Code of Conduct. Where you are part of a formally-recognised political
group, your local authority is also sllowed to give vou such resources as you nesd for local authority business, for example use of a
room for group meetings,

You should never use local authority resources purely for private purposes, for example using a pholocopier to print off fiyvers for
yvour business unless vour local authorily's procedures allow for vou to repay any costs acorued,

What are the “resources of the local authority”?

The resources of the local authorily include services and faciliies as well as the financial resources of the authority.

Resources could include any land or premises, sguipment, computers, and materals. The time, skills, and assistance of anybody
employed by the authority, or working on its behall, are also resources, as is nformation hetd by the authority which i has not
published.

What constitutes using resources “improperly for political purposes™?

The code acknowledges thal parly politics has a proper role o play, both In the conduct of authority business and in the way that
councillors carry out their duties.

There will be timas when it is acceplable for political groups 1o use the resources of the local suthority, for example, to hold
meetings in authority premises. Often it is Impractical to separate a councilior's political campaigning from carrying out their duties
as an elected ward member, such as when they hold surgernies or deal with correspondence from constituents.

However, councilffors and monitoring officers will need to exercise considerable care {o ensure that this provision is not abused. You
must ensure that there is a sufficient connection hetween the use of resources and the business of the authority. Only improper
use of resources will be a breach of the Code of Conduct,

This part of the code complements Section 2 of the Local Government Act 1988, which prevents the publication of material
"daesigned to afect public support for 2 political panty®. The code, howaver, goes furthar than the Code of Recormmmended Practice
on Publicity, It covers not only the publication of campaigning malerial bl also any olher aclivity that is intended o promaote purely
party-political inlerests.

You must have regard (o any applicable local authority code of publicity made under the powers contained in Section 4 of the Local
Government Act 1986, Publicily is defined as “any communication, in whataver form, addressed to the public at large or o &
section of the public”. # will cover meeatings, websites, and social media postings as well as printed and other wrilien material,

You should be particularly scrupulous about the use of authority resources when elections are panding, parficularly those resources
relating to publicity. When using the local authority's resources in these circumstances, you should not appear (o be seeking to
influence public opinion in favour of you, yvour parly colleagues, or your pariy.

How do you know what the autherity’s requirements for the use of resources are?

Your local authority should have a profocol dealing with use of authority resources. A typical profocol would cover the following
loplcs:

- use of authority premises

= councilior-officer relationships including use of officer tims

= information technology, for examgle compuiar equipment and the use of associated software, including the use of such
aguipment atl home

= telephenes

= photocopying

= ysg of siationery and headed nolepaper

= postage

= use of authority ransport

= allowances and expenses

Your local authority may also have a separate protecod on the uss of social media which would also be relevant.

The key principle underying all such protocols should be that public office and public resources should not be used to further
puraly private or party-political purposes.

Page 73

s Print & Top



it is worth noting that where you authorise someone such as a family member to use the authorily's resources, you must chack
whether the authorlly's ndes allow this,

Examples

The complaint alleged 2 councilior used his computer equipment provided by his local authority for privaie purposes by
downloading inappropriate adult pormographic images and sending a number of letters {o a losal newspaper, which he
falsely rapresented as being from members of the public. Me was found 1o have misused the local authority's equipment in
brazch of the code and had brought his office inio disrepute,

A councilior used local authonty notepaper in an atiempt to avold parking penaities incurred by his son. He also dishonastly
atternpled to renew a parking permit for disabled drivers. He was convicted of altempting, by deception, o avade the
parking penalties dishonestly. He was also found by his local authority (o have breached this paragraph of the code,

Complying with the Code of Conduct

{tis extremely impartant for you as a councifior to demonstrate high standards, for you fo have your actions open o sorutiny and for
you not to undermine public rust in the local authority or s governance, If you do not undersiand or are concerned sbout the local
authority's processss in handling a complaint you should ralse this with your monilering officer,

As a councillor:
8.1 [ undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority.

Councillors should be competent for the work they undertake, and this nchudas the way in which vou conduct yoursell when
carrying out your role as a councitlor. Training helps to develop such compstence, ensuring that vou understand the Code of
Conduct and how it applies 1o you.

As a councillor you are responsible for your own actions and will be heid personally responsibie if vou breach vour local authority's
Code of Conduct. Therefore. it is essential that, where you are offered the opportunity by your local authority, you equip yourself
with sufficient knowledge of the code to ensure that you comply with it at all tmes,

8.2 | cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation andfor determination.

The Code of Conduct is a cornerstone of good governance. 1t s important for pubic trust that itis seen o be taken seriousiy by
individual counciliors as well as the local authority as a whole,

While being the subject of a complaint thal you have breached the Code of Conduct and having your conduct investigated may at
times be unpleasant and stressful it is essential that councilors cooperate with any code investigations and determinations. Failure
to cooperate will not stop an investigation but may simply drag matlers and doas not allow you 1o put vour side of the story so
increases the risk that inferences are drawn about your unwillingness to cooparate and that you will be found in breach of the
Code,

Itis equally important if you have made a complaint which the local authority has decided merits investiation that you continue to
cooperate. Complaints made simply to damage the reputation of an individual through inferences but which you are not willing to
support through your cooperation will damage relationships and will also damags the reputation of you and vour iocal authority,

¥ you are asked to assist the investigator as a polential wilness it s again important that you do so to allow as fully rounded a
picture as possibile io be drawn so that any delermination on a case has as much evidence as necessary in order to reach the
carrect decision. You should lel the investigator know f you need any reasonable adjusiments made.

8.3 | do pot intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be invelved with the administration of any
investigation or proceedings.

HMowever much you may be concerned about allegations that yvou or a fellow councilior failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, it
is always wrong o intimidate or altempt o intimidate any person involved i the investigation or hearing. Even though you may not
have breached the Code of Conduct, vou will have your say during any independent invastigation or hearing, and you should let
these processes follow heir natural course, if you sesk to intimidate a witness in an investigation about your conduct, for axampls,
you may find yoursell subject {o another complaint that you breached this paragraph of the Code of Conduct,

When does the duly not to intimidate start and avolding sllegations of intimidation?

Page 74

£ Pring o~ Top



behaviour lowards polential witnesses or officers invelved In handling of their case may be viewed, However innocently the contact
iz intended or may appear, great care should be taken when counciliors deal with people inveived with thelr case.

You should refer to your local authority's procedures and protocol for dealing with alleged breaches of vour Code of Conduct,

8.4 | comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding thet | have breached the Code of Conduct,

Fair, consistent, and proporticnate sanctions help to ensure the integrity of the standards framework and thus mainiain public trust
and confidence in counciliors, your role, and vour authorties, It is important that councillors and ocal authorities take standards of
conduct seriously and the use of sanclions helps to demonsirate this,

Failure to comply with sanclions can bring the standards framework into disrepute.

Part 2 - Pretecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority

The code requirgs you 1o register matliers under 2 separats caleqories:

1. GiHis and hospitality, vou receive In your role as a councilior; and
2. Certain types of inferests

Registration of gifts, hospitality and interests

Gifts and hospitality

A5 a councillon

9.1 1 do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which could give rise to real or substantive
perscnal gain or a reasonable suspicien of influence on my part to show favour from persons seeking to acquire, develop
or de business with the local authority or from persons who may apply to the local authority for any permission, llcence
or other significant advantage.

9.2 [ register with the monitoring officer any gift or hospitality with an estimated vaiue of at least £50 within 28 days of its
receipt.

.3 | register with the monitoring officer any significant gift or hospitality that [ have been offered but have refused to
accept.

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should exercise caution in accepting any gifts or
hospitality which are {or which you reasonably believe io be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption shouid
always be not o aceepl significand gifis or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a refusal may be difficult if it is seen
as rudeness n which case yvou could accept it but must ensure s publicly registerad.

Howsver, you do not need io register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as a councitlor, such ag Christmas gifts
from your friends and family. 1t is also important to note that it is appropriate to accep! normal expenses and hospitality associated
with your duties as a councillor. ¥ you are unsure, do conlact your moniioring officer for guidance.

What does “hospitality” mean?

Hospiality can be defined as any food, drink, accommedation, or entertainment freely provided or heavily discounted,

How much detail should | Include on the register?

Where you register gifis or hospilality you sheuld include the name of the person or organisation who gave vou the gift or
hospitality; the date on which you received it the reason it was given; and its value or estimated value.

How do | know if gifts or hospltality have been offered to me because of my role as a councillor?

The code says you must register any gift or hospilality received In vour capacity as a councifior If the estimatad valus exceeds £50
or such other irnit as agreed by vour Tocal authority,

You should ask yourself whather you would have recaived the gift or hospitality if vou were nol on the local authorfty, fyvou are in
doubt as to the motive behind an offer of a gift or hospitality, we recommaend that vou register it or speak to the clerk or monitoring
officer before deciding whether to accept . You should also refer to ihe}iﬁé authority's policy on gifts and hospitality.

Page

& Print A Top



You do not need 1o register gifts and hospilality which are not related to your role as a councilior, such as Christmas gifis from your
friends and family, or gifts which you do not accept. Mowever, you should apply comman sense when you consider how receipt of a
gitt might be interpreted. For example. if you are the chair of the planning commitiee and a birthday present arrives from a family
friend who is also an applicant just before a planning application is due 1o be considerad, then you need to think abou! how this
wauld be interpreted by a reasonable member of the public,

What about gifts or hospitality | do not accept?

The code makes it clear that the presumption is that you do not normally accept gifis or hospitality. While gifls or hospitality can be
offered for benign reasons it is important for your reputation, the reputation of the local authority and the need to reassure the
public that decisiorr-malking s not being improperly influenced that you do not accept gifts or hospitafity wheraver possible.

Simply accepting gifis or hospitality and then ragistering # does not mean that it may be seen as reasonable. Accepling an
expensive maal from somebody who is negotiating for a contract with the councll, for axamgle, is not ‘made right’ by being
recorded on a public register.

There will ba times, howevar, where lurning down hospitality or gifts could be seen as causing unnecessary offence. For example,

i you have besn invited as a ward councilior to a local festival or faith celebration along with other members of the community then
it may be entirely appropriate o accept the hospitality. Howevsr, you should always exercise particutar caution if the organisers are
involved In ongoing negotiations with the local authordly on a particular matter,

Where you are offered g gift or hospitality but deciine it you should nevertheless notify the monitoring officer. That haips the
authority {o identify i there are any palterns and to be aware of who might be sesking o influence the authority.

What about gifis or hospitality that falls below the limit in the code?

You should always nolify the manitoring officer of any gift or hospitality offered {o you if it could be perceived as somathing given to
you because of your position, especially where the gift or hospitality Is from somebody who has put in an application to the ocal
authority {or is about o) even where that hospitality falls below £50 or the limit set by the tocal authority,

While that would not be a matter for the public register it again alfows the authorily to be aware of any patterns,

Also, an accumulation of small gifis you receive from the same source over a short pericd of say & couple of months that add up 1o
£53 or over should be registered in the interests of lransparency.

What if | do not know the value of a gift or hospitality?

The general rule is, i in doub! as to the value of & gift or hospitality, you should register #, as a matier of good practice and in
accordance with the principles of cperness and accountability in public life. You may therefore have to estimate how much a gift or
hospitalily is worth, For example, If you attend a dinner as a represantalive of the authorily which has been pre-pald by the
sponsors you would nead to make an Informed judgment as to its likely cost

What if I'm at an event but don’t have the hospitallty or only have 3 small amount?

The best way o prasarve transparency is for you lo assess the hospitality on offer, whether it is accepied or nol. This is because i
would clearly not be in your interesls io be drawn inlo arguments abaout how much vou yourself ate or drank at a particutar
aucasion. For example, you may find yourself at a funclion whare relatively tavish hogpiiality is on offer, but you choose not fo
accept it You may go to 2 champagne reception but drink a single glass of orange juice for exampis,

A3 & guide you should consider how much a person could reasonably expect to pay for an equivalent function or event run on a
commercial basis. What you have been offered is the value of the event regardiess of what you actually consumed, Clearly whare
you are in any doubt the prudent course is {o register the hospitality,

Is there a minimal threshold whers | wouldn't have to notify the monitoring officer?

The code is about ensuring that there is ransparency and accountability about where people may be trving to influence you or the
local authority improperly. Howsver, in the course of your duties as a counciilor you will be offered light refreshments or similar on
many occasions. It s perfectly acceptable to have 2 cup of tea or biscuits at a meeling with residents at the local community centre
for example and there may be times when an external mesting lasts all day and the organisers offer you a sandwich lunch and
refrashments.

The Govemmaent's guide to the Bribery Act for employers says that ‘the Government does not intend that genuine hospitality or
similar business expenditure that is reasonabie and proportionate be caught by the Act, 5o you can continue to provide bona fide
hospitality, promotional or other business expenditure. In any case whers it was thought the hospitality was really a cover for
bribing somecne, the authorities would ook at such things as the level of hospitality offered, the way In which # was provided and

Page 76

L Print o~ Top



the ieval of influence the person receiving it had on the business decision in quastion, But, as a general proposition, hospitality or
promotional expenditure which is proportionate and reasonable given the sort of business you do is very unlikely to engage the
Aet!

You should use your discretion and think how # might look {o a reasonable person but always seek the views of the monitoring
officer or clerk where you are a parish councillor if in doubt.

What are ‘normal expenses and hospitality assoclated with your duties as a councillor'?

As well as the minimal threshold hospitality above there will be times when you are pald expenses which include an element for
foud and drink as part of your role.

The focus of the code is on the source of the hospitality and its nature, Hospitality does not nead to be registered where it is
pravided or reimbursed by the autharity or where i is clearly ancillary to the business being conducted, such as an cvernight stay
for an away-day. Therefore, hospitality at a civic reception or mayor's ball would not need to be registered.

Howaver, the hospitalily should be registered if it is provided by a person or body other than the authority and is over and above
what could reasonably be viewsd as ancillary to the business conducted. You might meet dignifaries or business contacts in jecal
authorily offices. However, if such meslings take place in other venues, such as at cultural or sporting events, this shouid be
registered as hospitality.

if you ars away at a conference and you are offered entertainment by a private company or individual or attend a sponsored event
you should consider registering it.

What if my role involves me attending regular events or recelving gifts or hospitality?

Some roles in a local authority will inevitably involve being offered more entertainment than others because of the ‘ambassadaorial’
nature of the role. For example, the mayor or chair of the authority will be invited to a large number of funclions and the leader of
the local authorily may be attending svenis as political leader of the local authority.

Although the mayor ar chair, for example, may atlend many social functions, they are not exempt from the reguirement o register
haspitality as individual councillors. However, where the hospitality is extended o the office holder for the time being rather than the
individual, there is no requirement under the code to register the hospitality against your individual register. The question a
councilior needs {o ask themselves is, "Would | have received this hospitalily even # { were not the mayor/chair?” If the answer is
yes, then it must be registerad. -

if matiers are recorded on a mayor or chair's register any entry on the register should make it clear that gifis or hospitality are being
accepled because of the office held and, where possible, any gifis accepted shouid be ‘donated’ to the local authority or to charity
or as raflle prizes for example.

Gifis that are clearly made {o the local authority, for example a commermorative goblet which is kept on display in the local
authority's offices, do not need to be registersd in the councilfor's register of gifts and hospitality, However, such gifts ought to be
recorded by the locat authority for audit purposes.

Register of interests

Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the monitoring officer to establish and maintain a register of interesis of members of
the loca! authority.

You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and fellow counciliors know which of your interests
might give rise to a conflict of interest. The register is a public document that can be consulied when (or before) an issue arises.
The register aiso protects you by allowing vou to demonstrale openness and a willingness (o be held accountable. You are
personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should disciose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for vou to know
early on i others think that 2 potential conflict might arise. it is alse imporiant that the public know about any interast that might
have to he disclosed by you or ather councillors when making or taking part in decisions, so that deciston-making is seen by the
public as open and honest. This helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.

Within 2B days of becoming a member or vour re-election or re-appointment to office you must register with the monitoring officer
the interests which fall within the catagories set out in Table 1 {Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
[htipsdwww localgovei/nublicationsfiocat-governmentassoniation.madal-councillorcode conduct-20 208 spnendix-b.
reuistering-interesta! which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities {Disclosable Pecuniary Interesis) Regulations 20127,
You should also register details of your other personat interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other
Registerable Interests] [https lwww local govaulinubiicationsficoal-government-association-model-counciliorcade-

ondunt-20208anaendiz-breaistering-interssts] |

Page 77

You must register two different categories of interests: & Print - Top




1. Disciosable Pacuniary Interests — these are cafegories of interesis which apply io you and your partner, The categories ars set
cut in regufations made under 527 of the Localism Act 2011 and knowing non-compliance is a criminal offence.

2. Other registerable interests -~ these are categories of interest which apply only to you and which the LGA believes should be
registered as an aid o fransparency.

Further details about these two categories follow. For guidance on when these interests give rise to a malter which needs o be
declarad at a meeting see the guidance on declaring interests in Part 3. [https Hwww local. oo ult/publications/ouidance.
incal-government-associztion-model-councilior-code-conductideciarations-of-interast

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

These are interests which must be natified {o the principal authority's monitoring officer within 28 days of the code being adopled by
your local authority or within 28 days from when you become a councillor in accordance with the statulory requirements of the
Localism Act 2011, These are enforced by criminal sanclion, and fallure o register or declare such an interest at a meeting is a
criminal offence. You must keep your register up o date so, as soon as a new interast needs {0 be registered or you cease to hold
an interest, you shauld notify the monitaring officer.

A ‘disciosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner (which means spouse or civil partner, a parson with
whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners) and the categories
covered are sat cut in Appendix A of the Code.

Offences

it is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011 o

« fail o notify the moniioring officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option

« fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest ai a mesting if it is not on the register

= fail to notify the monitoring officer within 28 days of a disclosable pecuniary interest that is not on the register that you have
disclosed o a meeting

= participate in any discussion or vole on & matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest

» knowingly or recklessly provide information that is false or misleading in notifying the monitoring officer of a disciosable pecuniary
interest or in disclosing such interest to a mesting.

The criminal penalties available {o a court are {o impose a fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale and disgualification from
being a counciflor for up fo five years. '

Subject Description
Employment, Any employrment, office, rade,
office, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
trade, profession
or vocation

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefif {other than frem the council) made to the councillor during the
previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by himvher in carrying out histher duties as a councillor, or towards histher

. slection expenses.
Sponsorship ) P

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a frade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Retations {Consolidation) Act 1882,

Any contract made between the councilior or hisfher spouse or civil  pariner or the person with whom the councilior is
living as if they were spouses/fuivil partners {or a firm in which such person is a pariner, or an incorporated body of which
such person 5 a director* or a body that such person has a beneficial

Contracts interest in the securittes of*) and the council:

{a} under which goods or services are to be provided or works are (o be executad; and
(b} which has not been fully discharged.

Page 78

& Print A Top




Any beneficial interest in tand which is within the area of fhe council.

Land and ‘tand’ excludes an easement, sendlude, interest or right In or over tand which does not give the counciilor or hisfher

Property spouse or civil pariner or the persan with wham the councillor is living as if thay were spouses/ civil pariners {alone or
jointly with anather] a right o cocupy or [o receive incoma.

Licences Anvy licence {slone or jointly with others} (o ococupy fand in the local authority for 2 month orlonger

Any tenancy where (1o the councillor's knowledgej—

{a} the landiord is the council; and

Corporate
tenancies {b} the tenant is a body that the councillor, or hisfher spousea or ¢ivil pariner or the
person with whom the councillor Is living as if they wers spouses/ civil partners is a
pariner of or a director® of or has 2 beneficial interast in the securities” of,
Any beneficial interest in securities® of a body wherge.
(a} that body {io the councillor's knowledge) has a place of business or fand in e council; and
(b} eithere—
; (1} the total nominal value of the securities” exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the {otal issued share
Securities

capiial of that body,; or

(i} if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which
the councilior, or his/ her spouse or eivil pariner or the person with whom the counciller is living as if they were spouses/civil
partners has a beneficial inferest exceads one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class,

* director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society.

* ‘sgcurifies’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the
meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a
building

. sociely.

Does 'office carried on for profit or gain’ include allowances [ may recelve from another local authority | sit on?

i you receive allowances which are treated as faxable income rather than simply being pure reimbursement of expenses, say, then
they do need o be registered and declared as appropriate.

Reimbursement of expenses is separately covered by the DF category 'sponsorship’ and makes clear that it excludes the need o
register or declare reimbursement of expenses from ane's own authority. However, that does not exclude any allowances received
from another authority. This is supported by & letter written by the then Minister Brandon Lewis to Desmond Swayne MP in 2013
when this issue was raised with Government which sald: “a member being in receipt of taxable members’ allowances may be
considered o give rise to g disclosable pecuniary indarest under the subject of 'Employment, office, frade or vocation’ set out in the
regulations.

That means that any member in receipt of taxable allowances from another authority would have to register such as a DPL For
example, a parish councillor who is also a district councilior and is in receipt of taxable allowances from the district would need to
register that facl.

How much detail do | need io put about my employment?

it is not enough simply to pul, for example, ‘'management consultant’ or ‘teacher’. Sufficient detail should be given to identify vour
company or employer, This alds transparency and allows people (o see where potential conflicts of inlerest may arise.

Where you have a sensitive employment, which shoutd not be disclosed you should discuss this with your monitoring officer (see
‘sensitive interests’ below), While the law on sensitive interests only applies fo where there is a fear of infimidation there may be
employment, such as certain sections of the military, which cannot be disclesed for other reasons so you should always seek

advice if in doubl.
Page 79

What is a contract with the local authority?
& Print A Top




Some councillors’ own businesses which may have dealings with the locsl authority. For example, a grounds maintenance
company may contract with a parish councll for grass cutling. Such contracts shaould be included on the register of interests.

More broadly, councillars, as residents, may have dealings with the local authority in thelr personal lives. For example, some
councillors pay their own local authority to have garden waste collections, rent an allotment or may be a member of the gym of a
local authority operated leisure centre. Such arrangements form a subscription service that are open to all residents, and do not
require registration.

How much detail is required of landholdings?

Sufficient detail should ba given to identify the land in question,

An address and, where the address Is not sufficient, details that are sufficient to identify the land will usually meel the requirement.
A plan identifying the land may be useful in some situations but is not a reguirement.

Do you have (o register the landholdings of your employers or bodies you have shareholdings in?

in general, there is no requirement to list the landholdings of companies or corporate bodies included in the register. The only
reguiremert is o register any tenancy between such bodies and the authority {under the corporate tenancies). Obviously, you can
only be expected to register those you ought reascnably to be aware of, 50, for example, if vou work for & arge housebuilder you
may not be aware of which land in the local authority’s area they had options on.

You do need to be mindful of your leve! of conirol in the company and the effect this may have on your benefit from the land. For
example, if you and your spouse jointly owned & farming business, you would be the sole beneficiaries of any land ocwned by that
farm and as such it is strongly advised to register land held by companies in which you have a controfling interast,

What about my home and tenancies?

The most common beneficial interest in land councillors have is their home address. You should inciude in bere your home if you
five in it; whether that be as a result of 2 merlgage, tenancy, or other arrangement (for example, a councilor is living with their
parents but not paying a rental fee 1o them),

You should alse include in the section for beneficial interests in land any tenancy properties you own in the local authority's area,

How much information do you have to give out about shareholdings?

In general, if you hold more than £25,000 of equity in a company, or more than 1 per cent of a shareholding, you are required to
declare this,

Many councillors hold investments through trust funds, investment funds or pension funds which are managed by fund managers.
in that situation, you may not know if you actually hold more than £25,000 in a single company or more than 1 per cent of 2
sharsholding, The expectation is that you should take reasonable steps to ensure you do understand what Investments you may
have and whether the requirement to register applies, and so:

1. It can be heipful for councillors to state on their form that they have funds invesied in specific funds.
2. It can be helpful for counciliors o make fund managers aware of their requirement o declare where they held significant
invesiments within a company that operates in the local authority's area so that they can be nolified i this is the case.

Do | have to separate my spousef/pariners interests and my own interests?

The law only requlires you to register the inlerests, and you are not required specifically to state whether the inferest is held by you,
or by your spouse. However, many local authorities do ask for this information as it can be more transparent fo separate i,

How much information do | need to obtain from my spouse/partner?

You need to make sure you take all reasonable steps to oblain information from your spouse of pariner about their interests. For
example, you would reasonably be expected to know where they worked, or if they owned any rental properlias. You would be
expected o ask if they had any shareholdings in comparies, but they may not know the full details of an investment fund they had
and where it was invested, and if that were the case, you would not be expecied o know {and register) it sither.

Other registerable interests

in addition to the Disclosable Pecuniary Interests above, yvou must, within 28 days of the code being adopted by your local
authority, or your election or appointmaent o office {whers that is [ater), notify the monitoring officer in writing of the details of your
interests within the following categories, which are called ‘other registerable interests”

{a) Details of any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to which you are
appointed or nominaled by your iocal authority;
Page 80

(b} Details of any body of which you are a member or in a posiiion of general control or management and which 43 Print A Top




» exercises functions of a public nature
» iz directed to charitable purposes, or
= s a body which includes as one of ifs principal purposes influencing public dpinion or policy

{c} Details of any gifts or hospitality with an estimated value of more than £50 or such other imit as vour locad authority has
agreed, that you receive personally in connection with your officlal duties.

With Other Registerable Inferests, you are only abliged to register your own inferests and do not need o include interests of
spouses or pariners. Therefore, a spousal interest in a local group is not registerable as an ‘other registerable interest’. Failure to
register these interests is not coverad by the criminal offence but would be a breach of the code.

What is a “body exercising functions of a public nature”?

Although it is not possible to produce a definitive list of such bodies, here are some crileria to consider when deciding whethar or
not a body meets thaf definition -

« does that body carry out a public service?

« i5 the body taking the place of local or central government in carrying out the function?

« ig the body {including one outsourced in the private sector) exercising a function delegated to i by a public authority?
= is the function exercised under legislation or according o some statutory power?

« can the body be judicially reviewed?

Unless vou answer "yves’ to one of the above guestions, it is unlikely that the body in your case is exercising functions of a public
natire,

Examples of bodies included in this definition; government agencies, other councils, public health badies, council-owned
companies exercising public functions, arms-length management organisations careying out housing funclions on behalf of a
council, school governing bodies.

Do loecal campaigning or Facebook groups need to be registered?

Membership (which does not include simply being on a mailing list), of local campaign or Facebook groups wilt only need o be
registered if they are bodies:

= exercising functions of a public nature;
« directed towards charitable purposes; or
« one whose principal purpose includes influencing public opirion or policy.

Generally, i is unlikely that these groups will be regarded as formatl bodies to be registered. However, sach case should be
considerad on #s own merits. A Body' is defined as ‘a number of persons united or organised’. Some groups are very united on
their cause and organised, but their purpose must fall under one of the funclions listed abave.

There must also be some formality to the membership, such as registration for example. Simply attending a meeting of a focal
campaign does not of itself make you a 'member’ of that organisation.

There has been a growth in crganisations which are more nebulous in nature, and no formal membershin requirements exist, such
as Extinction Rebellion. i can be helpful to ask yourse¥ the guestion "da | consider | am a member of the organisation” and if the
answer is yes, then regisier the membership for transparency purposes,

if you nesd further information or specific advice, please speak o your ¢lerk or monitoring officer,

What about membership of a political party or trade union?

The second categary of other reqisterable interests refers o membership of a body or being in a position of general control and
management of 8 body, ons of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy, This includes any
political party or trade union, Memberships of political parties and Trade Unions therefore need to be registered. Remember that i
because of membership of a palitical party or a trade union any payment ar financial benefit is received, itis likely to come under-
the Spuansorship category of DR,

Sensitive interesis

Where you consider that disclosure of the detalls of an interest could lead o vou, or 2 person connecled with you, being subject o
viglence or intimidation, and the moniloring officer agrees, if the inferest is enterad on the register, copies of the register that are
made available for inspection and any published varsion of the register will exclude defails of the interest, but may state that you
have an interest, the details of which are withheld.

What iz sensitive information? Page 81
& Print A Top




It may include vour sensitive employment {such as certain scientific research or the Special Forces) which is covered by other
legislation or interests that are likely 1o create serious risk of vinlence or intimidation against you or somecne who lives with you.
For example, disclosurs of your home address where there has been a threat of violence against you or where there is a court
order protecting your whereabouts.

You should provide this information to your monitering officer and explain your concems regarding the disclosure of the sensitive
information; including why it is likely fo create a serious risk that you or a person who lives with you will be subjecied fo viclence or
intimidation. You do not need o include this information in your register of interests, if vour monitoring officer agrees, but yvou need
to disclose at meetlings the fact that you have an interest in the matter concerned (see guidance on declaring interests),

What happens if the monitoring officer does not agree that the information is sensitive?

it is for the monitoring officer to decide if the information is sensitive. You must notify the monitoring officer of the information which
you think is sensitive and give your reasons and any supporting evidence.

It the monitoring officer agrees, this information does not need to be included in the register of interests. However, if the monitoring
officer disagrees then it must be registered.

What happens i the information stops being sensitive?

You must notify the manitoring officer of any change in circumsiances which would mean that the sensitive information is no longer
sensitive within 28 days of the change, {or sxample a change in employment. The information would then be included in the
authority’'s register of interests.

| haven't received a direct threat, but | am concerned about registering my home address,

At present, councillors are required to register their home address as part of their local authority's register of inferests which are
typically pubiished an their local authority website, There have been growing concemns about the potential for threats and
intimidation to councillors by virtue of disclosing their home address. Whilst some counciliors believe disclosing a home address is
a core component of democracy and # s important for the public to know where a councillar may live as they may be making
decisions that have an impact on their property, others are very concerned about i, Section 32 of the Localism Act 2011
[hitpsien wikipedia orgiwiki/focalism Act 20111 allows Local Authorities o withhold sensitive interests from the public
register where their disclosure could lead to vielence or intimidation. It is recommended that councifiors should not be required to
register their home addresses as a disclosable pecuniary interest. The Committes on Standards i

[hitps:fenwikipedia orgiwikiiCommittee on Standards o Public Lifel 's review of Local Government Ethical Standard
recommended in January 2019 that councillars shouid not be required to register their home addresses as a disclosable pecuniary

irnerest. However, at present the Government has not legisiated for this,

it is important that if councillors have such concermns, they share these with the monitoring officer transparently and openly so they
can be properly considered.

Who should you notify when registering vour interesis?

The Localism Act and the Code both say that the monitoring officer is responsible for malntaining the register. You must therefore
notify your monitoring officer of your interests to be registered. This is also true for parish councillors that you must notify the
monitoring officer of the district, metropolitan or unitary authority for the arez in which the parish councit is situated,

However, the cbvious point of contact for information of this type for the public is the parish clerk. The clerk needs tc have an up-to-
dats copy of the register of inferests in order to comply with public access requirements and there is a requirement for the parish
council to publish the registers on their website where they have one, sither directly or through a link {o the relevant page on the
principal authority’s website. It also ensures that the clerk is aware of polential conflicts if they arise in a parish council meeting and
can advise accordingly. It is therefore practical for the parish clerk o act as the point of contact between parish councillors and the
retevant monitoring officer by collecting their interests together, passing them on and regularly asking councillors o review if there
have been any changes.

However, you should ensure that there is a system in place for the parish clerk to pass on immediately any information to the
retevant monitoring officer as each individuat councilior is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the relevant monitoring officer is
in possession of all the required information.

Geclarations of interest

As a councillor:
3.1 | register and disclose my interesis.
Page 82

& Print A Top




Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the monitoring officer to establish and maintain a register of inlerests of members of
the authority,

You need o register your intarests so that the public, local authority employees and feflow councillors know which of your interests
might give rise to a conflict of interest. The register is a public document that can be consulted when {or before) an issue arises.
The register also protecis you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness o be held accountable. You are
personally responsible for deciding whether or not vou should disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know
early on if others think that a potendiat conflict might arise. His also imporiant that the public know about any interest that might
have o be disclosed by you or other counciflors when making or taking part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the
pubtic as open and honest. This helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.

You should note that failure lo register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set out in Table 1 of the Code
[htinsfwwe local ooy ulkipublications/locabgovernment-associatipn-modslcouncillor-code-conduct. 2008 amnendix-b-
registering-interestsl s a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011,

Appendix B of the Code [hitns iwww local govaldpublicationsfioraboovernment-association-modsebcoungiior-cads.-
cﬂnduct-zﬁz%aﬁgendéx‘b—mﬁimeﬂnq-énm:‘mf@}ggﬁ{ht%;:asﬂ?www.Escafmm&lukipabs%ca*{i{m‘ Accat-government-
associgtion-model-councilfor-code-conduct-2020 annendix-h-registering-interesis] out the detalled provisions on registering
and disclosing interests. If in doubt, you should always seek advice from your monitoring officer,

This part of the Code is about the registering of your interests and then how to go about declaring or managing your interasts.

At heart there is a simple principle - as public decision-makers, decisions must be made in the public interast and nol to serve
private interests, However, the rules to set out whether you have an interest or not in any given situation can be complex given the
infinite variety of issues that may arise. This guidance is to help you steer a way through those rules.

The Code therefore requires members to declare interests in certain circumstances. Disclosure, in the register and at mestings, is
about letling members of the public and inferested parties know where you are coming from when involved in decision making and
is to enable you to be ‘'up front” about who you are and what your conflicts of interest might be. Conflicts of interest in decision
making as a councilior, and what in public law is known as ‘apparent bias’, are an established part of the local government legal
landscape. The Nolan Principles and the Model Code require counciliors to act impartially (i.e. not be biased) when carrying out
their duties. (See also guidance on bias and predetermination in Part 3).71.

A singte councillor whe is guilly of bias is enough fo sirike out the whole decision when chailenged before the courts. This can
cause huge cost and repufational damage for the local authority, yet is seldom due to actual corruption or even consciously
favouring a personal interest over the public inferest on the part of the councilior involved and may have no repercussions for them
personally.

The abject of this part of the Code is therefore twofeld,

Firatly, it is to provide an explanation and a guide to the public and counciliors as to what is or isn't a confiict of interest and then
how a conflict between the interest you may hold as an individual councillor and the public interest you must hold as a decision
maker of a public authority can be best managed,

Secondly, the Code provides a means o hoid an individual councillor to account for their actions when they fall to manage that
conflict of interest propery and put the decision of the public authority, including the public purse, and decisions around individuats'
daily lives, at risk.

The test at law for apparent bias is ‘would a falr-minded and informed observer, having congidered the facts, conclude that there
was a raal possibility of blas’. This is why you will see this question reflected in the Code when you are asked to consider whether
or not you should participate in a meeting where you have a conflict of interest.

The code contains three different categories of inlerests - Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI); Other Registerable Interests
ORI); and Non-Registerable Interests (NRI.

For the first two categories these are inlerests which must be recorded on a public register except in imited circumstances (see
guidance on Registration of Interests in Part 3) [hitps: v locsloovukinublications/guldancedocal.government.
apsociation-model-counciliorcode-conductfdaciarations-of-dnterest] . The third category do not need to be recorded on the
register but will need to be declared as and when they arise.

This means an interest may arise not just from interests already on your register. There will also be fimes when, although the
interest does not personally nvolve you, it may invelve a relative or close associate. You are not expected to register every interest
of those people, but you will need 1o declare them as and thPta@@@\Barise. These are referred (o in the code as ‘non.
registerable interests’. & Print A Top




As a brief surnmary, the requirements of the code apply where:

1. you or someone you are associaled with has an interest in any business of your authority, and;

2. where you are aware or sught reasonably {0 be sware of the axistence of that inferest, and

3. you aftend a meeting of your atthority at which the business is considerad (or where vou are making a delogated decision as
an individual under execulive arrangsmenis).

You must disclose to thal meeting the existence and nature of vour interests at the start of the meeting, or whan the interast
becomes apparent. It is usual to have for any declarations of interest at the start of the meeting but # is good practice also {o ask
again at the start of any agenda ttem. For example, members of the public may only be present for a specific item so will not have
heard the declaration at the siasl, and a member may only become aware of the interest part-way through the meeting or tlem in
any case,

And thare will be times that because your interest is so close to the matler under discussion you will not be able to take part in that
item of business. Those circumstances are explained in greater detall for each category of inlerest below,

This means there are three types of interest which you may have to declare;

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (Part A of the Register [hitns:fwww localgovul/publicetisns/iocalaovernment.

assogiation-model-councillorcode.conduct-20308annendiv-athe.sevenorinsinles-ofpublic-Efel §;

[ttpsvoawdocal govukipublications/acal-governmentassociation-modelboaunailiorcade-conduct 20208annendin-a-

the-seven-princinies-of-nublic-jife}

Qther Registerable interests (Pad B [hitps fwweioealqovukinublisations/Incal-government-associstion-model-
suncillorcode-conduct-2020anne ndic-bregistaring-interesis] b ihttns fwww iocel sovukipublcationsfiooal-

Fod

goysrpmant-association-modebcouncillor-code-conduci-2020#zppendix-braaisterina.dnierssts] and

Non-registerable interests Ihitns iwwwlocaloov.ukinublications/ioecal-government-association-modelcouncilior.cada.
conduct-Z20208appendix-bregistaring.iniernsis] .

Guidance is given below on each of these categories in furn.

Disciosable Pecuniary Interesis

{Annex B, paragraphs 4 and 5} Thitns Pwew lncal govakioublicstions/looslanvernmant-associstion-modelcouncilior.
cods.conduct-2028#apnandix-b-registering-iniorests)

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (or ‘DPIs) were infroduced by 530 of the Localism Act 2011, They are a calegory of interests which
relate to the member and/or their pariner, such as financial interests of you or your partner such as your house or other property, or
i you have a job or own a business. The calegories are set out in regulations made under the Act and are in Table 1 of Annex B
of the Code IBitns fwww locsloovukisublicationsflocal.oovernment-associnticon-modecouncillor-code-contucts
2020%anoendiz-breoistaring-intarastsl |

‘Partner’ is defined by reguiations as your iS{C}UUSE% or civil partner, & person with whom you are living as hushand or wifg, ora
¥
BRrscn with whom YOU are “V@E"Eg asif you are chyil partr‘tersf

Thay must be registered and, whers they come up in a mesting, declared. Failure knowingly to register or declare a DPlis a
criminal offence under the Localism Act,

The Localism Act says thal if you are present at a mesting of the Councll, or any commiliee, sub-commiliee, ioint commities or joint
sub-committes of the authority, and vou have a disclosable pecuniary inferest in any matter to be considered or being
considered at the meeting:

« you rmay not parlicipale in any discussion of the matier at the meeting

= you may not participate in any vole taken on the matter at the meeting

« if the inlerest is nof registered, you must disclose the interest 1o the meeting

o if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending notification, you must notify the monitoring officer of the interes!
within 28 days.

The Act says you need (o declare the nalure of the interest only if #t is not on the public register. in addition, your authority's rules
might raquire you 1o jeave the room where the mesting is held while any discussion or voting lakes place.

However, the Model Code siates thal it is important to declare the nature of the interest and to withdraw while the item s being
dealt with. This alds transparency for the public and helps avoid accusations that vou may be seeking to influence the cutcome by
remaining in the reom even |f your local authority's rules don't explicitly require it

Page 84

& Print A Top



i you have a DPE, you may in certain circumstances be granted a dispensation to fake part {see guidance on Dispensations in
Part3).

When does a Disclosable Pecunlary Interest arise?

The Localism Act uses the phrase 'vou have a DPHin any matier..)

This wording has ted to some confusion as to what circumstances would lsad io the need o declare 8 DPL The Explanatory Notes
ta the Localism Act say that section 31 of the Ast “requires a member of a relevant authority to disclose a disciosabie pecuniary
interest that they are aware of (apart from a sensitive interest), at a meeting or if acting slone, where any matter to be considerad
refates fo their interest. ... it prohibits & member from participating in discussion or voling on any matter relating to their interest or,
if acling alone, from taking any steps in relation to the matter (subject to any dispensations).” [our emphasisl.

This means you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest {DP]) in a matter when the matter being discussed directly refates to your
ragistered inlerest or that of your partner, rather than simply affecting it.

For example, if you have registerad 1 Acacia Avenue as your address, you would have a DPLHT you putin a planning application for
1 Acacia Avenue, or if the whole of Acacia Avenue was being considerad for 8 Resident Parking Zone,

You would not have a DPEIT 3 Acacia Avenue had putin a planning application as the matler does not directly relate to your
registered interest. You may howavar have a non-registerable interest {see below) as the application may Indirectly affect yvour
properfy.

Does setling the Council Tax or precept give rise to a DPI?

The LGA is clear that you do not have a DPI simply if you are voling to set the Counci Tax or precept. Guidance issued by the
Government in 2013 made clear that 'any payment of, or liability to pay, council tax does not creste a disclosable pecuniary interest
as defined in the national rules; hence being a councl tax payer does not mean that you need a dispensation to take part in the
business of setting the counclt tax or precept or local arrangements for council tax support.”

The Councit Tax and precept are charges on afl relevant properties in the area and do not directly refate to any single property in
such 2 way as o give rise to a DPL Members are therefore fully entiiled o vole on the matier (subject to rules about Council tax
arrears).

Cther registerable interests

(Paras 6, 8 and 8 of Annex B} [hites fwwwelocalsovukipublications/fiscal-governmeni-association-mogel-councillor-code-
conduch-20i0 appendix-bregistoring-iniorasial

The second category of interests are ‘other registerable interests’ or ORs.

i you have an 'Other Registerable Interest - that is an interest which falls within the categoriss in Table 2 in Annex B - the Code
says you should not participate in the relevani business in two circumstances:

1. when a matter directly relates {o the finances or welibeing of that interest. (para 6); or

2. when a matler affects the finances or wellbeing of that inlerest to a grester extent than i affects the majority of inhabitants:
and a reasonable member of the public would thereby befieve that your view of the public intersst would be affected (paras 8 and
91

An interest 'directly relates’ to an outside bedy where the local authority is taking a decision which directly relates to the
funding or wellbeing of that organisation

For example, under a] if you are a member of & group which has applied for funding from the local sutharity, or # yvou are a member
of an organisation which has submitted a planning application, the decision directly relates to that organisation.

In such a case you must nol take past In any discussion or vote on the matter. You can speak on the matier belore withdrawing but
only where the public are also allowed to address the meeiing. For example, you may want to put forward the organisation's case
as to why i has applied for funding, but representatives from competing organisations would alse need to be able to make their
CESE.

i the public are not allowed to address the mesting on that item, you would nesd. i necessary, to get ancther councillor who did
nat have an ORI to make any relevant casa.

If the local authority is simply discussing that oulside organisation but not making a decision which relaies to #z finances or
welibeing - for example discussing the annual report from the organisation — that does not directly relate in the organisation as
thera is no direct impact on the organisation which would give rise 'o a conflict of interest.

Page 85

8 Print o~ Top



Under b} if you are on the committee of the local village hall and an application for a ficence for another venue in the village is
made which may take trade away from the village halt then the matier would affsct the village hall and a reasensbie person would
believe that would affact your view of the public inferest so those two lests are met.

You would not have an interest if the local authority was discussing early planning for an svent, which may or may not be held in
the village hall as there would be no direct financial impact at that time, When the plans crystallised then an interest would arise as
a decision would be made which would have financial implications.

There will also be circumstances where you do not need to declare an interest even though the matier may be ralevant to the wider
aims of an organisaiion of which you are a member. For exampie, if you are a member of a charity such as the Royal Society for
the Protection of Birds (RSPB), vou do not need to declars an interest every time the local autherity might discuss matters relating
to habitats or conservallon lssues. Those issues may reflect the wider aims of RSPE, but they do not directly refate to or affect the
grganisation and your mere membership of the organisation has no bearing on the matier,

i you were in a position of control or general management in tha! body and the organisation was campaigning actively an the
specific issue being discussed or you personally were campaigning actively on that specific issue the situation would be different,
in those circumstances you may have an inferest and there is a risk of predetermination, Whare there is doubt vou shouid always
seek advice from the monlioring officer (or clerk if yvou are a parish councillor).

As with DPIs you can be granted 2 dispensation (see below) and if the interest has not heen registerad or notified to the monitoring
officer you should do so within 28 days of the meeting.

Mon-registerable interest

{paras 7, 8 and 8 of Annex B Inttpsiwwwiocal gov ulinublicatinns/local-govermment-association-modslcouncillor-cade-
conguet-20 2 0Eannendiv-beregistering-intarests]

The third category of interesis is Non-registerable interasts or NRis,

A Non-registerable Interest arises where the inlerast is that of yoursell or your partner which is not 8 DP| or of a relative or close
associate (see definition belowl,

As a councilor you are not expected io have to register the interests of your relatives or close associaies but under the Code you
are expected to deciare them as and whan relevant business occurs which affects their finances or wellbeing. The Code says you
should not participate in the relevani business in fwo circumstances:

= & when a matter directly relates (o that interest. Or
+ b, when a matter affects that interest to a greater extent than i affects the majority of inhabitants and
= & reasonable member of the public would thereby believe that your view of the public interest would be affected

For example, under a} if your son has submitted an application for a licence to open 2 bar, the malter directly refates fo vour
refalive. You must not take part in any discussion or vole on the maller,

For example, under b} there has been an application made to build several units of housing on a field adiacent to vour business
partner's home. [Eis not thelr application, bul they will be more affecied by the application than the majority of peaple so again you
woutd be expected {0 declars the interast and withdraw.

Similarly, an application for the property next door to you does not directly refate to your property so it is not a DPI, but you would
instead need to dedlare & Non-Registerable interest,

in all of these cases vou can speak on the matter before withdrawing but only where the public are also altowed o address the
meeting. if the public are not aliowed to address the meeling on that em, vou would need if necessary, 1o get another councilior
who did nol have an NRI o make any relevant case or 1o represent the wider views of constituanis.

As with DPIs you can be granted a dispansalion {see below),

What is the difference between ‘relates to' and ‘affects’?

Somathing relates to vour interest if i is directly about i, For example, the matier baing discussed is an application about 2
particular praperty in which you of somebody associated with you or an outside body you have registered has a financial interest,

‘Affects’ means the matter is not divectly about that interest but nevertheless the matter has clear Implications for the interest — for
example, it is a planning application for a nelghbouring property which will result in it overshadowing your property. An interest can
of course affect you, your family or close personal associates positively and negatively. So, if you or they have the potential io gain

ar tose from & matter under congideration, an interast wsulp*ag@ ':86@9!3{9{3 in both siuations.
& Primt o Top



What does “affecting well-being”™ mean?

The term ‘well-being” can be described as a condition of confentedness and happinass. Anvihing that could affect vour quality of
fife or that of someone you are closely associated with, either positively or negatively, is likely to afect your well-being. There Fray,
far example, be circumstances where any financial impact of a decisicn may be minimal buf nevertheless the disruption it may
cause o you or those close 1o you could be significant. This could be on either a temporary or permanent basis. Temporary
roadworks in your street may affect your wellbeing on a temporary basis. Closure of a local amenity may have a more permanent
impact on your wellbeing if you use it mors than the majority of people in the area.

VWhat are the definitions of relative or close associate?

The Code doss not attempt to defing “relative” or "close associate”, as all families vary. Some people may have very close
exiended families, but others will have more distant relations. You should consider the nature of your relationship with the perzon
(eg whether they are a close family member or more distant reiation). The key test is whether the interest might be objectively
regarded by a member of the public, acting reasonably, as potentially affecting your responsibilities as a councillor. B would be a
person with whom you are in either regular or irregular contact with over a period of ime who is more than an acquaintance. [t is
sofmeons a reasonable member of the public might think you would be prepared to favour or disadvantage when discussing a
matter that affects them. It may be a friend, a colleague, a business associate or someone whom you know through ganeral social
contacts, A close associale may also be somebody to whom you are known to show animosity as yau might equally be viewed as
willing to traat them differentiv.

What if | am unaware of the interest?

You can only declare an inferest in a matter if you are aware of the interest. For example, a company of which your father-in-law is
a director may have made an application to the local authority. You may not be aware that he is a director, and vou are not
expected o have to ask aboul the business affairs of your relatives or acquaintances simply because you ara a councilior,
Howeaver, you would need to declare an interest as soon as you became aware.

A reasonable member of the public would expect you to krnow of certain interests of course, so it is, for example, reasonable that
you would be expsacted to know your daughier's address or job but not necessarly any shareholdings she might have, While it is
therefore your decision as to whether or not to declare an interest, you should always consider how it might seem to a reasonabile
person and ¥ in doubt always seek advice from the moniioring officer.

Do | always have lo withdraw if | have an ‘other registerable interest’ or a non-registerable interest to declare?

Whare you have declared a DPI the Localism Act says you must always withdraw from participation unless you have a
dispensation,

it the matter is an ‘other registerable interest’ or a non-registerable interest you must always withdraw from participation where the
matier directiy relates to that interest unless you have a dispensation,

it it is something which affects the financial interest or wellbeing of that interest vou are asked to declare it and the Code then asks
you io apply a two-part test hefore considering whether to participate in any discussion andior vote:

1. Does the matter affect ihe interest more than it affects the majority of people in the area to which the business relales?
For axample, if a major development affects the settfement where your sister lives and your sister would be no more affected
than anybody eise - for example, she lives at the other end of the ssilement rather than next door to the development, the
answer would be no. If the answer 5 ves, vou then ask:

Z. Wauld a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts belisve that it would affect your judgment of the wider public
interest?

This is similar to the test for blas (see guidance on predetenmination end bizs in Part 23 and if the answer is ves to that question
then yvou must not take part in the meeting.

You help to run a food bank and are considering a motion to investigate the causes of poverty, A reasonable mamber of the public
would not think that fact would affect your view of the wider public interest,

You are over 65 and are taking part in a discussion about provisions for older people. You would be more affecled than the majority,
but & reasonable member of the public would nof think that fact would affect your view of the wider public interest,

You are discussing closure of the local authority-run home where your elderly parent fives. A rzasonable member of the public
would think that fact would affect your view of the wider publlic interest because of the direct effect on your parent.

What does ‘withdraw from the mesting’ mean?
g Page 87
£ Print A Top



Whan you withdraw from the meeting thal means you must not be present in the room during the discussion or vole on the matiar,
If the public are allowed 1o speak at the meeting then you would be granied the same speaking rights as the public and would nesd
to comply with the same riles — for example, giving notics in advance or abiding by timea limils. However, uniike the public you
would then withdraw ones you had spoken.

This would be true at a commitiee maeting, for exampie, even if you are not a mamber of the commities but are simply altending
as a mamber of the public. By staying in the room, even though you are not permitied 1o speak or vote, it s a long-heid doclring of
case law that a councilor may still influence the decision or might gather information which would help in the furtherance of his or
her interest. ILis therefore in the public interest that a councillor, after having made any representations, should withdraw from the
room, and aexplain why they are withdrawing.

These rules would apply to virtual mestings as they would to physical meetings. For example, after having spoken you should wim
off your microphone and camera and may be moved to g Virlual wailling room’ white the item i discussed.

Executive decisions

Whaere you arg an executive member you should follow the samse rules as above when considering a matter collectively — that is
you should not take part in the decision where you have an inferest applying the same rules as apply to other meetings above.

VWhere you have delegated decision-malking power, you should not exercise that delegation in relation to matters whare you have a
disclosable pecuniary Interest or another type of interest which would debar you from taking part in a meeting. Instead you should
ask the executive to take the decision collectively without vour participation,

Wheres you have been delegated non-executive powers under 5,236 of the Local Government and Public Housing Act 2007 you
should simifarly follow this appreach and your local authority may need to make that clear In its code if it Is using that powaer,

Bispensations

Wheraver you have an interest the code allows you to apply for a dispensation. The Localism Act sets oul arrangements for
applying for a dispensation where vou have a D but is sifent about dispensations for other types of interest as they are nat
statulory interests. A similar procass should however be set out in your constitution or Dispensation Policy for ORls and NRls,

A dispensation must be applied for in writing o the "Proper Officer’ (the monitoring officer or, in the case of a parish council, the
tlerk} in good time before the relevant meeting and will be considered accarding to the local authority’s scheme of delegation for
considering a dispensation. The circumstances whereby a dispensation may be granted are where -

1. it is considered that without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited from pariicipating in any particular business
would be s0 great a proportion of the body Wansacting the business as (o impede the fransaction of the business.

2.t is considerad that without the dispensation the representation of different political groups on the body transacting any
particular business would be so upset as (o aller the likely outcoms of any vote ralating to the business,

3. That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the interests of parsons living in the authority's area.

4. That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation.

What is a ‘sensitive inlerest’?

There are circumstances set out in the Localism Act where you do not need {0 put an interest on the public ragister or declare the
nature of an inlerest at a meeting allhough you would have 10 declare in general terms that vou have an inderest. These are so-
called ‘sensitive interesis’

An interest will be a sensitive interast if the two following conditions apply: (a) That you have an inlerest (whether or not a DPD; and

{b) the nature of the interast is such that you and the monitoring officer consider that disclosure of the details of the interest could
iead fo you or a person connecled (o vou being subject to viclence or inimidation.

Where it is decided that an inferest is a "sensitive interest” you must inform the moniloring officer of the interest so that a record is
kept but it will be excludad from published versions of the register. The monitoring officer may state on the register that the member
has an interest the details of which are excluded under that particular section.

Where the sensitive interest crops up in & meeting the usual rules relating to daclaration will apply except that you wili only be
required to disclose that vou hold an inferest in the matter under discussion but do not have o say what that inferest is. The
Localism Act sets out the schems where the DP] s & sensitive iInterest. Your local authority procedures should allow for similar
arrangemenis for olher registerable or declarable interasis,

Far example, if your sister has been subject to domestic viclence such that the perpetrator has been served with a Domestic
Violence Protection Order vou would not be expected o Giﬁg@@ugfgier*s addrass to a mesiing.

b Print A Top



What do | do if | need advice?

i you are unsure as lo whether you have an interest to declare you should ahways seek advice fram the moniforing officer {or the

clerk if you are a parish councilior).

The Golden Rule is be safe —seek advice if in doubt before you act.

No. TYPE SPEAKR®
1 D hY
i public
Za ORI aliowed
[15]
Zh O Tast
i public
3z MR atlowed
o
b NRI Tast
2bi3b NRI Test

VOTE

Tast

Tasgt

Tast

STAY

Test

Tast

Test

EXALMPLE

Awarding a confract i your own
COMBany

Planning application for your
property

Resideni parking zons includes your
house

Awarding/withdrawing grant funding
o & body of which vou are &
member 8.4, village hall

Granting planning permission to a
hody of which you are a member

Awarding grant funding to a body
ather than the body of which you ars
a mamber e.g. competitor o village
hat!

Dstermining an application
submitted by your sister or vour
neighbour for a dog breeding licence

Partner with free parking permit and
poiicy review decision io be made

Councilfor objects in private capacily
o neighbours planning application
cannot sit on PO as siatulory
consulice

Spplication for housing develspment
on land near 1o parners business
property

Your neighbour applies for planning
BerTssion

Road works noise outside vour
house

Cdaurs from nearby refuse tp

ASE from rough sleepers housed in
B+8's nearby

COMMENTS

Directly refates to DFMoreseeable-narrow-criminga

Directly refales to finarces-loreseeabie-narrow-can
“atddress” meeting i public can do, but not take partin
discussion,

Affects fnances or welibelng-fest {1} grealer than
majority of inhabitants and (2} reasonable public-affect
view of public interest

Directly refates to finances of you, partner (not a OPH-a
refative or close associate-Unforesesable- can “address”
meeting ¥ public can do, bul nol taks part in discussion,

Affects finances ar well-being-test 1} greater than
majority of inhabitants and {2} reasonable public-affact
view of public interest

May not affect finarces buf Well-being=quality of iife -
apply 2-stags fest

*speak-take part in discussion, as opposed fo addrassing a public meeting as 2 member of the public whera others can also

addrass the mesting

FProximity in personal relationship and in physical proximity arpsée@ ézgzgzgnt factors in determining ability to speak and/or vols,

&8 Frint A Top



Bias and Predetermination

Bias and predetermination are not explicitly mentioned in the Code of Conduct. The code provisions on declarations of interest are
about ensuring you do not take decisions where you or those close (o vou stand (o lose or galn improperly. (See guidance on
declarations of interest in Part 2) httpsJwww incal govulfpublications/ouidance-daoalaovernmentassacistion-models
counclilor-codeconductinart-Zgeneraboblaations-undse-the-code-of.conduct]

There is however a separate concept in law dealing with bias and predetermination which exists to ensure that decisions are taken
solely in the public interest rather than to fusther private inlsresis.

Both the courts and legislation recognise that elected councillors are entitfed, and indeed expecied, o have and to have exprassed
their views on a sublect to be decided upon by the local suthority. In law, there is no pretence that such democratically accountable
decision-makers are infended {o be independent and impartial as if they were judges or guasidudges.

Nonetheless, decisions of public authorities de involve consideration of circumsiances where a decision-maker musi not actina
way that goes to the appearance of having a clesed mind and pre-determining a decision before they have all of the svidence
before them and where they have o act fairly. Breaches of the rules of natural justice in thess circumsiances have and do continue
o result in decisions of local authorities being successfully chalienged in the courts. Thase issuas are complex, and advice shouid
be sought and given in the various sifuations that come up, which is why there are no direct paragraphs of the code covering this,
afthough # does overlap with the rules on declarations of inierest.

While declaring inferests will to some extent deal with issues of bias, there will still be areas where a formal declaration is not
required under the Code of Conduct, but councillors need to be clear that they are no! biased or predetermined going inte the
dacision-making process. Otherwise the decision is at risk of being challenged on appeal or in the Courls, To quote a leading
judgment in this Beid "All counciliors elected fo serve on focal councils have o be scrupuious in their duties, search their
consclences and consider carefully the propriety of attending meetings and tzking part in decisions which may give rise {o an
appearance of bias even though their actions are above reproach.” [1]

The rules against bias say that there are three distinct elements.
The first seeks accuracy in public decision-making.

The second seeks the absence of prejudice or partislity on the part of vou as the decision-maker. An accurate decision is more
likely to be achieved by a decision-maker who is In fact impartial or disinterested in the outcome of the decision and who puts aside
any personal strong feelings they may have had in advance of making the decision.

The third requirement is for public confidence in the decision-making process. Even though the decision-maker may in fact be
scrupuiously impartial, the appearance of bias can iiself call into guestion the legiimacy of the decision-making process. In general,
the rule against bias looks 1o the appearance or risk of bias rather than bias in fact, in order to ensure that justice shauld not only
bre done but should maniestly and undoubtedly be seen (o be done.

To varying degrees, these “requirements” might be seen to provide the rationales behind what are generally taken 1o be three
separate rules against bias: “automatic” {or “presumed”} blas, "aclual” bias. and "apparent” bias.

1] Kelton v Wilishire Councit {20158] EWHC 2853 {Admin}

The rationale behind “automatic” of “presumed” bias appears to be that in cartain situations {such as if you have a pecuniary or
proprietary interest in the outcome of the proceedings) then it must be presumad that you are incapable of impartiality. Since a
mative for bias is thought to be so obvious in such cases, the decisions are not aliowed to stand even though no investigation is
made info whether the decision-maker was blased /n fack. In these circumstanceas you should not participate in the discussion or
vole on the issue, These are covered by the code’s requirement to declere ceriain interests and withdraw from participation. (ses
guidance on declaration of interests in Part 3}, Thitns: Jwwwe localoov.uldnublications/guidance-lonsbaovernment-

aasocistion-model-councillor-code<conductiidaciaratinns-ofuinterast

A single councilior who s guilty of bias is enough to strike oul the whole decision when chalfenged before the courts. This can
cause huge cost and reputational damage for the local authority vet is seidom due to actual corruption or even cansciously
favouring a personal interest over the public interesat on the part of the councillor involved and may have no repercussions for them
personaiiy.

Predetermination

Page 90

& Primt A Top



The Locafism Act 2011 has enshrined the rufes relating to pre-disposition and predetermination into statute. In essence you are
rot taken o have had, or appesred to have had, a closed mind when making & dacision just because you have praviously done
anything that direclly or indirectly indicated what view you may take in refation to & matter and that matier was relevant to the
decision.

Fredetermination at & meeting can be manifested in a number of ways. |t Is not just about what vou might say, for example, but it
may be shown by body language, tone of voice or overly-hostile lines of guestioning for example.

You are therefore entitled to have a predisposilion one way or another as long as you have not pre-determinad the oulcome. You
are able to express an opinion providing that you come o the relevant meeting with an open mind and demonsirate that io the
mesting by your behaviour, able {o iake account of all of the evidence and make your decision on the day.

How can bias or predetermination arise?

The following are some of the potential situations In which predefermination or blas could arisa.

Connection with semeone affected by a decision

This sort of bias particularly concerns administrative decision-making, where the authorily must take 2 decision which involves
balancing the interasts of people with opposing views. It is based on the beliefl that the decision-making body cannot make an
unbigsed decision, or a decision which objectively looks impartial, if a councilior serving on it is closely connected with one of the
parties involvad.

Examples

The compiaint allegad that a councillor had behaved in 2 disrespectfyl and harassing manner towards two fellow female counciliors and
officers, [t was esiablishad that the councilior had made unwarranied and inappropriate physical contact with the counciliors and officers
at an official event and had also made remarks fowards the officers which were patronising and demeaning, The counzitlor was found Lo
been in breach of the Code of Conduet,

A district councilior also belongs fo a parish councit that has complained about the sanduct of an officer of the district councii. As a resuit
of the complaint the officer has been disciplined. The officer has appealed to & councilior pane! and the councillor seeks to i on the
panel hearing the appeal. The councilfor should not participate,

Contrast this with:

The complaint about the officer described above Is made by the local office of a national charity of which the coundillor is an ordinary
member and is not involved with the local office. The councillor should be abie 1o participate in this situation becausa the matter is not
concerned with the promaotion of the interests of the charity.

improper involvement of someone with an interest in the outcome

This sort of bias involves someone who has, or appears 1o have, inappropriate influsnce in the dacision being made by someone slse. itis
inappropriate because they have & vesied interest in the docision.

Examples

A focal authority receives an application to modily the Definttive Map of public rights of way. A panel of counciliors are given delegated
authority to make the stalutory modification Order. They have a private meeting with local represantatives of a fooipath organisation
before deciding whether the Crder should be made. However, they do nof give the same opporiunilly to people with npposing interests,

Prior involvement

This sort of bias arlses because someone is being asked to make a decision about an issue which they have praviously been
invetved with, This may be a problem if the second decision is a formal appeal from ths first decision, so that somsone is hearing
an appeal from thelr own decision. However, Tt is just a case of the person in quastion being required 1o reconsider 2 matler in the
light of new evidence or representations, it is unlikely to be unlawiul for them fo paniicipate.

Commenting before a decision is made

Page 91

& Print A Top



Unce @ lobby group of advisory body has commented on a matter or application, it s likely that 2 councillor invalved with that body
will stili be able {0 take part In making a decision about it. But this s as long as they do not give the appaarance of being bound
only by the views of that body. I the councillor makes comments which make it clear that they have aiready made up their mind,
they may not take part in the decision.

If the councillor s merely seeking to lobby a public mesting at which the decision is taking place but will not themselves be involved
it making the decision, then they are not prevented by the principles of predetermination or bias from doing so. Untke private
tobbying, there is no particular reason why the fact that councillors can address a public mesting in the same way as the public
should lead fo successiul legal challengas,

Examples

Atocal authority appoints a barrister to hold a public inguiry into an application to register a village green, The barrister
produces & report where he recommends that the application is rejected. A councillor aitends a meeting in ong of the
affecied wards and says publicly: “speaking for myself { am inclined 1o go along with the bardster's recommendation”. He
iater participates in the local authority's decision to accept the barrister's recommendation. At the meeling the supporters of
the application are given an opporiunily to argue that the recommendation should not be accepted,

This is unlikely to give rise 1o & successful claim of predetermination or bias. The statement made by the counciltor only
suggesis a predisposition to blicw the recommendation of the barrister’s report, and nof that he has closed his mind to sl
possibiliies. The subsequant conduct of the mesting, where supporters of the application could try and persuade
councillors to disagres with the recommendation, would confirm this.

A developer entered into negotialions (o acquive soms surplus local authority land for an incinarator. Planning permission
for the incinerator had already been granted, Following local elections there is a change in the composition and political
control of the local authority. After pressure from new councillors who have campaigned against the incinerator and a full
debate, the local authority’s executive decides to end the negotistions. This is on the grounds that the land is needed for
housing and employment uses.

The local authority’s decision is unlikely to be found 1o be biased, so long as the gventual decision was taken on proper
grounds and after a full consideration of all the relevant issues.

What do | do if | need advice?

If you are unsure as to whether your views or any action you have previously taken may amount io predetermination vou should
abtways seek advice from the mandloring officer {or the clerk if you are a parish councilior).

The Golden Rule is be safe ~seek advice if in doubt before you act.

Appendix 1 - interests Flowchart

Interests Flowchart

The flowchart below gives a simple guide to declaring an interest under the cods.

Appendix 2 - General Principles

General Principles

The Seven Principles of Public Life (also known as the Nolan Principles) cutline the sthical siandards these working in the public
seclor are expected to adhere to. The principles apply to all public offics holders sl ai [evels including ministers, civil servants,
counciitors, and iocal authority officers. as well as private and voluntary organisations delivering services paid for by public funds.
The principles are:

Page 92

& Print A~ Top



Page 93

Setflessness

Holders of public office should
act salely in terms of the public
interest,

Integrity

Holders of public office must
avoid placing themselves under
any cbligation {o peaple or
organisations that might fry
inappropriately to influence them
in their work, They should not act
or take decisions in order to gain
financlal or other material
benefils for themsealves, their
family, cr their friends. They must
geclare and resolve any interests
and relationships.

Objectivity

Halders of public office must act
and lake decisions impartialiy,
fairly and on merit, using the best
evidence and without
discrimination or bias.

Accountabllity

Hotders of public office are
accountable to the pubtic for their
decisions and actions and miust
submit themselves to the
scruliny necessary 1o ensure
this.

Openness

Holders of public office shauld
acl and take decisions in an
open and {ransparent manner.
tnformation sheould not be
withheld from the public unless
there are ctear and jawful
reasens for so doing.

Honesty

Holders of public office shauld be
truthiful,

Leadership

Heolders of public office should
exhibit these principles in their
own behaviour, They shauld
aclively promate and rcbustly
support the principles and be
willing to challenge poor
behaviour wherever it occurs.

& Print A Top



These principles underpin the standards that councilors should uphold and form the basis for the Code of Conduct, whers the
Principles have been translated into a serles of clear rules. While fundamental lo the Code of Conduct the principles are not part of
the rules of the code and should be usad for guidance and interpretation only,

Page 94

& Brint A Top



Agenda Iltem 6
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
3 AUGUST 2022
REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE & MONITORING OFFICER
A.2 INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL AND INDEPENDENT PERSONS

RECRUITMENT
(Report prepared by Karen Townshend and Lisa Hastings)

PART 1 — KEY INFORMATION

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To enable the Committee to comment on the Independent Remuneration Panel and
Independent Persons’ term of office, exploring alternative options and future recruitment,
with consideration to recommendations to full Council.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Current Position

e At the meeting on 27 November 2018, Council agreed the appointment of Mr David
Irvine, Mrs Clarissa Gosling, Mrs Jane Watts and Mrs Sue Gallone as the Council’s
Independent Remuneration Panel for the purposes of making recommendations to
Council on Members’ allowances.

e Mr David Irvine, Mrs Clarissa Gosling, Ms Jane Watts and Ms Sue Gallone were
also confirmed as the Council’s Independent Persons for the purposes of standards
arrangements.

e The roles are still separate but the same individuals have been appointed to both
and are in place until Annual Council in May 2023.

e Full Council last considered the Members’ Allowances Scheme in September 2020
and the recommendations from the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP), within
the covering report it was highlighted that if the Council approved a Scheme of
Allowances for the following two financial years (being 2021/22 and 22/23) the next
scheduled time for the IRP to review the Allowances Scheme for this Council would
be prior to the start of 2023/24 and therefore this will concern the Scheme of
Allowances to be paid following the scheduled elections to this Council in 2023.

o Without alternative arrangements there will be a need to recruit a new Independent
Remuneration Panel and new Independent Persons in time to make new formal
appointments at Annual Council in May 2023, whilst undertaking a review on the
Members’ Allowance Scheme, with the support of officers in the late Autumn/early
Winter 2022.

Recruitment and alternative options

e With regard to the roles of Independent Persons for the Ethical Standard
arrangements, a pool of Independent Persons are available through the Public Law
Partnership (covering Essex, Hertfordshire and Suffolk) that can be called on by
any authority, subject to the necessary approvals through formal appointments..
These arrangements are considered appropriate to use where capacity or conflicts
of interest are an issue. Whilst the Council has approved and adopted this
flexibility, using the pool has not been required due to having four Independent
Persons. Therefore, it is still considered prudent for Tendring District Council to
continue appointing its own Independent Persons whilst retaining the flexibility of a

Page 95



wider pool to call upon if necessary.

The Independent Persons and the Independent Remuneration Panel could continue
as joint appointments or be separated.

The Council could also look to alternative arrangements such as joint Independent
Remuneration Panels with other Councils, either on flexible or formal basis. Early
research has indicated that a small number of Councils might be interested in a joint
approach, but no commitments can be made at this time, therefore, any recruitment
undertaken by Tendring, would have to reflect some flexibility with
recommendations to Full Council.

Since the recruitment undertaken in 2018, the Committee on Standards in Public
Life published its report in January 2019, which with regards to the role of the
Independent Persons and their recommendations were responded to by
Government in March 2022. Therefore, it is timely for Tendring District Council to
review its own approach and give consideration to different options.

Statutory and Constitutional Requirements

Section 28(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to appoint at
least one Independent Person to work with the Monitoring Officer within the
Standards Framework.

Section 20 of The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) England Regulations
2003 requires that an Independent Remuneration Panel shall be established in
respect of each authority and that the Panel shall consist of at least three people.

In the Council’'s Constitution, the advertisement of vacancies of Independent
Person(s) and the Independent Remuneration Panel, the review of applications
received, the interview of suitable candidates and the making of recommendations
to Council as to who should be appointed, are delegated to the Chief Executive or
Monitoring Officer. However, as both of these independent roles do have strong
engagement with Councillors it is considered appropriate that representative from
the Committee are involved in the recruitment process. It is recommended that the
existing Independent Persons term of office be extended for a year to allow the joint
working opportunities for the Independent Remuneration Panel to be explored
further.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

It is recommended that the Standards Committee:-

(@)

notes the contents of this Report;

(b) recommends to Full Council that alternative arrangements for the

(c)

Independent Remuneration Panel are explored further to maximise options
available with other Councils within Essex and give consideration to the
outcome prior to any future recruitment; and

subject to debate within the meeting, recommend to Full Council that the
term of office for those Independent Persons who express an interest in
doing so, be extended for a further year without an application process, to

Page 96




allow the review within (b) above to be undertaken.

BACKGROUND

The following recruitment process was undertaken for the roles in 2018/19:-
o up to four people were to be appointed to serve as both the Independent
Remuneration Panel and Independent Persons;
o an allowance of £600 per annum was allocated for payment to each person;
o a Recruitment Pack be produced incorporating comments from the
Standards Committee;
o the posts were advertised locally;
interviews be undertaken by a Joint Member / Officer panel,
o the recommended appointments by the Panel be submitted directly to Full
Council for approval.

o

The Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) reported the outcome of their national
review in a Report published in January 2019, which included a number of
recommendations relating to Local Government Ethical Standards. The Report also
includes a number of Best Practice recommendations, those which relate to the role and
responsibilities of the Independent Person were:

Recommendation 8: The Localism Act 2011 should be amended to require that
Independent Persons are appointed for a fixed term of two years, renewable once.

Whilst, the following did not translate into the formal recommendation or within the list of
best practice, the CSPL report stated (page 56) “The terms of multiple Independent
Persons should ideally overlap, to ensure a level of continuity and institutional memory’.

In the Letter from Kemi Badenoch MP (Minister of State for Equalities and Levelling Up
Communities) to Lord Evans, Chair, Committee on Standards in Public Life dated 18%
March 2022, in response to this recommendation it was stated:

“The government does not accept this recommendation as appropriate for legislation on
the basis that it would be likely to be unworkable. The government’s view is that it would
be more appropriately implemented as a best practice recommendation for local
authorities.

In principle, it may be attractive to limit the terms Independent Persons serve to keep their
role and contribution “fresh” and avoid them becoming too closely affiliated with the
overriding organisational culture. However, discussions with Monitoring Officers indicate
that in practice most local authorities would likely find servicing this rate of turnover
unachievable. There is frequently a small pool of people capable and willing to undertake
the role, who also fit the stringent specifications of being amongst the electorate, having no
political affiliation, no current or previous association with the council, and no friends or
family members associated with the council.

When local authorities have found effective Independent Persons who demonstrate the
capability, judgement and integrity required for this quite demanding yet unpaid role, it is
understandable that they may be reluctant to place limitations on the appointment.”

Page 97




CSPL Best Practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two independent
Persons.

CSPL Best Practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to
undertake a formal investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to review
and comment on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to dismiss as being
without merit, vexatious or trivial.

APPENDICES

None

Page 98




Agenda Item 7

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
3 AUGUST 2022
REPORT OF HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & ELECTIONS
A3 TOWN & PARISH COUNCILS’ STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE -

APPOINTMENT OF TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL MEMBERS
(Report prepared by lan Ford, Committee Services Manager)

PART 1 — KEY INFORMATION

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To enable the Committee to appoint Tendring District Council’s members to serve
on the Town and Parish Councils’ Standards Sub-Committee for the 2022/2023
Municipal Year.

BACKGROUND

Article 9 (Standards Committee and Town & Parish Councils’ Standards Sub-
Committee) of the Council’s Constitution states that the Council will have, in place,
a Town & Parish Councils’ Standards Sub-Committee with the following terms of
reference:-

“To advise and assist Town and Parish Councils and Councillors to maintain high
Standards of conduct and to make recommendations to Parish and Town Councils
on improving standards or actions following a finding of a failure by a Parish
Councillor to comply with its Code of Conduct.” [Article 9.05]

Article 9.05 also requires the Sub-Committee to consist of three members of the
Standards Committee and three non-voting co-opted Town & Parish Council
members nominated by the Tendring District Association of Local Councils
(TDALC). In addition, the nominated Town & Parish Council members will be of an
independent standing and they will not have served as a District Councillor or as a
County Councillor for a period of four years prior to their nomination.

The Standards Committee, at its meeting held on 9 July 2019 (Minute 9 refers),
appointed Councillors Nicola Overton, Graham Steady and Ann Wiggins to serve on
the Town and Parish Councils’ Standards Sub-Committee.

Since that time, Nicola Overton has ceased to be a member of Tendring District
Council and Ann Wiggins was not re-appointed as a member of the Standards
Committee at the Annual Meeting of the Council held on 26 April 2022.

The Committee Services Manager contacted TDALC with a view to them confirming
their nominations for the Sub-Committee. Dr Benjamin Newman Wright, Lawford
Parish Councillor and the Secretary of TDALC, responded by email on 16 June 2022
as follows:-

“Two Representatives were unanimously approved by TDALC Representatives at
our Annual General Meeting on Wednesday 25th May 2022, namely:

Page 99




Councillor Linda Belgrove (Chair, TDALC) (Representative: Alresford Parish
Council); and

Councillor Frank Belgrove (Vice Chair, TDALC) (Representative: Alresford Parish
Council.

The only Representative on your [previous] list serving with the Tendring District
Association of Local Councils is Councillor Robert Taylor. He was unable to
participate in our AGM. | understand that we will consider formally adding a Third
Representative at our next TDALC Meeting.”

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Standards Committee:-

(a) appoints three of its members to serve on the Town & Parish Councils’
Standards Sub-Committee for the 2022/2023 Municipal Year;

(b) notes, welcomes and endorses that the Tendring District Association of
Local Councils (TDALC) has appointed Parish Councillors Frank
Belgrove and Linda Belgrove as two of their three non-voting, co-opted
members of that Sub-Committee; and

(c) further notes that TDALC will notify the Council of its third non-voting,
co-opted member of that Sub-Committee in due course.

Page 100




Agenda Item 8

TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL MONITORING OFFICER UPDATE JULY 2022

Council Complainant Current Final Comments

status outcome

Existing Cases from last update:

TOWN PUBLIC ONGOING | Informal Matter related to claims of
2 x TOWN resolution bullying. Informal resolution
COUNCILLORS and governance review with

an external company
conducted. All Members
within Town Council
engaged to positive working
arrangements going
forward.

One action outstanding to
conclude the matter.

PARISH PUBLIC CLOSED Informal Complaint related to

resolution was | conduct in a public meeting.
recommended | As it was a second
by the complaint of this nature, the
Monitoring complaint was reviewed by
Officer; the Independent Person.
however the
complainant
withdrew their
complaint
TOWN PUBLIC CLOSED No further Matter related to various
action areas which needed to be
identified more clearly. The
substance of the complaint
did not relate to the Clir's
actions. Independent
Person consulted.
New Cases since last update:
Council Complainant Current Final Comments
status outcome
DISTRICT | PUBLIC PENDING PENDING Further information has
been sought from the
Complainant, matters raised
may not relate of acting in
official capacity and within
the remit of the Code.

DISTRICT | PUBLIC CLOSED No further Matter related to conduct

action within the Council’s

Committee Room.
Reflective assurances
provided to MO.

Page 101




Independent Person was
consulted.

General Notes — 2022/23 Summary:

2 new cases has been received in 2022/23.

1 Town Council matter is still on-going from March 2021 but only one action is outstanding
and is anticipated to be concluded shortly.

Page 102



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	5 Report of the Monitoring Officer - A.1 - Local Government Association Model Members' Code of Conduct - Exploration of the differences between declaring Interests
	A1 Appendix A TDC Code of Conduct
	A1 Appendix B LGA Model Code of Conduct
	A1 Appendix C LGA Guidance on Model Code

	6 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer - A.2 - Independent Remuneration Panel and Independent Persons Recruitment
	7 Report of the Head of Democratic Services & Elections - A.3 - Town & Parish Councils' Standards Sub-Committee: Appointment of Tendring District Council Members
	8 Quarterly Complaints Update and other General Matters

